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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

It goes without saying that the past fiscal year
was a disappointing one for First Acceptance
Corporation. A much higher than anticipated
loss ratio resulted in a significant reduction in our
income before taxes from $27.0 million in fiscal
year 2006 to $0.9 million in fiscal year 2007. Qur
operating results were further impacted by a $16.9
million non-cash write-down of our deferred tax
asset related to net operating loss carryforwards
that have expired or that we now estimate we may
not be able 1o utilize, Therefore, on an after-tax
basis we reported a $16.7 million net loss for fiscal
year 2007 as compared with $28.1 in net income

for fiscal year 2006.

Premiums earned, our most significant revenue
source, increased by $91.9 million, or 44%, to
$300.7 million for fiscal year 2007, from $208.8
million for fiscal year 2006. The majority of
our premium growth was in Florida and Texas,
where we opened 8} locations in fiscal year
2006; Chicago, where we acquired 72 locations

in January 2006; and South Carolina, where we

opened 21 locations in the second half of fiscal

year 2006. Our total number of insured policies in
force at June 30, 2007 increased 13% to 226,974
from 200,401 at June 30, 2006.

At June 30, 2007, we operated 462 stores compared

with 460 stores at June 30, 2006. During fiscal

2007 we opened 18 new rerail locations and closed {/

16. Following our expansion into five new states

during 2005 and 2006, we did not enter any new

additional states during fiscal 2007. We continue to |
operate in 12 states and are licensed in another 13

states where we do not currently write insurance.

QOur loss and loss adjustment expense ratio during
2007 increased to 80.4 % from 67.5% for fiscal
year 2006. This increase was primarily the result
of a significant, unanticipated increase in severity,
primarily in Florida and Georgia. Our entry into
new states and rapid growth in the last several
years has made the process of estimating our loss
reserves more cifficult. As a result, we experienced
volatility in our loss ratio during 2007 that directly

impacted our results,




We believe the most effective way for us to
improve our loss ratio will be through efforts

to ensure the adequacy of our pricing. In
January 2007, we hired a new head of product
management with significant experience in

rate making for the non-standard automobile
insurance sector. We have recently filed new rates
in several states, and we expect to file new rates

in certain other states in the near term.

We are also evaluating the underwriting
profitability of all of our retail stores, and will
continue to focus on improving the results
of our underperforming stores. We also have
initiated a thorough review of our claims-
handling operations. This process is being led
by our new head of claims, who joined the

Company in March 2007. Moreover, we have

and will continue to add experienced analysts to
support our product, actuarial, claims and finance

initiatives.

[ once again want to thank our now more than
1,300 employees for their dedication and hard
work, ] would also like to thank our Board of
Directors for their guidance throughout this

difficult year.

Fiscal year 2008 will be a challenging one for FAC,
as we anticipate a tough, competitive environment
in the coming year. We do however, offer you,

our stockholders, our commitment to undertake
the necessary initiatives towards improving our
financial performance. We appreciate all of your

patience and support.

Sincerely,

AL

Steve Harrison
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 5, 2007
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FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION

PART 1

item 1. Business
General

First Acceptance Corperation (the “Company,” “we” or “us") is a retailer, servicer and underwriter of non-
standard personal automobile insurance based in Nashville, Tennessee. We currently write non-standard personal
automobile insurance in 12 states and are licensed as an insurer in 13 additional states. Non-standard personal
automobile insurance is made available to individuals who are categorized as “non-standard” because of their
inability or unwillingness to obtain standard insurance coverage due to various factors, including payment history,
payment preference, failure in the past to maintain continuous insurance coverage, driving record and/or vehicle
type, and in most instances who are required by law to buy a minimum amount of automobile insurance. As of
August 31, 2007, we leased and operated 462 retail locations, staffed by employee-agents. Our employee-agents
exclusively sell insurance products either underwritten or serviced by us.

Our Business Strategy

We have grown as a provider of non-standard personal automobile insurance by adhering to a focused
business model and disciplined execution of our operating strategy. Our business model includes the following core
sirategies:

s Integrated Operations. To meet the preference of our customers for convenient, personal service, we have
imegrated the retail distribution, underwriting and service functions of personal automobile insurance into
one system. By doing so, we are able to provide prompt and personal service to meet effectively the
insurance needs of our customers, while capturing revenue that would otherwise be shared with several
participants under a traditional, non-integrated insurance business model. Our integrated model is
supported by both point of sale agency and back office systems,

»  Extensive Office Network. We emphasize the usc of employce-agents as the cornerstone of our customer
relationship. We believe our customers value face-to-face contact, speed of service and convenient
locations. Consequently, we train our employee-agents to cultivate client relationships and utilize real-time
service and information enabled by access to our information systems. As of August 31, 2007, we leased
and operated 462 retail sales offices staffed with our employee-agents and strategically located in
geographic markets to reach and service our customers.

o  Favorable Customer Payment Plans. Our customers can initiate insurance coverage with a modest down
payment. Any remaining premium is paid in monthly installments over the term of the policy. We believe
this modest initial payment and favorable payment plan is a major factor in our success in meeting the
market demand for low monihly insurance payments.

»  Strong Sales and Marketing. We build brand recognition and generate valuable sales leads through
extensive use of television adventising, Yellow Pages® advertisements and a broad network of retajl sales
offices.

o Efficient Systems. We have developed systems that enable timely and efficient communication and data
sharing among the various segments of our integrated operations, All of our retail sales office computers
transmit information directly to our central processing computer where policy information, customer
profiles, risk assessment and underwriting criteria are entered and stored in our database,




Our Business Model

We believe our operations benefit from our ability to identify and satisfy the needs of our target customers
and eliminate many of the inefficiencies associated with a traditional automobile insurance model. We have
developed our business model by drawing on significant experience in the auto insurance industry. We are a
vertically integrated business that acts as the agency, servicer and underwriter of non-standard personal automobile
insurance. We own three insurance company subsidiaries: First Acceptance Insurance Company, Inc. (“FAIC”),
First Acceptance Insurance Company of Georgia, Inc. (“FAIC-GA™) and First Acceptance Insurance Company of
Tennessee, Inc. (“FAIC-TN"). Our retail locations are staffed by employee-agents who exclusively sell insurance
products underwritten by us. Qur vertical integration, combined with our conveniently located retail locations,
enables us to control the point of sale and to retain significant revenue that would otherwise be lost in a traditional,
non-integrated insurance business model. We generate additional revenue by fully servicing our book of business,
which often allows us to collect policy, billing and other fees.

Our strategy is to offer customers automobile insurance with low down payments, competitive equal
monthly payments, convenient locations and 8 high level of personal service. This strategy makes it easier for our
customers to obtain automobile insurance, which is legally mandated in the states in which we currently operate. In
addition, we accept customers for our insurance who have previously terminated coverage provided by us without
imposing any additional requirements on such customers. Ciwently, our policy renewal rate (the percentage of
policies that are renewed after completion of the full uninterrupted policy term) is approximately 35%, which, due to
the payment patterns of our customers, is lower than the average renewal rate of standard personal automobile
insurance providers. We arc able to accept a low down payment because we process all business through our
systems. Our business mode] and systems allow us lo issue policies efficiently and, when necessary, cancel them to
minimize the potential for credit loss while adhering to regulatory cancellation notice requirements.

In addition 10 a low down payment and competitive monthly rates, we offer customers valuable face-to-
face contact and speed of service. Many of our customers prefer not to conduct business via the internet or over the
telephone. Substantially all of our customers make their payments at our retail locations. For thesc consumers, our
employee-agents are not only the face of our company, but also the preferred interface for buying insurance.

Our ability to process business quickly and accurately gives us an advantage over more traditional
insurance companies that produce business using independent agents. Qur policies arc issued at the point of sale,
and applications are processed within two business days, as opposed to the two or more weeks that is often typical in
the auto insurance industry, The traditional automobile insurance model typically involves interaction and
paperwork exchange between the insurance company, independent agent and premium finance provider. This
complicated interaction presents numerous opportunities for miscommunication, delays or lost information.
Accordingly, we believe that some of our competitors who rely on the traditional model and independent agents
cannot match our efficiency in serving our customer base,

We believe that another distinct advantage of our model over the traditional independent agency approach
is that our employee-agents offer a single non-standard insurance product as opposed to many products from many
insurance companies. The typical independent agent selling non-standard personal automobile insurance generally
has multiple non-standard insurance companies and premiium finance sources from which to quote based on agent
commission, price and other factors. This means that insurance companies using the independent agent model must
compele to provide the most attractive agent commissions and absolute lowest prices lo encourage the independent
agent to sel) their product. Our employee-agents sell our products exclusively. Therefore, we do not have to
compete for the attention of those distributing our product on the basis of agent commissions, price or other factors.

Personal Automobile Insurance Market

Personal automobile insurance is the largest line of property and casualty insurance in the United States.
According to A.M. Best, for the year ended December 31, 2006, the total premiums paid in the non-standard
automobile market segment in the United States were approximately $37 billion, representing approximately 22% of
the total personal automobile insurance market. Personal automobile insurance provides drivers with coverage for
liability to others for bodily injury and property damage and for physical damage to the driver’s vehicle from
coilision and other perils.




The market for personal automobile insurance is generally divided into three product segments: non-
standard, standard and preferred insurance, Non-standard personal automobile insurance is designed to be attractive
to drivers who prefer to purchase only the minimum amount of coverage required by law or to minimize the required
payment each payment period.

Our Products

Our core business involves issuing automobile insurance policies to individuals who are categorized as
“non-standard,” based primarily on their inability or unwillingness to obtain coverage from standard carriers due to
various factors, including their need for monthly payment plans, failure to maintain continuous insurance coverage
or driving record. We believe that a majority of our customers seek non-standard insurance due to their failure to
maintain continuous coverage or their need for affordable monthly payments, rather than as a result of poor driving
records. The majority of our customers purchase the minimum amount of coverage required by law.

The average six-month premium on our policics currently in force is $678. We allow most customers to
pay for their insurance with an initial down payment and five equal monthly instaliments, which include a billing
fee. We believe that our target customers prefer lower down payments and level monthly payments over the
payment options traditionally offered by other non-standard providers. Because our proprietary technology enables
us to contro] all aspects of servicing our insurance policies, we can generally cancel the policy of a customer who
fails to make a payment, without incurring a credit loss, while remaining within the regulatory cancellation
guidelines.

We use a single “product terplate” as the basis for our rates, rules and forms. Product uniformity simplifies
our business and allows speed to market when entering a new stale, modifying an existing program or introducing a
new program, In addition, our retail agents, underwriters and claims adjusiers only need to be trained in one basic
set of underwriting guidelines and one basic auto policy. Programming and systems maintenance also is simplified
because we have one basic product.

In addition to non-standard personal automobile insurance, we also offer our custorners optional products
and policies that provide ancillary reimbursements and benefits in the event of an automobile accident. Those
products and policies generally provide reimbursements for medical expenses and hospital stays as a result of
injuries sustained in an automobile accident, automobile towing and rental, bail bond premiums and ambulance
services.

Our Growth Strategy

During fiscal 2007 we focused our efforts on developing our emerging states and anticipate this to continue
into fiscal 2008. When appropriate we will, however, explore growth opportunities primarily through three
strategies:

o Increase the Number of Customers in Existing Geographic Markets. We intend to work to continue to
increase the number of our customers through advertising campaigns and we may open ncw retail sales
offices in some of the states where we currently do business. We believe that the number of our customers
will also increase as our recently-added sales offices continue to add new customers.

o Expand into New Geographic Markets. We currently operate in 12 states and are licensed as an insurer in
13 additional states. We may expand into additional states through the opening of new sales offices and
through selective acquisitions. o

¢ Pursue Acquisitions of Local Agencies. We may selectively pursue acquisitions of local agencies who
wrile non-standard automobile insurance for other insurance companies in our existing markets and in new
markets. During 2006, we completed the acquisition of a local insurance agency operation in Chicago,
llinois and in 2005 we completed a similar acquisition in Texas.




Competition

The non-standard personal automobile insurance business is highly competitive. Based upon data compiled
from A.M. Best, we believe that, as of December 31, 2006, ten insurance groups accounted for approximately 71%
of the approximately $37 billion non-standard personal automobile insurance market scgment. We are not a member
of these groups. We believe that our primary competition comes not only from national companies or their
subsidiaries, but also from non-standard insurers and independent agents that operate in specific regions or states.
We compete against other vertically integrated insurance companies and independent agencies that market insurance
on behalf of a number of insurers. We compete with these other insurers on factors such as initial down payment,
availability of monthly payment plans, price, customer service and claims service. We belicve that our significant
competitors are the Allstate insurance group, the Berkshire Hathaway insurance group (including GEICO), the
Bristol West insurance group, the Direct General insurance group, the Infinity insurance group, the Progressive
insurance group, the AlG insurance group, and the State Farm insurance group.

Marketing and Distribution

Our marketing strategy is based on promoting brand recognition of our product and encouraging
prospective customers to visit one of our retail locations. Qur advertising strategy combines low-cost television
advertising with local print media advertising, such as the Ye¢llow Pages®. Wc market our business under the name
“Acceptance Insurance” in all areas except in the Chicago-arca, where we use the names “Yale” and “Insurance
Plus.”

We primarily distribute our products through our retail sales offices. We believe the local office concept is
attractive to most of our customers, as they desire face-to-face assistance they cannot receive via the intemet or over
the telephone. Our advertisements promote local phone numbers that are answered at cither the local retail office or
one of our regional customer service centers, which are located in Nashville, Tennessee, Chicago, Ilinois and
Houston, Texas. We provide quotes over the telephone highlighting our low down payment and monthly payments,
and direct prospective customers to the nearest local retail office to complete an application. The entire sales process
can be completed at the local retail office where the down payment is collected and a policy issued. Future payments
can be made either at the local office or mailed to our customer service centers.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we gencrated approximately 97% of our total gross premiums
eamned from our retail locations. In select geographic areas in Tennessee, four independently-owned insurance
agencies write non-standard insurance policies through our insurance company subsidiaries. Although these
agencies operate under their own name and transact other insurance business, they write all of their non-standard
automobile business through us using our information systems.

Underwriting and Pricing

Our underwriting and rating systems are fully automated, including on-line driving records, where
available. We believe that our underwriting and pricing systems provide a competitive advantage to us because they
give us the ability to capture relevant pricing information, improve efficiencies, increase the accuracy and
consistency of underwriting decisions and reduce training costs. Qur systems can be modified easily on a state-by-
state basis to reflect new rates and underwriting guidelines.

We set premium rates based on the specific type of vehicle and the driver’s age, gender, marital status,
driving experience and location. We review loss trends in each of the states in which we operate to identify changes
in the frequency and severity of accidents and to assess the adequacy of our rates and underwriting standards. We
adjust rates periodically, as necessary and as permitted by applicable regulatory authoritics, to maintain Or improve
underwriting profit margins in each market.

Claims Handling

Non-standard personal automobile insurance customers generaily have a higher frequency of clamms than
preferred and standard insurance customers. We focus on controlling the claims process and costs, thereby limiting
losses, by internally managing the entire claims process. We strive to promptly assess claims, manage against fraud,
and identify loss trends and capture information that is useful in establishing loss reserves and determining premium




tates. Our claims process is designed 10 promote expedient, fair and consistent claims handling, while controlling
loss adjustment expenses.

As of June 30, 2007, our claims operation had a staﬂ‘ of approximately 340 employees, including adjusters,
appraisers, re-inspectors, special investigators and claims administrative personnel. We conduct our claims
operations out of our Nashville office and through regional claims offices in Tampa, Flonida, Chicago, Illinois and
Irving, Texas. Our employees handle all claims from the initial report of the claim until the final settlement. We
believe that directly employing claims personnel, rather than using independent contractors, results in improved
customer service, lower loss payments and lower loss adjustment expenses. In territories where we do not believe 2
staff appraiser would be cost-effective, we utilize the services of independent appraisers to inspect physical damage
to automobiles. The work of independent appraisers is supervised by regional staff appraisal managers.

While we are strongly committed to settling promptly and fairly the meritorious claims of our customers
and claimants, we are equally committed to defending against non-meritorious claims. Litigated claims and lawsuits
are primarily managed by one of our specially trained lmgatnon adjusters. Suspicious claims are referred to a special
investigation unit. When a dispute arises, we seek to minimize our claims litigation defense costs by attempting to
negotiate flat-fee representation with outside counsel specializing in automobile insurance claim defense. We
believe that our efforts 10 obtain high quality claims defense litigation services at a fixed or carefully controlled cost
have helped us control claims losses and expenses.

Loss and Loss Adjustmenl Expense Reserves

Automobile acc:dems generally result in insurance companies making payments (referred to as “Iosscs“) to
individuals or companies to compensate for physical damage 0 an automobile or other property and/or an injury to a
person. Months and sometimes years may clapse between the occurrence of an accident, report of the accident to the
insurer and payment of the claim. Insurers record a liability for cstimates of losses that will be paid for accidents
reported to them, which are referred 10 herein as case reserves. In addition, because accidents are not always
reported promptly, insurers estimate incurred but not reported, or IBNR, reserves to cover these expected losses,
Insurers also incur expenses in connection with the handling and settling of claims that are referred to as “loss
adjustment expenses” and record a liability for the estimated costs to seitle their expected unpaid losses.

We are directly liable for toss and loss adjustment expenses under terms of the insurance policies
underwritien by our insurance company subsidiaries. Each of our insurance company subsidiaries establishes a
reserve for all unpaid losses, both case and IBNR reserves, and estimates for the cost to settle the claims. We
estimate our IBNR reserves by estimating our ultimate liability for loss and loss adjustment expense reserves first,
and then reducing that amount by the amount of the cumulative paid claims and by the amount of our case reserves.
We rely primarily on historical loss experience in determining reserve levels on the assumption that historical loss
experience provides a good indication of future loss experience. Other factors, such as inflation, settlement patterns,
legislative activity and litigation trends, are also considered. With the assistance of our internal actuarial staff, we
review our loss and loss adjustment expense reserve estimates on a quarterly basis and adjust those reserves each
quarter to reflect any favorable or unj'avorable development as experience develops or new information becomes
known.

We have experienced rapid and significant growth in recent years, primarily as a result of expansion into
new states which has made the process of estimating reserves more difficult relative to the larger, more mature
states, In these new states we initially establish our reserves using our loss experience from other states that we
perceive as being similar. As our historical loss experience in these new states continues to develop, we revise our
estimates accordingly. As a result, we have experienced volatility in our reported loss and loss adjustment expense
that has direcily impacted our results of operations and financial condition.

" We periodically review our methods of establishing case and [BNR reserves and-update them if necessary.
Our intemal actuarial staff, which includes a fully-credentialed actuary, performs quarterly comprehensive reviews
of reserves and loss trends. We also engaged an independent actuarial firm to assess the reasonableness of our
reserve estimates at Juné 30, 2007. We believe that the liabilities that we have recorded for unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses at June 30, 2007 are adequate 1o cover the final net cost of losses and Joss adjustment expenses
incurred through that date.




The table below sets forth the year-end reserves since the Company began operations as an insurance
company with the 2004 acquisition of USAuto Holdings, Inc. (“"USAuto”) and the subsequent development of these
reserves through June 30, 2007. The purpose of the table is to show a “cumulative deficiency or redundancy” for
each year which represents the aggregate amount by which original estimates of reserves as of that year-end have
changed in subsequent years. The top line of the table presents the net reserves at the balance sheet date for each of
the years indicated. This represents the estimated amounts of losses and loss adjustment expenses for claims arising
in all years that were unpaid at the balance sheet date, including losses that had been incurred but not yet reported as
of the end of each successive year with respect to those claims. The next portion of the table presents the re-
estimated amount of the previously recorded reserves based on experience as of the end of each succeeding year,
including cumulative payments since the end of the respective year. As more information becomes known about the
paymenis and the frequency and severity of claims for individual years, the estimate changes accordingly.

Favorable loss development, shown as a cumulative redundancy in the table, exists when the original reserve
estimate is greater than the re-estimated reserves. Adverse loss development, which would be shown as a
cumulative deficiency in the table, exists when the original reserve estimate is less than the re-estimated reserves.
Information with respect to the cumulative development of gross reserves, without adjustment for the effect of
reinsurance, also appears at the bottom porticn of the table.

In evaluating the information in the table below, you should note that each amount entered incorporates the
cumulative effect of all changes in amounts entered for prior periods. In addition, conditions and trends that have
affected the development of liability in the past may not necessarily recur in the future.

At June 30 (in thousands) 2004 2005 2006 2007
Net liability for loss and loss adjustment

expénse reserves, originally estimated $ 18,137 $ 39,289 $ 61,521 $ 91,137
Cumulative amounts paid as of? :

One year later 13,103 28,024 51,420

Two years later 16,579 34,754

Three years later 17,795
Liability re-estimated as of:

One year later 17,781 37,741 65,386

Two years later . 17,244 38,226

Three years later 16,973
Net cumulative redundancy (deficiency) 1,164 1,063 (3,865)
Gross liability — end of year 330,434 $42,897 $ 62,822 $ 91,446
Reinsurance receivables 12,297 3,608 1,301 309
Net liability - end of year $ 18,137 $ 39,289 $ 61,521 $ 91,137
Gross re-estimated liability — Iatest $29,233 $41,524 $66,458
Re-estimated reinsurance receivables - latest 12,260 3,298 1,072
Net re-estimated — latest $ 16,973 $ 38,226 $65,186
Gross cumulative redundancy (deficiency) $ 1,201 5 1,373 $ (3,636)

At June 30, 2007, we had $91.4 million of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, which included $50.1
million in IBNR reserves and $41.3 million in case reserves, all related to our non-standard personal automobile
insurance business. Through September 1, 2004, we maintained quota-share reinsurance, the run-off of which
resulted in a reinsurance receivable of $0.3 million that is offset against the gross reserves of $91.4 million in the
above table. For a reconciliation of net 0ss and loss adjustment expense reserves from the beginning to the end of
the year for the last two fiscal years, see Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements.

As shown above, for the year ended June 30, 2007, we experienced an adverse net reserve development of
$3.9 million. This adverse development increased our loss and loss adjustment expense reserves for prior accident
years and decreased our income before income taxes for the 2007 fiscal year. We believe that this development was
attributable to (i) the inherent imprecision in estimating reserves, (ii) the limited historical loss experience in our
new states which requires more judgment in determining our loss reserve estimates for those states and (iii) an




increase in paid frequency in Florida related to the Bodily Injury (“BI”) and Personal Injury Protection (“PIP")
coverages.

During fiscal 2007, losses for the current accident year were adversely affected by unanticipated volatility,
primarily higher severity, in our newer states. We also experienced volatility as a result of an unanticipated change
in severity from a greater occurrence of large losses (losses of $10,000 or above) in our mature states. To a lesser
extent, we experienced an increase in losses for the current year as a result of a change in our business mix resulting
from premium growth in our emerging states. As a result of the effect of these factors on our anticipated
development, we experienced an increase in our loss ratio from 67.5% in fiscal 2006 10 80.4% in fiscal 2007.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, our loss and loss adjustment expense reserves were determined by
our internal actuary. Loss and loss adjusiment expense reserve estimates were reviewed on a quarterly basis and
adjusted each quarter to reflect any favorable or adverse development. Development assumptions were based upon
historical accident quarters. We analyzed our reserves for each type of coverage, by state and for loss and loss
adjustment expense to determine our loss and loss adjustment expense reserves. To determine the best estimate, we
reviewed the results of five estimation methods, including the incurred development method, the paid development
method, the incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson method, the paid Bomhuetter-Ferguson method, and the counts/averages
method for each set of data. Each review developed a point estimate for a subsct of our business. We did not
prepare scparate point estimates for our entire business using each of the estimation methods. In determining our
loss and loss adjustment expense reserves, we selected different estimation methods as appropriate for the various
subsets of our business, and the method selected varied by coverage and by state, and considerations included the
number and value of the case reserves for open claims, incurred and paid loss relativities, and suspected biases for
each of the procedures. Other factors considered in establishing reserves include assumptions regarding loss
frequency and loss severity. We believe assumptions regarding loss frequency are reliable because injured parties
generally report their claims within a reasonably short period of time after an accident. Loss severity is more
difficult to estimate because severity is affected by changes in underlying costs, including medical costs, jury
verdicts and regulatory changes.

Based upon the foregoing, we calculated a single point estimate of our net loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves as of June 30, 2007, We believe that estimate is our best estimate of our loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves at June 30, 2007. The loss and loss adjustment expense reserves in our financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007 are equal to the estimate determined by our internal actuary and were determined to be
reasonable by an independent actuarial firm.

We believe the estimate regarding changes in loss severity is the most significant factor impacting the
[BNR estimate. We believe that a one percent (1%) increase or decrease over the expected change in loss severity is
reasonably likely. A one percent (1%) increase over the expected change in loss severity would result in adverse
development of net loss and loss adjustment expense reserve tevels at June 30, 2007 of approximately $6.1 million.
Conversely, a one percent (1%) decrease in the expected change in loss severity would result in favorable
development of net loss and loss adjustment expense reserve levels at June 30, 2007 of approximately $6.0 million.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is an arrangement in which a company called a reinsurer agrees in a contract, often referred to
as a treaty, 10 assume specified risks written by an insurance company, known as a ceding company, by paying the
insurance company all or a portion of the insurance company’s losses arising under specified classes of insurance
policics. Insurance companics like us can use reinsurance to reduce their exposures, to increase their underwriting
capacity and to manage their capital more efficiently. Through August 31, 2004, our insurance companies relied on
quota-share reinsurance to maintain our exposure to loss at or below a level that was within the capacity of our
capital resources. In quota-share reinsurance, the reinsurer agrees to assume a specified percentage of the ceding
company’s losses arising out of a defined class of business (for example, 50% of all losses arising from non-standard
personal automobile insurance written in a particular state in a particular year) in exchange for a corresponding
percentage of premiums, less a ceding commission as compensation for underwriting costs incurred by the ceding
company..

Historically, our insurance companies ceded a portion of their non-standard personal automobile insurance
premiums and losses to unaffiliated reinsurers in accordance with these contracts. Through August 2004, we had in




place a quota share treaty whereby we ceded approximately 50% of the premiums written by our.insurance company
subsidiaries. Effective September 2004, as a result of available liquidity to increase the statutory capital and surplus
of our insurance company subsidiaries, we non-renewed our quota-share reinsurance treaty. In addition, to reduce
exposure for certain catastrophic events, through April 2006, we maintained excess-of-loss reinsurance coverage
that provided us with coverage for losses up to $4 million less our retention of the first §1 million per event.
Effective April 2006, we elected to not renew this reinsurance.

Prior to May 2005, our insurance company subsidiaries were not licensed in the State of Alabama and
therefore, through quota-share reinsurance, we assumed a percentage of the premiums our managing general agency
subsidiary wrote in Alabama on behalf of two other insurance companies. In May 2005, we obtained an insurance
license in Alabama and began writing policies there through one of our insurance company subsidiaries. Although
FAIC is licensed in Texas, some of our business there is currently written by a managing general agency subsidiary
through a county mutual insurance company and is assumed by us through 100% quota-share reinsurance.

At June 30, 2007, our reinsurance receivables totaled $0.3 million, which reflects the run-off of the quota-
share reinsurance. All reinsurance receivables were unsecured and due from Transatlantic Reinsurance Company, a
member of American International Group, Inc., which is rated “A+ (Superior)” by A.M. Best. . .

Technology

The effectiveness of our business model depends in part on the effectiveness of our internally-developed
information technology systems. Qur information systems enable timely and efficient communication and data-
sharing among the various segments of our integrated operalions, including our retail sales offices, insurance
underwriters and claims processors. We believe that this sharing capability provides us with a competitive advantage
over many of our competitors, who must communicate with unaffiliated premium finance companies and with a
large number of independent agents, many of whom use different recordkeeping and information systems that may
not be fully compatible with the insurance company’s systems.

Sales Office Automation. We have emphasized standardization and integration of our systems among our
subsidiaries 1o facilitate the automated capture of information at the earliest point in the sales cycle. All of our retail
sales offices transmit information directly to our central office where policy information-is added to our $ystems
with little additional handling. Our sales offices also have immediate access to current information on policies
through a common network interface or through a distributed database downloaded from our central office. Our
systems enable our retail sales offices to process new business, renewals and endorsements and issue policies,
declaration pages and identification cards. :

Payment Processing. Most of our customers visit our sales offices at least once a month to make a
payment on their policies. System-gencrated receipts are required for all payments collected in our sales offices.
Our sales offices generate balancing reports at the end of each day, prepare bank deposit documents and transmit
electronically all payment records to our central office. Bank deposits are also made electronically through the use
of check-imaging technology. Typically, payments are automatically applied to the applicable policies during the
night following their collection in our sales offices. This results in fewer notices of intent to cancel being gencrated
and fewer policies being cancelled that must be reinstated if a customer’s late payment is processed after
cancellation. We believe that our payment processing methods reduce mailing costs and limit unwarranted policy
cancellations. ' '

Ratings

In December 2006, A.M. Best, which rates insurance companies based on factors of concem to
policyholders, reaffirmed the ratings of our property and casualty insurance company subsidiarics at “B-(Fair).”
FAIC-TN did not commence operations until January 2007 and is currently not rated. The “B (Fair)” rating is the
seventh highest rating amongst a scale of 15 rutings, which currently range from “A-++ (Superior)” to *F (In
Liquidation).” Publications of A.M. Best indicate that the “B (Fair)” rating is assigned to thosc companies that in
AM. Best’s opinion have a fair ability to meet their ongoing obligations to policyholders, but are financially -,
vulnerable to adverse changes in underwriting and economic conditions. In evaluating a company’s financial and
operating performance, A.M. Best reviews the company’s profitability, ieverage and liquidity, as well as its book of
business, the adequacy and soundness of its reinsurance, the quality and estimated market value of its assets, the




adequacy of its loss reserves, the adequacy of its surplus, its capital structure, the experience and competence of its
management and its market presence. A.M. Best’s ratings reflect its opinion of an insurance company’s financial
strength, operating performance and ability 10 meet its obligations to policyholders, and are not recommendations to
potential or current investors to buy, sell or hold our common stock.

Financial institutions and reinsurance companies sometimes use the A.M. Best ratings to help assess the
financial strength and quality of insurance companies. The current ratings of our property and casualty insurance
subsidiaries or their failure to maintain such ratings may dissuade a financial institution or reinsurance company
from conducting business with us or increase our interest or reinsurance costs. We do not believe that the majority
of our customers are motivated to purchase our products and services based on our A.M. Best rating.

Regulatory Envirooment

Insurance Company Regulation. We and our insurance company subsidiaries are regulated by
governmental agencies in the states in which we conduct business and by various federal statutes and regulations.
These state regulations vary by jurisdiction but, among other matters, usually involve:

* regulating premium rates and forms;

¢ setting minimum solvency standards;

e seiting capital and surplus requirements;

¢ licensing companies, agents and, in some states, adjusters;

*  setting requirements for and limiting the types and amounts of investments;

* establishing requirements for the filing of annual statements and other financial reports;
» conducting periodic statutory examinations of the affairs of insurance companies;

¢ requiring prior approval of changes in control and of certain transactions with affiliates;
¢ limiting the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior regulatory approval; and
»  setting standards for advertising and other. market conduct activities.

Required Licensing. We operate under licenses issued by various state insurance authorities. Such licenses
may be of perpetual duration or periodically renewable, provided we continue 10 mect applicable regulatory
requirements. The licenses govern, among other things, the types of insurance coverages and products that may be
offered in the licensing state. Such licenses are typically issued only afier an appropriate application is filed and

prescribed criteria are met. All of our licenses are in good standing. Currently, we hold property and liability
insurance licenses in the following 25 states:

Alabama Missoun
Arizona Nevada
Arkansas New Mexico
Colorado Ohio

Florida Oklahoma
Georgia Pennsylvania
lllinois South Carolina
Indiana Tennessee
lowa Texas
Kansas Utah
Kentucky Virginia
Louisiana West Virginia
Mississippi




In addition, as required by our current operations, we hold a managing gencral agency license in Texas and
motor club licenses in Mississippi and Tennessee. To expand into a new state or offer a new line of insurance or
other new product, we must apply for and obtain the appropriate licenses.

insurance Holding Company Regulation. We operate as an insurance holding company system and are
subject to regulation in the jurisdictions in which our insurance company subsidiarics conduct business. These
regulations require that each insurance company in the holding company system register with the insurance
department of its state of domicile and furnish information conceming the operations of companies within the
holding company system which may materially affect the operations, management or financial condition of the
insurers within the holding company domiciled in that state. We have insurance company subsidiaries that are
organized and domiciled under the insurance statutes of Texas, Georgia and Tennessce. The insurance laws in each
of these states similarly provide that all transactions among members of a holding company system be done at arm’s
length and be shown to be fair and reasonable to the regulated insurer. Transactions between insurance company
subsidiaries and their parents and affiliates typically must be disclosed to the state regulators, and any material or
extraordinary transaction requires prior approval of the applicable state insurance regulator. In addition, a change of
control of a domestic insurer or of any controlling person requires the prior approval of the state insurance regulator.
In general, any person who acquires 10% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the insurer or its parent
company is presumed to have acquired control of the domestic insurer. To the best of our knowledge, we are in
compliance with the regulations discussed above.

Restrictions on Paying Dividends. In the future, we may need to rely on dividends from our insurance
company subsidiarics to meet corporate cash requirements. State insurance regulatory authorities require insurance
companies to maintain specified levels of statutory capital and surplus, The amount of an insurer’s capital and
surplus following payment of any dividends must be reasonable in refation to the insurer’s outstanding liabilities and
adequate to meet its financial needs. Prior approval from state insurance regulatory authorities is gencrally required
in order for an insurance company to declare and pay extraordinary dividends. The payment of ordinary dividends is
limited by the amount of capital and surplus available to the insurer, as determined in accordance with state statutory
accounting practices and other applicable limitations. State insurance regulatory authorities that have Jurisdiction
over the payment of dividends by our insurance company subsidiaries may in the future adopt statutory provisions
more restrictive than those currently in effect. See Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion
of the ability of our insurance company subsidiaries to pay dividends.

Regulation of Rates and Policy Forms. Most states in which our insurance company subsidiaries operate
have insurance laws that require insurance companies to file premium rate schedules and policy or coverage forms
for review and approval. In many cases, such rates and policy forms must be approved prior to use. State insurance
regulators have broad discretion in judging whether an insurer’s rates are adequate, not excessive and not unfairly
discriminatory. Generally, property and casualty insurers are unable to implement rate increases until they show
that the costs associated with providing such coverage have increased. The speed 8t which an insurer can change
rates in response to competition or increasing costs depends, in part, on the method by which the applicable state's
rating laws are administered. There arc three basic rate administration systems: (i} the insurer must file and obtain
regulatory approval of the new rate before using it; (ii) the insurer may begin using the new rate and immediately
file it for regulatory review; or (iii) the insurer may begin using the new rate and file it within a specified period of
time for regulatory review. Under all three rating systems, the state insurance regulators have the authority to
disapprove the rate subsequent to its filing. Thus, insurers who begin using new rates before the rates are approved
may be required to issue premium refunds or credits to policyholders if the new rates are ultimately deemed
excessive and disapproved by the applicable state insurance authorities. In addition, in some states there has been
pressure in the past years to reduce premium rates for automobile and other personal insurance or to limit how often
an insurer may request increases for such rates. To the best of our knowledge, we are in compliance with all such
applicable rate regulations.

Guaranty Funds. Under stale insurance guaranty fund laws, insurers doing business in a state can be
assessed for certain obligations of insolvent insurance companies to policyholders and claimants. Maximum
contributions required by law in any one year vary between 1% and 2% of annual premiums written in that state. In
most states guaranty fund assessments are recoverable either through future policy surcharges or offsets to state
premium tax liability. To date, we have not received any material unrecoverable assessments.
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Investment Regulation, Qur insurance company subsidiaries are subject to state laws and regulations that
require diversification of their investment portfolios and limitations on the amount of investments in certain
categories. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations would cause non-conforming investments to be treated
as non-admitted assets for purposes of measuring statutory policyholders’ surplus and, in some instances, would
require divestiture. If a non-conforming asset is trcated as a non-admitted asset, it would lower the affected
subsidiary’s policyholders’ surplus and thus, its ability to write additional premiums and pay dividends. To the best
of our knowledge, our insurance company subsidiaries are in compliance with all such investment regulations.

Restrictions on Cancellation, Non-Renewal or Withdrawal. Many states have laws and regulations that
limit an insurer’s ability to exit a market. For example, certain states limit an automobile insurer’s ability to cancel
or not renew policies. Some states prohibit an insurer from withdrawing one or more lines of business from the state,
except pursuant to a plan approved by the state insurance department. The state insurance department may
disapprove a plan that may lead to market disruption. Laws and regulations that limit canceltlations and non-renewals
and that subject business withdrawals to prior approval requirements may restrict an insurer’s ability to exit
unprofitable markets. To the best of our knowledge, we are in compliance with such laws and regulations.

Privacy Regulations. In 1999, the United States Congress enacted the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which
protects consumers from the unauthorized dissemination of certain personal information. Subsequently, the majority
of states have implemented additional regulations to address privacy issues. These laws and regulations apply to all
financial institutions, including insurance companies, and require us fo maintain appropriate procedures for
managing and protecting certain personal information of our customers and to fully disclose our privacy practices to
our customers, We may also be exposed to future privacy laws and regulations, which could impose additional costs
and impact our results of operations or financial condition. To the best of our knowledge, we are in compliance with
all current privacy laws and regulations.

Licensing of Our Employee-Agems and Adjusters. All of our employees who sell, solicit or negotiate
insurance are licensed, as required, by the state in which they work, for the applicable line or lines of insurance they
offer. Our employee-agents generally must renew their licenses annually and complete a certain number of hours of
continuing education. In certain states in which we operate, our insurance claims adjusters are also required to be
licensed and are subject to annual continuing education requirements.

Unfair Claims Practices. Generally, insurance companies, adjusting ¢companies and individual claims
adjusters arc prohibited by state statutes from engaging in unfair claims practices which could indicate a general
business practice. Unfair claims practices include, but are not limited to:

* misrcpresenting pertinent facts or insurance policy provisions relating to coverages at issue;

¢ failing to acknowledge and act reasonably promptly upon communications regarding claims arising under
insurance policies;

» failing to affirm or deny coverage of claims within a reasonable time after proof of loss statements have
been completed;

»  attempting to settle claims for less than the amount to which a reasonable person would have believed such
person was entitled,

s  attempting to seitle claims on the basis of an application that was altered without notice to or knowledge or
consent of the insured;

¢ making known to insureds or claimants a policy of appealing from arbitration awards in favor of insureds
or claimants for the purpose of compelling them to accept settlements or compromises less than the amount
awarded in arbitration;

s delaying the investigation or payment of claims by requiring an insured, claimant or the physician of either
to submit a preliminary claim report and then requiring the subsequent submission of formal proof of loss
forms, both of which submissions contain substantially the same informatton;

¢ failing to settle claims promptly, where liability has become reasonably clear, under one portion of the
insurance policy coverage in order to influence settlements under other portions of the insurance policy
coverage; and
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not attempting in good faith to effectuate prompt, fair and equitable settlements of claims in which liability
has become reasonably clear.

We set business conduct policies and conduct regular training to make our employee-adjusters and other
claims personnel aware of these prohibitions, and we require them to conduct their activities in compliance with
these statutes. To the best of our knowledge, we have not engaged in any unfair claims practices.

Quarterly and Annual Financial Reporting. We are required to file quarterly and annual financial reports
with states utilizing statutory accounting practices that are different from generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP"), which reflect our insurance subsidiarics on a going concern basis. The statutory accousnting practices
used by state regulators, in keeping with the intent to assure policyholder protection, are generally based on a
liquidation concept. For statutory financial information on our insurance company subsidiaries, see Note 19 to our
consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Periodic Financial and Market Conduct Examinations. The state insurance departinents that have
jurisdiction over our insurance company subsidiaries conduct on-site visits and examinations of the insurers’ affairs,
especially as to their financial condition, ability to fulfill their obligations to policyholders, market conduct, claims
practices and compliance with other laws and applicable regulations. Typically, these examinations are conducted
every three to five years. In addition, if circumstances dictate, regulators are authorized to conduct special or target
examinations of insurers, insurance agencies and insurance adjusting companies to address particular concerns or
issues, The results of these examinations can give rise to regulatory orders requiring remedial, injunctive or other
corrective action on the part of the company that is the subject of the examination. FAIC has been examined by the
Tennessee Department of Commerce and Insurance for financial condition through December 31, 2001 and for
market conduct through December 31, 2003. FAIC-GA has been examined by the Georgia Department of [nsurance
for financial condition through December 31, 2004. FAIC-TN received an organizational examination by the
Tennessee Department of Commerce and Insurance as of December 4, 2006. None of our insurance company
subsidiaries has ever been the subject of a target examination.

Risk-Based Capital. In order to enhance the regulation of insurer solvency, the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners, or “NAIC,” has adopted a formula and model law to implement risk-based capital, or
“RBC,” requirements designed to assess the minimum amount of statutory capital that an insurance company needs
to support its overall business operations and to ensure that it has an acceptably low expectation of becoming
financially impaired. RBC is used to set capital requirements based on the size and degree of risk taken by the
insurer and taking into account various risk factors such as asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk, interest rate risk
and other relevant business risks. The NAIC model law provides for increasing levels of regulatory intervention as
the ratio of an insurer’s total adjusted capital decreases relative to its risk-based capital, culminating with mandatory
control of the operations of the insurer by the domiciliary insurance department at the so-called mandatory control
level. This calculation is performed on a calendar year basis, and at December 31, 2006, both FAIC and FAIC-GA
maintained an RBC level that was in excess of an amount that would require any corrective actions on their part. At
December 31, 2006, FAIC-TN had not yet commenced operations. '

RBC is a comprehensive financial analysis system affecting nearly all types of licensed insurers, including
our insurance subsidiaries. It is designed to evaluate the relative financial condition of the insurer by application of a
weighting formula to the company’s assets and its policyholder obligations. The key RBC calculation is to recast
1otal surplus, after application of the RBC formula, in terms of an authorized control level RBC. Once the authorized
control level RBC is determined, it is contrasted against the company's total adjusted capital. A high multiple
generally indicates stronger capitalization and financial strength, while a lower multiple reflects lesser capitalization
and strength. Each state’s statutes also create certain RBC multiples at which either the company or the regulator
must take action, For example, there are four defined RBC levels that trigger different regulatory events. The
minimum RBC level is called the company action level RBC and is generally defined as the product of 2.0 and the
company's authorized control level RBC. The authorized control level RBC is a number determined under the risk-
based capital formula in accordance with certain RBC instructions. Next is a regulatory action level RBC, which is
defined as the product of 1.5 and the company's authorized control level RBC. Below the regulatory action level
RBC is the authorized control level RBC. Finally, there is a mandatory contro! level RBC, which means the product
of 0.70 and the company’s authorized control level RBC.
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As long as the company’s total adjusted capital stays above the company action level RBC (i.e., at greater
than 2,0 times the authorized control level RBC), regulators generally will not take any corrective action. However,
if an insurance company’s total adjusted capital falls below the company action Jevel RBC, but remains above the
regulatory action level RBC, the company is required to submit an RBC plan to the applicable state regulator(s) that
tdentifies the conditions that contributed to the substandard RBC level and identifies a remediation plan to increase
the company's total adjusted capital above 2.0 times its authorized control level RBC. If a company’s total adjusted
capital falls below its regulatory action level RBC but remains above its authorized control level RBC, then the
regulator may require the insurer to submit an RBC plan, perform a financial examination or analysis on the
company's assets and liabilities, and may issuc an order specifying corrective action for the company to take to
improve its RBC number. In the event an insurance company's total adjusted capital falls below its authorized
control level RBC, the state regulator may require the insurer to submit an RBC plan or may place the insurer under
regulatory supervision. If an insurance company’s total adjusted capital were to fall below its mandatory control
level RBC, the regulator is cbligated to place the insurer under regulatory control, which could ultimately include,
among other actions, administrative supervision, rehabilitation or liquidation.

As of December 31, 2006, FAIC’s total adjusted capital was 2.7 times its authorized control level RBC,
requiring no corrective action on FAIC’s part. As of December 31, 2006, FAIC-GA’s total adjusted capital was 3.6
times its authorized control level RBC, requiring no corrective action on FAIC-GA’s part. At December 31, 2006,
FAIC-TN had not yet commenced operations.

IRIS Ratios. The NAIC Insurance Regulatory Information System, or IRIS, is part of a collection of
analytical tools designed to provide state insurance regulators with an integrated approach to screening and
analyzing the financial condition of insurance companies operating in their respective states. IRIS is intended 1o
assist state insurance regulators in targeting resources to those insurers in greatest need of regulatory attention. IRIS
consists of two phases: statistical and analytical. In the statistical phase, the NAIC database generates key financial
ratio results based on financial information ‘obtained from insurers’ annual statutory statements. The analytical phase
is a review of the annual statements, financial ratios and other automated solvency tools. The primary goal of the
analytical phase is to identify companies that appear to require immediate regulatory attention. A ratio result falling
outside the usual range of IRIS ratios is not considered a failing result; rather, unusual values are viewed as pant of
the regulatory early monitoring system. Furthermore, in some years, it may not be unusual for financially sound
insurance companies to have several ratios with results outside the usual ranges.

As of December 31, 2006, FAIC had four [RIS ratios outside the usual range and FAIC-GA had one IRIS
ratio outside the usual range as follows:

*  FAIC had a ratio outside the usual range for high investment yicld as the calculated yield was above
6.5%. The calculated yicld was 18.9% and was inflated as a result of the inclusion of a dividend
received during the year from FAIC-GA. Excluding this dividend, the calculated yicld would have
been 4.0% which is above the low end of the investment yield range of 3%.

¢ FAIC had a ratio outside of the usual IRIS range for the change in net premiums written, which is plus
or minus 33%. Net premiums written increased 82% primarily as the result of FAIC's growth from the
development of recently-added retail locations in Florida and Texas and from the acquisition of retail
stores in Chicago, lllinois in January 2006.

*  FAIC had ratios outside of the usual IRIS range for both the gross and net changes in capital and
surplus, which are plus or minus 50% and 25%, respectively. FAIC increased its gross and net capital
and surplus by 125% and 83%, respectively, primarily through capital contributions to support its
premium growth. The net change in capital and surplus excludes amounts that are paid in. FAIC-GA
also had a ratio out of the usual IRIS range for the net change in capital and surplus. Cn a nct basis,
FAIC-GA reduced its capital and surplus by 26% which was primarily the result of paying a dividend
during the year to FAIC,

These RIS results were provided to regulators on February 23, 2007. Since that date, no regulatory action
has been taken, nor is any such action anticipated.
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Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we had approximately 1,350 employees. Our employees are not covered by any
collective bargaining agreements.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and other reports from time to time. The public may read and copy any materials
filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, NW, Washington D.C.
20549, The public may obtain information about the operation of the Public Reference Room on-line at
www.sec.gov/info/edgar/prrrules.htm or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. We are an electronic filer, and the
SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains our reports, proxy and information statements, and
other information filed clectronically. These website addresses are provided as inactive textual references only, and
the information provided on those websites is not part of this report and is therefore not incorporated by reference
unless such information is otherwise specifically referenced elsewhere in this report.

Internet Website

The Company maintains an internet website at the following address: www.firstacceptancecorp.com. The
information on the Company's website is not incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
make available on or through our website certain reports and amendments to these reports that we file with or
furnish to the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These include our annual
reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K. We make this
information available on our website free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable afier we electronically file the
information with, or fumish it to, the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our loss and loss adjustment expenses may exceed our reserves, which would adversely impact our results of
operations and financial condition.

We establish reserves for the estimated amount of claims under terms of the insurance policies underwritten
by our insurance company subsidiaries. The amount of the reserve is determined based on historical claims
information, industry statistics and other factors. The establishment of appropriate reserves is an inherently uncertain
process due to a number of factors, including the difficulty in predicting the frequency and severity of claims, the
rate of inflation, the rate and direction of changes in trends, ongoing interpretation of insurance policy provisions by
courts, inconsistent decisions in lawsuits regarding coverage and broader theories of liability. Any changes in claims
settlement practices can also lead to changes in loss payment patterns, which are used to estimate reserve levels.
Recently, our ability to accurately estimate our loss and loss adjustment expense reserves has been made more
difficult by our rapid growth and entry into new states. If our reserves prove to be inadequate, we will be required to
increase our loss reserves and the amount of any such increase would reduce our income.in the period that the
deficiency is recognized. The historic development of reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses may not
necessarily reflect future trends in the development of these amouits. Consequently, our actual losses could
materially exceed our loss reserves, which would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.

Our ability to use net operating loss carryforwards to reduce future tax payments may be limited.

Based on our calculations and in accordance with the rules stated in the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code™), we do not believe that any “ownership change,” as described in the following paragraph and
as defined in Section 382 of the Code, has occurred with respect to our net operating losses (“NOLs") and
accordingly we believe that there is no existing annual limitation under Section 382 of the Code on our ability to use
NOLS to reduce our future taxable income. We did not obtain, and currently do not plan to obtain, an IRS ruling or
opinion of counsel regarding either of these conclusions.
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Generally, an ownership change occurs if certain persons or groups increase their aggregate ownership of
our total capital stock by more than 50 percentage points in any three-year period. If an ownership change occurs,
our ability to use our NOLs to reduce income taxes is limited to an annual amount (the “Section 382 limitation™)
equal to the fair market value of our stock immediately prior to the ownership change multiplied by the long term
tax-exempt interest rate, which is published monthly by the Intemal Revenue Service, In the event of an ownership
change, NOLs that exceed the Section 382 limitation in any year will continue to be ajlowed as carryforwards for
the remainder of the carryforward period and such excess NOLs can be used to offset taxable income for years .
within the carryforward period subject to the Section 382 limitation in each year. Regardless of whether an
ownership change occurs, the carryforward period for NOLs is cither 15 or 20 years from the year in which the
losses giving rise to the NOLs were incurred, depending on when those losses were incurred. The earliest losses that
gave rise to our remaining NOLs were incurred in 1993 and will expire in 2008. The most recent losses that gave
rise to our NOLs were incurred in 2003 and will expire in 2023. If the carryforward period for any NOL were to
expire before that NOL had been fully utilized, the use of the unutilized portion of that NOL would be permanently
prohibited. Our use of new NOLs arising after the date of an ownership change would not be affected by the Section
382 limitation, unless there were another ownership change after those new NOLs arose,

It is impossible for us 1o state that an ownership change will not occus in the future. In addition, limitations
imposed by Code Section 382 and the restrictions contained in our certificate of incorporation may limit our ability
to issue additional stock to raise capital or acquire businesses. To the extent not prohibited by our certificate of
incorporation, we may decide in the future that it is necessary or in our interest to take certain actions that could
result in an ownership change.

Code Section 269 permits the IRS to disallow any deduction, credit or allowance, including the utilization
of NOLSs, that otherwise would not be available but for the acquisition of contro! of a corporation, including
acquisition by merger, for the principal purpose of avoiding federal income taxes, including avoidance through the
use of NOLs. If the IRS were to assert that the principal purpose of the April 2004 acquisition of USAuto was the
avoidance of federal income tax, we would have the burden of proving that this was not the principal purpose. The
determination of the principal purpose of a transection is purely a question of fact and requires an analysis of all the
facts and circumstances surrounding the transaction. Courts generally have been reluctant to apply Code Section 269
where a reasonable business purpose existed for the timing and form of the transaction, even if the availability of 1ax
benefits was also an acknowledged consideration in the transaction. We think that Code Section 269 should not
apply to the acquisition of USAuto because we can show that genuine business purposes existed for the USAuto
acquisition and that tax avoidance was not the principal purpose for the merger, Qur primary objective of the merger
was to seek long-term growth for our stockholders through an acquisition. To that end, we redeployed a significant
amount of our existing capital and offered our existing stockholders the right to make a substantial additional
investment in the Company 1o facilitate the acquisition of USAuto. If, nevertheless, the RS were to assert that Code
Section 269 applied and if such assertion were sustained, our ability to utilize our existing NOLs would be severely
limited or extinguished. Due to the fact that the application of Code Section 269 is ultimately a question of fact,
there can be no assurance that the IRS would not prevail if it were to assert the application of Code Section 269.

The loss of our President and Chief Executive Officer, Stephen J. Harrison, could negatively affect our ability 0
conduct our business efficiently and could lead to loss of customers.

Our success is largely dependent on the skills, experience, effort and performance of our President and
Chief Executive Officer, Stephen J. Harrison. The loss of the services of Mr. Harrison could have 2 material adverse
effect on us and could hinder our ability to implement our business strategy successfully. We have an employment
agreement with Mr. Harrison that does not have a fixed term of employment, but may be terminated by us or Mr.
Harrison at any time, We also maintain a “key man” insurance policy for Mr. Harrison.

Our business is highly competitive, which may make it difficult for us to market our core products effectively and
profttably.

The non-standard personal automobile insurance business is highly competitive. We believe that our
primary insurance company competition comes not onty from national insurance companies or their subsidiaries, but
also from non-standard insurers and independent agents that operate in a specific region or single state in which we
also operate. We believe that our significant competitors are the Allstate insurance group, the Berkshire Hathaway
insurance group (including GEICO), the Bristol West insurance group, the Dircct General insurance group, the
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Infinity insurance group, the Progressive insurance group, the AIG insurance group, and the State Farm insurance
group. Some of our competitors have substantiatly greater financial and other resources than us, and they may offer
a broader range of products or competing products at lower prices. Our revenues, profitability and financial
condition could be materially adversely affected if we are required to decrease or are unable to increase prices to
stay competitive or if we do not successfully retain our current customers and attract new customers.

Our business may be adversely affected by negative developments in the states in which we operate.

We currently operate in 12 states located primarily in the Southeastern and Midwestemn United States. For
the year ended June 30, 2007, approximately 23% and 18% of our gross premiums earned were generated from non-
standard personal automobile insurance policies written in Georgia and Florida, respectively. Qur revenues and
profitability are affected by the prevailing regulatory, economic, demographic, competitive and other conditions in
the states in which we operate. Changes in any of these conditions could make it more costly or difficult for us to
conduct business. Adverse regulatory developments, which could include reductions in the maximum rates
permitted to be charged, restrictions on rate increases or fundamental changes to the design or implementation of the
automobile insurance regulatory framework, could reduce our revenues, increase our expenses or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, these developments could
have a greater effect on us, as compared with more diversified insurers that also scll other types of automobile
insurance products, write other additional lines of insurance coverages or whose premiums are not as concentrated in
a single line of insurance.

Our business may be adversely affected by negative developments in the non-standard personal automobile
insurance industry. :

Substantially all of our gross premiums written are generated from sales of non-standard personal
automobile insurance policics. As a result of our concentration in this line of business, negative developments in the
economic, competitive or regulatory conditions affecting the non-standard personal automobile insurance industry
could reduce our revenues, increase our expenses or otherwise have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition. In addition, these developments could have a greater effect on us compared with
more diversified insurers that also sell other types of automobile insurance products or write other additional lines of
insurance.

Our results may fluctuate as a result of cyclical changes in the personal automobile insurance industry.

The non-standard personal automobile insurance industry is cyclical in nature. In the past, the industry has
been characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of high premium rates
and shortages of underwriting capacity. 1f new competitors enter this market, existing competitors may attempt to
increase market share by lowering rates. Such conditions could lead to reduced prices, which would negatively
impact our revenues and profitability. We believe that between 2002 and 2003, the underwriting results in the
personal automobile insurance industry improved as a result of favorable pricing and competitive conditions that
allowed for broad increases in rate levels by insurers. However, since then we have witnessed a stabilization
followed by a reduction in premiums and rates across most states. Given the cyclical nature of the industry, these
conditions may negatively impact our revenues and profitability.

Our investment portfolio may suffer reduced returns or losses, which could reduce our profitability.

Our results of operations depend, in part, on the performance of our invested assets. As of June 30, 2007,
substantially all of our investment portfolio was invested either directly or indirectly in debt securities, primarily in
liquid state, municipal, corporate and federal government bonds and collateralized monigage obligations.
Fluctuations in interest rates affect our returns on, and the fair value of, debt sccurities. Unrealized gains and losses
on debt securities are recognized in other comprehensive income and increase or decrease our stockholders' equity.
As of June 30, 2007, the amortized cost of our investment portfolio exceeded the fair value by $2.8 million. We
believe the unrealized loss is temporary; however, an increase in interest rates could further reduce the fair value of
our investments in debt securities. As of June 30, 2007, the impact of an immediate 100 basis point increase in
market interest rates on our fixed maturities portfolio would have resulted in an estimated decrease in fair value of
4.5%, or approximately $7.9 million. In addition, defaults by third parties who fail to pay or perform obligations
could reduce our investment income and could also result in investment losses to our portfolio.
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We rely on our information technology and communication systems, and the failure of these systems could
materially and adversely affect our business. )

Cur business is highly dependent on the proprietary integrated technology systems that enable timely and
efficient communication and data sharing among the various segments of our integrated operations. These systems
are used in all our operations, including quotation, policy issuance, customer service, underwriting, claims,
accounting, and communications, We have a technical siaff that develops, maintains and supports all elements of
our technology, infrastructure, However,.disruption of power systems or communication systems could result in
deterioration in our ability to respond to customers’ requests, write and service new business, and process claims in
a timely manner. We believe we have appropriate types and levels of insurance to protect our real property,
systems, and other assets. However, insurance does not prowde full reimbursement for all Iosses both direct and
indirect, that may result f.rom such an event. | . _ O

t

We may have difficulties in managing our expansion into new markets.

Our future growth plans rf_lay include expanding into new states by opening new sales offices, acquiring the
business and assets of local agencies and possibly introducing additional insurance products. In order to grow our
business successfully, we must apply for and maintain necessary licenses, properly design and price our products
and identify, hire and train new claims, underwriting and.sales employees. Our expansion wiil also place significant
demands on our management, operations, Systems, accounting, internal controls and financial resources. If we fail to
do any one of these well, we may not be able to expand our business successfully. Even if we successfully complete
an acquisition, we face the risk that we may acquire business in states in which market and other conditions may not
be favorable to us. Any failure by us to manage growth and to respond to changes in our business could have a
material edverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations._ .

We may not be successful in identifying agency acquisition candidates or integrating their opemnons, which
could harm our fi uancml results. .

v A

In order [ grow our business by acquisition, we must ldcnufy agency candidates and integrate thc
operauons of acqmred agencies, 1f we are unable to identify and acquire appropriate agency acquisition candidates,
we may experience slower growth. If we do acquire additional agencics, we could face increased costs, or, if we are
unable to successfully integrate the operations of the acquired agency into ous operations, we could experience
dlsrupuon of our business and distraction of our management, which may not be offsét by corresponding increases
in revenues. The integration of operations after an acquisition is subject to risks, including, among others, loss of
key personnel] of the acquired company, dlfﬁculty associated with assimilating the personnel and operations of the
acquired company, potential disruption of ongoing business, maintenance of uniform standards, controls, procedures
and policics and impairment of the acquired company s reputation and relationships with its employees and clients.
Any of these may result in the loss of customers. It is also possublc that we may not realize, cither at all orin a
timely manser, any or all benefits from recent and futire acquisitions and may incur significant costs in connection
with these acquisitions. Failure to successfully integrate future acquisitions could materially adversely affect the
results of our opcrations. , AT
Our insurance company subsidiaries are subject to srammry capual and surplus requ.‘remens and other
standards, and their failure to meet these requiremems or standards could subject them to regulatory actions.

Our insurance company subsidiaries are subject to risk-bascd capital standards, which we refer to as RBC "
standards, and other minimum statutory capital and surplus requirements imposed under the laws of their respective
states of domicile. The RBC standards, which are based upon the RBC Madel Act .gdopted by the NAIC, require our
insurance company subsidiaries to annually report their results of risk-based capital calculations to the state |
departments of insurance and the NAIC.

" Failure to meet applicable risk-based capital requxremems or minimum slaiutoxy capital and surplus
requirements could subject our insurance company subsidiaries to further examination or corrective action imposed
by state regulators, mcludmg limitations on their writing of additiona) business, state supcrvusuon or even
Ilquldauon Any changes in existing RBC reqmrcmcnts or mmunum statutory capital and surplus requirements may
require our insurance company subsidiaries to increase their statutory capital and surplus levels, which they may be
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unable to do. This calculation is performed on a calendar year basis, and at December 31, 2006, both FAIC and
FAIC-GA maintained an RBC level in excess of an amount that would require any corrective actions on their part.
At December 31, 2006, FAIC-TN had not commenced operations.

' State regulators also screen and analyze the financial condition of insurance companies using the NAIC
Insurance Regulatory Information System, or IRIS. As part of IRIS, the NAIC databasc generates key financial ratio
results obtained from an insurer’s annual statutory statements. A ratio result falling outside the usual range of IRIS
ratios may result in further examination by a state regulator to determine if corrective action is necessary. As of
December 31, 2006, FAIC and FAIC-GA had IRIS ratios outside the usual ranges that were reported to the
appropriate regulatory authorities, but no regulatory authority has informed the insurance company subsidiaries that
it intends to conduct a further examination of their financial condition. We cannot assure you that regulatory
authorities will not conduct any such examination of the financial condition of our insurance company subsidiaries,
or of the outcome of any such investigation. See “Business ~ Regulatory Environment.”

New pricing, claim and coverage issues and class action litigation are continually emerging in the automobile
insurance industry, and these new issues could adversely impact our revenues or our methods of doing business.

As automobile insurance industry practices and regulatory, judicial and consumer conditions change,
unexpected and unintended issues related to claims, coverages and business practices may emerge. These issues can
have an adverse effect on our business by changing the way we price our products extending coverage beyond our
underwriting intent, requiring us to obtain additional licenses or mcreasmg the size of claims. Recent examples of
some emerging lssues inctude: -

» concems over the use of an applicant’s credit score or zip code as a factor in making risk selections and
pricing decisions;

e agrowing trend of plaintiffs targeting automobile insurers in purported class action litigation relating to
claims-handling practices, such as total loss evaluation methodology, the use of aflermarket (non-original
equipment manufacturer) parts and the alleged diminution in value to insureds’ vehicles involved in
accidents; and

¢ consumer groups lobbying state leglslatums to regulate and require separale licenses for individuals and
" companies engaged in the sale of ancillary products or services,

The effects of these and other unforeseen emerging issues could negatively affect our revenues or our
methods of doing busmess

Due to our largely Sfixed cost structure, our profitability may decline if our sales volume were to decline
significantly.

Our reliance on leased retail sales offices staffed by employee-agents results in a cost structure that has a
h:gh proporuon of fixed costs. In times of increasing sales volume, our acquisition cost per policy decreases,
lmprovmg our expense ratio, which we believe is one of the significant advantages of our business model. However,
in times of declining sales volume, the opposite would occur. A decline in sales volume could decrease our
profitability, cause us to close some of our retail sales offices or lay off some employce-agenis to manage our
expenses.

Severe weather conditions and other catastrophes may result in an increase in the number and amount of claims
Jiled against us.

Our business is exposed to the risk of severe weather conditions and other catastrophes. Catastrophes can
be caused by various events, including natural events, such as severe winter weather, hurricanes, tomados,
windstorms, earthquakes, hailstorms, thunderstorms and fires, and other events, such as explosions, terrorist attacks
and riots. The incidence and severity of catastrophes and severe weather conditions are inherently unpredictable.
Severe weather conditions generally result in more automobile accidents, leading to an increase in the number of
claims filed and/or the amount of compensation sought by claimants.
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In the event thai a severe weather condition or other major catastrophe were 1o occur resulting in property
losses to us, we would have to cover such losses using additional resources, which could increase our losses
incurred, cause our statutory capital and surplus to fall below required levels or otherwise have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

A few of our stockhalders have significant control over us, and their interests may differ from yours.

Theee of our stockholders, Gerald J. Ford, our Chairman of the Board; Stephen ). Harrison, our President
and Chief Executive Officer; and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., our Executive Vice President and Secretary, in the
aggregate, control 62% of our outstanding common stock. If these stockholders acted or voted together, they would
have the power to control the election and removal of our directors. They would also have significant control over
other marters requiring stockholder approval, including the approval of major corporate transactions and proposed
amendments to our certificate of incorporation. In addition, this concentration of ownership may delay or prevent a
change in control of our company, as wel! as frustrate attempts to replace or remove current management, even
when a change may be in the best interests of our other stockholders. Furthermore, the interests of these
stockholders may not always coincide with the interests of our company or other stockholders.

Our insurance company subsidiaries are subject ro regulatory restrictions on paying dividends to us.

State insurance laws limit the ability of our insurance company subsidiaries 1o pay dividends and require
our insurance company subsidiaries to maintain specified minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus. These
restrictions affect the ability of our insurance company subsidiaries to pay dividends to us and may require our
subsidiaries to obtain the prior approval of regulatory authorities, which could slow the timing of such payments to
us or reduce the amount that can be paid. To the extent we may need to rely, in part, on receiving dividends from
the insurance company subsidiaries, the limit on the amount of dividends that can be paid by the insurance company
subsidiaries may affect our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders. The dividend-paying ability of the
insurance company subsidiaries is discussed in Note 19 1o the consolidated financial statements.

We and our subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive regulation and supervision that may restrict our ability to
earn profits. '

We and our subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive regulation and supervision by the insurance
departments in the states where our subsidiaries are domiciled and where our subsidiaries sell insurance and
ancillary products, issue policies and handle claims. Certain regulatory restrictions and prior approval requirements
may affect our subsidiaries’ ability to operate, change their operations or obtain necessary rate adjustments in a
timely manner or may increase our costs and reduce profitability.

Among cther things, regulation and supervision of us and our subsidiaries extends to:

Required Licensing. We and our subsidiarics operate under licenses issued by various state insurance
authorities. These licenses govern, amaong other things, the types of insurance coverages, agency and claims services
and motor club products that we and our subsidiaries may offer consumers in the particular state. Such licenses
typically arc issued only after the filing of an appropriate application and the satisfaction of prescribed criteria. In
addition, the licensing procedures of the states in which we and our subsidiaries operate differ somewhat from state-
to-state. We and our subsidiaries must determine which licenses, if any, are required in a particular state and apply
for and obtain the appropriate licenses before we can implement any plan to expand into a new state or offer a new
line of insurance or other new product. If a regulatory authority denies or delays granting such new license, our
ability to enter new markets quickly or offer new products can be substantially impaired.

Transactions Between Insurance Companies and Their Affiliates. Our insurance company subsidiaries are
organized and domiciled under the insurance statutes of Texas, Georgia and Tennessee. The insurance laws in these
states provide that all transactions among members of an insurance holding company system must be done at arm's
length and shown 10 be fair and reasonable to the regulated insurer. Transactions between our insurance company
subsidiaries and other subsidiaries generally must be disclosed to the state regulators, and prior approval of the
applicable regulator generally is required before any material or extraordinary transaction may be consummated.
State regulators may refuse to approve or delay approval of such a transaction, which may impact our ability to
innovate or operate efficiently.
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Regulation of Rates and Policy Forms. The insurance laws of most states in which our insurance company
subsidiaries operate require insurance companies to file premium rate schedules and policy forms for review and
approval, State insurance regulators have broad discretion in judging whether our rates are adequate, not excessive
and not unfairly discriminatory. The speed at which we can change our rates in response to market conditions or
increasing costs depends, in part, on the method by which the applicable state’s rating laws are administered.
Generally, state insurance rcgulators have the authority to disapprove our requested rates. Thus, if as permitted in
some states, we begin using new ratcs before they are approved, we may be required to issue premium refunds or
credits to our policyholders if the new rates are ultimately deemed excessive or unfair and disapproved by the
applicable state regulator. In addition, in some states, there has been pressure in past years to reduce premium rates
for automobile and other personal insurance or to [imit how often an insurer may request increases for such rates. In
states where such pressure is applied, our ability to respond to market developments or increased costs in that state
may be adversely affected.

Investment Resirictions. Our insurance company subsidiaries are subject to state laws and regulations that
require diversification of their investment portfolios and that limit the amount of investments in certain categorics.
Failure to comply with these laws and regulations would cause non-corforming investments o be treated as non-
admined assets for purposes of measuring statutory capital and surplus and, in some instances, would require
divestiture. If a non-conforming asset is treated as a non-admitied asset, it would lower the affected subsidiary’s
capital and surplds and thus, its ability to write additional premiums and pay dividends.

Restrictions on Cancellation, Non-Renewa! or Withdrawal. Many states have laws and regulations that
limit ari insurer’s ability to exit a market. For example, certain states limit an automobile insurer's ability 1o cancel
or not renew policies. Some states prohibit an insurer from withdrawing from one or more lines of business in the
state, except pursuant to a plan approved by the state insurance department. The state insurance department may
disapprove a plan that may lead to market disruption. To date, none of these restrictions has had an impact on our
operations or strategic planning in the states in which we operate. However, these laws and regulations that limit
cancellations and non-renewals and that subject business withdrawals to prior approval restrictions could limit our
ability to exit unprofitable markets or discontinue unprofitable products in the future.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may prevent a takeover or a change in management that
you may deem favorable.

Our certificate of incorporation contains prohibitions on the transfer of our common stock to avoid
limitations on the use of the NOL carryforwards and other federal income tax attributes that we inherited from our
predecessor. These restrictions could prevent or inhibit a third party from acquiring us. Our certificate of
incorporation generally prohibits, without the prior approval of our board of directors, any transfer of common
stock, any subsequent issue of voting stock or stock that participates in our earnings or growth, and certain options
with respect to such stock, if the transfer of such stock or options would (i) cause any group or person to own 4.9%
or more, by aggregate value, of the outstanding shares of our common stock, (ii) increase the ownership position of
any person or group that already owns 4.9% or more, by aggregate value, of the outstanding shares of our common’
stock, or (iii) cause any person or group to be treated like the owner of 4.9% or more, by aggregate value, of our
outstanding shares of common stock for tax purposcs,

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws also contain the foltowing provisions that could prevent or
inhibit a third party from acquiring us:

* the requirement that only stockholders owning at least one-third of the outstanding shares of our common
stock may call a special stockholders’ meeting; and

e the requirement that stockholders owning at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our common stock
must approve any amendment to our certificate of incorporation provisions concerning the transfer
restrictions and the special stockholders’ meetings.

In addition, under our certificate of incorporation, we may issue shares of preferred stock on terms that are

unfavorable to the holders of our common stock. The issuance of shares of preferred stock could also prevent or
inhibit a third party from acquiring us. The existence of these provisions could depress the price of our common
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stock, could delay or prevent a takeover attempt or could prevent attempts to replace or remove incumbent
management.

Item 1B. Unresolved Stafl Comments

None.
Executive Officers of the Registrant

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the following information regarding our executive
officers is included in Part 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K in liev of being included in the Proxy Statement

for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on November 7, 2007,

The following table sets forth certain information concerning our executive officers:

Name Age Position
Stephen J. Harrison............... 55  President and Chief Executive Officer
Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.......... 57  Executive Vice President and Secretary
Edward L. Pierce.................. 50  Execulive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Kevin P, Cohn .................. 38  Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controtler
Michael J. Bodayle............... 51 Chief Financial Officer - Insurance Company Operations
William R. Pentecost ............. 49  Chief Information Officer
Randy L. Reed .....coovevinnnnn 51  Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing

Stephen J. Harrison has served as President and Chief Exccutive Officer of the Company since April 2004,
Mr. Harrison co-founded FAIC, USAuto's predecessor company, in 1995 and served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of USAuto from USAuto's inception. He has over 30 years expenence in insurance and related
industries, including automobile insurance and insurance agency operations. From 1974 to 1991, he served in
various capacities with the Harrison Insurance Agency, a family-owned multi-line insurance agency. From 1991 to
1993, Mr. Harrison served as President of Direct Insurance Company, a non-standard automobile insurance
company. Mr. Hamison is the brother of Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., who is Executive Vice President and Secretary of
the Company.

Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. has served as Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company since April
2004. Mr. Harrison co-founded FAIC, USAuto's predecessor company, in 1995 and has served as Vice President
and Secretary of USAuto from USAuto's inception. He has over 30 years experience in insurance and related
industries, including automobile insurance and insurance agency operations. From 1976 to 1995, Mr. Harrison
served in various capacities with the Harrison Insurance Agency, a family-owned multi-ling insurance agency,
Mr. Harrison is the brother of Stephen J. Harrison, who is President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Edward L. Pierce has served as Executive Vice President of the Company since August 2006 and Chief
Financial Officer sincc October 2006. From May 2001 through February 2006, Mr. Pierce served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer and as a director of BindView Development Corporation, a publicly-traded
network security software development company. From November 1994 through January 2001, Mr. Pierce held
various financial management positions, including Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, with
Metamor Worldwide Corporation, a publicly-traded global information technology services company. Previously,
Mr. Pierce was Corporate Controller of American Oil and Gas Corporation and a Senior Audit Manager at Arthur
Andersen & Co.

Kevin P. Cohn has served as Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller of the Company since
October 2006, From May 2001 through May 2006, he served as Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Corporate Controller of BindView Development Corporation, a publicly-traded network security softwarc
development company. From December 1997 until February 2001, Mr. Cohn was employed by Metamor
Worldwide Inc., a publicly-traded global information technology services company, where he was Vice President,
Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller. Before that, Mr. Cohn was employed with Emst & Young LLP
as an Audit Manager. )
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Michael J, Bodayle has served as Chief Financial Officer — Insurance Company Operations of the
Company since April 2004, Mr. Bodayle has been Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company's
insurance company subsidiaries since March 2004 and had served as USAuto's Treasurer and Chief Financial
Officer since July 1998. He has over 25 years of experience focused primarily in the insurance industry, which
includes auditing, financial reporting and insurance agency operations. He has over seven years of public accounting
experience and was formerly a Senior Audit Manager with Peat, Marwick, Main (now known as KPMG) from 1980
to 1985, From 1985 to 1996, Mr. Bodayle was Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer for Titan Holdings, Inc., a
publicly-traded insurance holding company.

William R, Pentecost has been Chief Information Officer of the Company since April 2004. Mr. Pentecost
was USAuto's Chief Information Officer from USAuto's inception in 1995. He has over 15 years experience with
insurance company information systems. Mr. Pentecost is also a Chartered Property Casualty Underwriter.

Randy L. Reed has been Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing of the Company since April 2004.
Mr. Reed was USAuto's Vice President — Sales and Marketing since February 1997. Prior to February 1997, Mr.
Reed served for‘over ten years as co-owner and President of Reed Oil Company, Inc., a wholesaler and retailer
involved in the oil jobber business. .

Item 2. Properties

We lcasc office space in Nashville, Tennessee for our executive offices (approximately 21,000 square feet)
and for our claims and customer service center (approximately 51,000 square feet). We also lease office space in
Chicago, Illinois, Tampa, Florida and Irving, Texas for our regional claims offices and in Chicago, Ilinois and
Houston, Texas for our regional customer service centers. Our retail locations are all leased and typically are
located in storefronts in retail shopping centers, and each location typically contains less than 1,000 square feet of
space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We and our subsidiaries are named from time to time as defendants in various legal actions that are
incidental to our business, including those which arise out of or are related to the handling of claims made in
connection with our insurance policies. The plaintiffs in some of these lawsuits have alleged bad faith or
extracontractual damages, and some have sought punitive damages or class action status.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters subject to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended
Jure 30, 2007.
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PART Il - .
1 - s . .
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information C. .

Our common stock is currently quoted on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FAC”, The
following table sets forth quarterly high and low bid prices for our common stock for the periods indicated based
upon quotations periodically published on the New York Stock Exchange. All price quotations represent prices
between dealers, without accounting for retail mark-ups, mark-downs or commissions, and may not represent actual
transactions.

Price Range .

High Low

Year Ended June 30, 2006
First Quarter......c.ocecomeernececrnecrisecsnecennes e eearrebanbes $10.37 $ 877
Second QUANtET........ccvviiniinininirne e e 10.66 9.59

- Third QUAMET......cv e e e ssbesansr e 11.34 10.06
Fourth QUarter...........ivevienimeisnmiimmesiires s 13.40 10.95 -
Year Ended June 30, 2007 ) - 7 .
First QUATTET ..evvvvevarerisrrrireserecnreniantenmsnsnssscsennrssnsessesssasses $ 12,09 S 10.55
Second QUANET.......ccvicrenercreieer e renee i ae s esreeeeraarestee s ssve s 11.74 9.61
THIFd QUATEL. ...oveerrecinirecrnne s reresrrrerssrensrsreesratessranaes soe 10.69 9.9]

Fourth QUArer...........cooeiiniinnieninrirenrressnsscsssssssansrasenss - 10.82 9.86

Holders

According to the records of our transfer apgent, there were 547 holders of record of our common stock on
September 7, 2007, including record holders such as banks and brokerage firms who hold shares for beneficial
holders, and 47,615,289 shares of our common stock were outstanding.

Dividends " . . .

.+ Lt ) ! ) s el

We paid no dividends during the two most recent fiscal years. We do not anticipate paying cash dividends
in the future, Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will
depend upon, among other factors, our results of operations, financial condition, capital requirements and
contractual restrictions. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liguidity and Capital Resources™ and Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion
of the legal restrictions on the ability of our insurance company subsidiaries to pay dividends.

Stock Transfer Restrictions

Our centificate of incorporation (the “Charter™) contains prohibitions on the transfer of our common stock
to avoid limitations on the use of the net operating loss carryforwards and other federal income tax attributes that we
inherited from our predecessor. The Charter generally prohibits, without the prior approval of our Board of
Directors, any transfer of common stock, any subsequent issue of voting stock or stock that participates in our
eamnings or growth, and certain options with respect to such stock, if the transfer of such stock would cause any
group or person to own 4.9% or more (by aggregate value) of our outstanding shares or cause any person to be
treated like the owner of 4.9% or more (by aggregate valuc) of our outstanding shares for tax purposes. Transfers in
violation of this prohibition will be void, unless our Board of Directors consents 1o the transfer. If void, upon our
demand, the purported transferee must return the shares to our agent to be sold, or if already sold, the purported
transferee must forfeit some, or possibly all, of the sale proceeds. In addition, in connection with certain changes in
the ownership of the holders of our shares, we may require the holder to dispose of some or all of such shares. For
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this purpose, “person” is defined broadly 10 mean any individual, corporation, estate, debtor, association, company,
partnership, joint venture, or similar organization.

Performance Graph
The following graph compares the total cumulative sharcholder return for $100 invested in our common

shares against the cumulative total return of the Russel] 3000 Index and the S&P Property & Casualty Insurance
Index on June 30, 2002 1o the end of the most recently completed fiscal year.

CUMULATIVE VALUE OF $100 INVESTMENT
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[- —i— = First Acceplance Corporatbn - =+ @+« » Russell 3000 ——— S&P Property & Casusltyinsurance ]
June 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
First Acceptance Corporation 100,00 135.23 179.49 242.56 302.05 260.5!
Russell 3000 100.00 100.77 121.38 131.16 143.70 172.54
S&P Property & Casualty Insurance 100.00 95.64 113.59 129.12 136.656 15632
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables provide selected historical consolidated financial and operating data of the Company
as of the dates and for the periods indicated. In conjunction with the data provided in the following tables and in
order to more fully understand our historical consolidated financial and operating data, you should also read
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes included in this report. We derived our selected historical
consolidated financial data as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 and for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 from
our audited consolidated financial statements included in this report. We derived our selected historical
consolidated financial data as of June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 from
our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this report. The results for past accounting periods are
not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future accounting period.

The actual results for the year ended June 30, 2004 reflect only the results of USAuto’s operations since the
date of acquisition (April 30, 2004). The unaudited pro forma results for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003
give effect to the USAuto acquisition and related transactions as if they had been consummated on July 1, 2002.

The unaudited pro forma results should not be considered indicative of actual results that would have been

achieved had the USAuto acquisition and retated transactions been consummated on July 1, 2002 and do not purport
to indicate results of operations for any future period.
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Year Ended June 30,

Proforma Proforma
Actual 2004 Actual 2003
1007 2006 2008 2004 (unaodited) 2003 {(unaudited)
(i thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data; '
Revenues:
Premiums eamed........ccocceeevieneevrneinirenn $300,661 $208,71 $132,677 $ 11,728 - § 51,716 $ - $ 38353
Commission and fee income...........vcvrurvees 37,324 26,757 26,821 4,401 26,275 - 33,462
Investment iNCOME.........cc.ccveveeeieceerriennenns B.863 5,762 3,353 958 1,431 1,098 1,289
1811 - SO TR 789 7,712 3,944 6,066 14,901 233 7333
Total revenues......oeceirerviinserieeninienin 347,637 249,002 166,795 23,153 100,323 1,331 80,437
Expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses......... 241,508 140,845 87,493 7.167 36,616 - 25,905
Insurance operating eXpenses ..........osveeeenes 97,629 75,773 49,921 7,194 41,142 - 35,962
Other operating EXpenses .......oevveeevrereesess " 2,623 2,494 2,775 6,235 2,278 2,637 1,648
Stock-based compensation .........ocereemerarns 1,063 500 32 7.850 - 546 -
Depreciation and amortization........c..cceen.. 1,624 1,463 1,920 648 1,366 10 1,954
Interest eXpense.........ccvvvrverreereciirearcsrennn 1,874 898 35t 44 318 - 29
Total eXpenses...........ovvevnemrercarnnns 346,721 221,973 142,792 29,138 81,720 3,193 65,498
Income (loss) before income taxes.................. 96 27,029 24,003 (5,985) 18,603 {1,862) 14,939
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ™ .......... 17,586 (1,039) (2,153) (2,189) 6,983 - 5844
Net income (1055)...vncieeresinveiniisiiniinieeecnens $(16,670) § 28068 § 26,156 $ (3.79) § 11620 $ (1,862) § 9,095
Per Share Data:
Income (loss) per share:
BaSIC..viierererieermreresiaresnerenscass e rsnesersensesans $ (035 § 059 §$ 056 $ (015 § 025 § (009 § 020
DHIItEd .o s $ (035 § 057 § 053 $ (©15) § 024 $ (0.09) $ 019
Weighted average shares outstandmg
Basic... 47,584 47,437 47,055 24,965 46,405 20,420 46,229
Dllutcd 47,584 49,576 48,989 24,965 47,883 20,420 46,985
June 30,
007 2006 2008 2004 2003
(in thonsands, except per share dats)
Balance Sheet Data:
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale..........c..... $ 176,555 $127,828 $ 74840 $ 33,243 b -
Cash, cash cquivalems and other invested
assets.. e te et a e bee b s st arn e srbnn 34,161 31,534 35,682 38,352 56,847
Deferred tax asset 30,936 48,068 48,106 45,493 -
Total assets... 498,892 435,327 331,645 286,450 59,053
Total llabllmcs 259,408 181,904 103,316 92,224 978
Total stockholders eqmty 239,484 253,423 228,329 194,226 58,075
Book value per common share ...........ccoconeienene $ 503 § 53 $ 4381 $ 4.7 § 8
W The provision for income taxes for the year ended June 30, 2007 includes an increase in the valuation allowance for the

deferred tax asset of $6.9 million as well as $10.0 million related to the expiration of certain net operating loss carryforwards
(*NOLs"} resulting in a charge totaling $16.9 million. The benefit from income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2006 and
2005 include decreases in the valuation allowance for the deferred 1ax asset of $10.5 million and $10.6 million, respectively.
There was no provision (benefit) for income tax expense recorded for the year ended June 30, 2003 because we had NOLs
avaitable 10 offset federal taxabie income for which a full valuation allowance had been established. For the year ended June
30, 2003, the benefit resulting from the wtilization of NOLs directly offsets federal income taxes that would have otherwise

been payable.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidaied financial statements and
accompanying notes included in this report, This discussion contains forward-loaking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors, including those discussed below and elsewhere in this report, particularly
under the caption “Risk Factors.”

General

We are principally a retailer, servicer and underwriter of non-standard personal automobile insurance,
based in Nashville, Tennessee. Non-standard personal automobile insurance is made available to individuals who
arc catcgorized as “non-standard” because of their inability or unwillingness to obtain standard insurance coverage
due to various factors, including payment history, payment preference, failure in the past to maintain continuous
insurance coverage, driving record and/or vehicle type. Generally, our customers are required by law to buy a
minimum amount of automobile insurance.

Prior to our April 30, 2004 acquisition of USAuto Holdings, Inc., we were engaged in pursuing
opportunities to acquire one or more operating companies. In addition, we marketed for sale a portfolio of foreclosed
real estate. We will continue to market the remaining real estate held, consisting of two tracts of land in San
Antonio, Texas, and will aitempt to sell it on a basis that provides us with the best economic retum. We do not
anticipate any new investments in real estate.

As of August 31, 2007, we leased and operated 462 retail locations, staffed by employee-agents. Qur
employee-agents exclusively sell insurance products either underwritien or serviced by us. As of August 31, 2007,
we wrote non-standard personal automobile insurance in 12 states and were licensed in 13 additional states.

The-following table shows the changes in the number of our retail locations for the periods presented.
Retail location counts are bascd upon the date that a location commenced writing business.

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006
Retail locations - beginning of peried ............ 460 248
Opened.....c.oovvminiminmrrims e isessines 18 149
ACQUITEd....orveri e e ree e - 72
Closed ... s (16) (9
Retail locations — end of period.........ccourruvren. 462 460

The following table shows the number of our retail locations by state,

. June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Alabama......c..ccoeeenne 25 25 25
Florida ... 41 39 20
Georgia 62 63 62
([ Y — 81 86 5
Indiana.........., 24 26 21
Mississippi 8 ] B
Missouri 15 i3 14
L0 1T 30 3o 29
Pennsylvania............. 25 25 7
South Carotina .......... 28 21 -
Tennessee ................. 20 20 20
Texas......cccevrncrrenies 103 99 37
Total ........c.ece....... 462 460 248
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Consolidated Results-of Operations. - - = -~ CeeTt : B P A

Overwew R KU L N A TR
-A [P O ' . n}. R
Our pnmaxy focus is the sc!lmg. scrvncmg and undenvnlmg of non-standard personal automobile. : ~.,
insurance. .Our real estate and corporate segment consists of activities related to the disposition of foreclosed real-

estate held for sale, interest expense associated with debt, and other general corporate-overhead expenses.., ... .. -

The following table presents selected financial data for our insurance operations and real estate and. ;». - ,
corporate segments for the periods prcsemcd

LN deon . L L

TR FEITERTAPN LR . . .+ ‘e Year Ended June 30, Ce, ’ vl oy
e D vooa . e [ e LRI 2007 1T ._1 r 2006 210 N 2005- Y A "” ‘! ‘.‘g“-
L e y Tt e . .'| (‘“m"m) L L
Rgv_enue_s; P Ce o e e ; - . .,
[RSURAICE ... oo eee e sensmene s seasnns "T$347431 7 8244,557' S 164914 NI B
Real estate and corporate 206 4,445 " *UT820° ! .
Consohdated towl errenrennee 9 347,637 $ 249,002 3 166,795
JF’ - St . r L g D YRS
“ - Incdme (Ibss) before mcomclaxw Henoeow o T T bt e
lruumnce' bt 6252 ' § 26476 - '$725640 ¢ v« - Y
-Realestaleandcorporate (5336) - 553 . . (1637 S .t
Consotidated tota) ..........covveomereeenrecernes S 9i6 $ 27,029 . .5 24003. . e
pX VI T Y T A Coou Tt e
- oy .t .: o T . D . - , . "..‘ . l]__'- T

.

Onir-insurance- opcrauons generate rcvenucs from selling, servicingand undetwmmg ron-standard personal
automobile insurance policies in 12 states. We conduct our underwriting operations through three insurance
company subsidiariés, First Acceptance Insurance Compény, Iic., First Acceptance liisurance Contpaiy of Georgia,
Inc. and First Acceptance Insurance Company 6f Tennessee, Iric. Oiir insurance revenues'are generated from: -~

. premlums earned, including policy and renewal fees, from sales of policies written and assumed
by our lnsurance ‘company subsidiaries;

. fee income, mcludmg installment billing fees on policies written as well as fees for other ancillary
scrv:ces (principally & motor club product). and . pee

Lt

. investment income eam_ed on the inveésted assets of the insuraficé coniipany subsidiaries.

The following table presents gross premiums carned by state and includes policies written and assumed by
the insurance company subsidiaries and policies issued by our Managmg General Agency {*MGA") subsidiaries on
behalf of other insurance companies that are assumed by one of our insurance company subsidiaries through quota-
share reinsurance. Prior to May-2005, we were not licensed to write insurance in Alabama and therefore one of our
insurance companies assumed a percentage of the business written in Alabama through an MGA subsidiary. The
assumed percentage was 50% from July 1, 2004 through February 1, 2005, and 100% following February 1, 2005.
Since May 2005, all new Alabama business has been written by one of our insurance company subsidiaries on a
direct basis, Although we are licensed in Texas, we currently write some business in Texas through the Texas
county mutual insurance company system that is assumed 100% by one of our msurancc company subsidiaries. For
the months of July and August of 2004, we ceded 50% of our gross premiuns eamed to a reinsurer under a quota-
share reinsurance agreement that was non-renewed effective September 1, 2004, Premiums ceded after September 1,
2004 reflect only the cost of catastrophic reinsurance. Effective April 14, 2006, we clected to not renew our
catastrophic reinsurance. ' . . .
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, Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
{in thousands)
Gross premiums eamed:
$ 70312 $ 68948 $ 69,806
55117 26,327 1,181
TERAS...vcvveeevmrimreresvassarssasssvosssarssensisasssasres 32,480 . 18,596 4,899
TUENOIS .. veverecerverarsenrresssrsressrassressenesnnsassnsanese 3t.201 7,680 112
AlADAMA........coeeee i e 30,316 28,952 26,610
Tennessee... 23,800 24,387 26,205 '
Ohio......... 16,455 - 14046 .« . 10,703
South Carolina 14,797 ..+ 1,238 : -
INIANA c.ovveeoeroe s enene e cessae s ssomnanessseeenne 8,186 . 6,163 . 2,032
Pennsylvania...........ccccrrmreereereseresrmenssesresesrenses 6,937 1,996 24
v MISSOMM ..coeeccccr et e ere e sns b e 6,087 5,332 L4153
. Mississippi .ovveeeere S — 4,973 5,187 4,431 .
Total gross premiums eamed - 300,661 208,852 150,156
Premiums ceded.., —— - . .8 | (8732
Premiums not assumed ...... S everenene - . - (8,787)
Total Nt premiums €amed..........coooeovvcrcessneenrene 300,661 $208,771 . §$132,677

" The following table presents the change in the total number of policies in force for the insurance operations

for the periods presented. Policies in force increase as a resull of new policies issued and decrease as a result of
policies that cancel or expire and are not renewed.

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Policies in force - beginning of peried................  200,40] 119,422 91,385
Acqutred ....................................................... ’ - - 6,473
" Net increase during period...........ovcuveersrnerens | 26,573 80,979 . 21,564
Policies in force — end of period........cccovvmiruenrns 226,974° 200,401 115,422

Insurance companics present a combined ratio as a measure of their overall underwntmg profitability.
The components of the combined ratio are as follows:

Loss Ratio - Loss ratio is the ratio (expressed as a percentage) of losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred 1o premiunis camed and is a basic element of underwmmg profitability. We calculate lhls ratio based on
all direct a.nd assumed prcm:ums earned, net of ceded reinsurance.

H

Expense Rano Expense ratio is the ratio (expressed asa percenlage) of operating expenses to premlu.ms
earned. This is a measurement that illustrates relative management efficiency in administering our operations. We
calculate this ratio on a net basis ds a percentage of net prcmlums camed. Insuranice operating expenses are
reduced by fee income froih insureds and ccdmg commissions receivéd from our quota-share reinsurer as
compensation for the costs we incurred in servicing this business on their behalf. Our expense ratio for fiscal
2005 excludes expenses and fee income related to incidental MGA operations. For the period from January 1,
2006 throug,h December 31, 2006, our operaling expenses were reduced by a transaction service fee we received
for servicing the run-off business previously written by the Chicago agencies whose busmess we acquired in
January 2006.

Combined Ratio - Combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the cxpense ratio. 1f the Combined ratio
is at or above 100%, an insurance company cannot be profitable without sufficient investment income. The
following table presents the combined ratios for our insurance operations for the periods présented.

r !
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Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2008
Loss and loss adjustment eXpense.......coiveoes 80.4% 67.5% 65.9%
EXPETSE...corveecriiinirii s ssnns s isans s esnsnnans 19.8% 2L5% 17.9%
Combined.........cvnvmnnmi s 100.2% £9.0% 83.8%

The invested assets of the insurance operations are generally highly liquid and consist substantially of
readily marketable, investment grade, municipal and corporate bonds and collateralized mortgage obligations. We
invest in certain securities issued by political subdivisions in the states of Georgia and Tennessee, as these types of
investments enable our insurance company subsidiaries to obtain premium tax credits. Investment income is
composed primarily of interest earned on these securities, net of related investment expenses. Realized gans and
losses on our investment portfolio may occur from time-to-time as changes are made to our holdings based upon
changes in interest rates and changes in the credit quality of securities held.

The non-standard personal automobile insurance industry is cyclical in nature. In the past, the industry has
been characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of high premium rates
and shortages of underwriting capacity. If new competitors enter this market, ex&stmg competitors may attempt to
increase market share by lowering rates, Such conditions could lead 1o reduced prices, which would negatively
impact our revenues and profitability. We believe that between 2002 and 2005, the underwriting results in the
personal automobile insurance industry improved as a result of favorable pricing and competitive conditions that
allowed for broad increases in rate levels by insurers. However, since then we have witmessed 2 stabilization
followed by a reduction in premiums and rates across most states. Given the cyclical nature of the industry, these
conditions may negatively impact our revenues and profitability.

Year Ended June 30, 2007 Compared with the Year Ended June 30, 2006
Consolidated Resulty

Revenues for the year ended June 30, 2007 increased 40% to $347.6 million from $249.0 million in the
prior year. Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $16.7 million, compared with net income of $28.1 million
for the year ended June 30, 2006. Basic and diluted nct income (loss) per share was $(0.35) for the year ended June
30, 2007, compared with $0.59 and $0.57, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2006.

The provision for income taxes for the year ended June 30, 2007 includes an increase in the valuation
allowance for the deferred tax asset of $6.9 million ($0.14 per share on a diluted basis) as well as $10.0 million
($0.21 per share on a diluted basis) related to the expiration of certain net operating loss carryforwards resulting in a
deferred tax asset charge totaling $16.9 million ($0.35 per share on a diluted basis), while the benefit from income
taxes for the year ended June 30, 2006 includes a decrease in the valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset of
$10.5 million ($0.21 per share on a diluted basis). The increase in the valuation allowance for the year ended June
30, 2007 was due fo revisions in management’s estimates for our future taxable income based on the results for the
most recent fiscal year, while the charge related to the expiration of net opcralmg loss carryforwards was due to
taxable income for the current fiscal year being less than management's prior estimates. The decrease for the year
ended June 30, 2006 was the result of taxable income exceeding the estimates used by management in establishing
the valuation allowances at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, in addition to revisions in management’s estimates
for our future taxable income.

Net income per share for the year ended June 30, 2006 included gains on sales of foreclosed real estatc held
for sale of $3.6 million ($0.05 per share on a diluted basis).

Insurance Operations
Revenues from insurance operations were $347.4 million for the year ended June 30, 200:7, compared with

$244.6 million for the year ended Junc 30, 2006. Income before income taxes from insurance operations for the year
ended June 30, 2007 was $6.3 million, compared with $26.5 million for the year ended June 30, 2006.
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Premiums Earned

For the year ended June 30, 2007, premiums earned increased by $91.9 million, or 44%, to $300.7 million
from $208.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2006. The increase was due primarily to the expansion of our
business. Approximately 87% of the premium growth was in Florida, Texas and South Carolina, where we opened
102 locations in fiscal year 2006, and Chicago, where we acquired 72 locations in January 2006. The total number
of insured policies in force at June 30, 2007 increased 13% over the same date in 2006 from 200,401 to 226,974, At
June 30, 2007, we operated 462 retail locations (or “stores”), compared with 460 stores at June 30, 2006.

Commission and Fee Income

Commissions and fee income increased 39% to $37.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2007, from $26.8
million for the year ended June 30, 2006, This increase was the result of the growth in net premiums eamed,
However, fec income increased at a rate lower than our increase in premiums eamned because we charge lower fees
in Florida compared with our other states.

Investment Income

Investment income increased primarily as a result of the increase in the amount of invested assets. The
weighted average investment yields for our fixed maturities portfolio were 5.5% and 5.6% at June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively, with effective durations of 3.43 years and 3.83 years at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The yields for the comparable Lehman Brothers indices were 5.5% at June 30, 2007 and 2006.

Orther

Other revenues for the year ended June 30, 2007 included $0.9 million, compared with $4.2 million for the
prior year, from a transaction service fee earned through December 2006 in connection with the Chicago acquisition
for servicing the run-off business previously written by the Chicago agencies whose assets we acquired in January
2006. We will not recejve this transaction service fee in future periods.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss and loss adjustment expense ratio was 80.4% for the year ended June 30, 2007 compared with
67.5% for the same period last year. For the year ended June 30, 2007, we experienced a negative development for
losses occurring in prior accident periods of approximately $3.9 million. For the premiums eamed during this fiscal
year, the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio was 79.2%. During fiscal 2007, we experienced significant

" unanticipated increases in (1) the frequency of PIP losses in Florida, (2) the severity of Bodily Injury (“BI") losses

in Florida and Geotgia, and (3) the severity of Property Damage losses in Georgia and other states. The higher than
anticipated s¢verity in Georgia BI losses was somewhat driven by a higher than anticipated occurrence of large
losses (losses of $10,000 or above). To a lesser extent, the increase in the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio for
the current year was the result of a change in our business mix resulting from premium growth in our emerging
states of Florida and Texas where we anticipated higher loss ratios.

In January 2007, we hired a new head of product management with significant experience in rate making
for the non-standard automobile insurance sector. We have filed new rates, which are currently effective in Florida
(commenced December 2006), South Carolina and Georgia (commenced March 2007) and Pennsylvania
{commenced September 1, 2007). We are currently preparing a rate filing for Texas, which we expect to file on or
before September 30, 2007. We expect to file new rates in the emerging states of IHinois, Missouri, Indiana and
Chio within the next 60 days.

We will file new rates for Bodily Injury, Medical Payments, and Uninsured Motorists Coverage in Florida,
in conjunction with the change in Florida coverage resulting from the October 1, 2007 expiration of Florida’s Motor
Vehicle No-Fauit Law (Personal Injury Protection, or PIP). We also expect to file for new rates for our other
Florida coverages (i.e., Property Damage, Comprehensive and Collision, etc.) within 60 days, which should be
approved and made effective prior to December 31, 2007. While the scheduled elimination of the PIP coverage will
result in a decline in premiums earned in Florida, it may improve our overall loss ratio for Florida. Our loss ratio
(exclusive of loss adjustment expenses) for Florida PIP coverage was 133.1% and 107.6% for the three months and
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year ended June 30, 2007, respectively, on premiums eamed of $4.5 million and $15.5 million for the respective
periods.

Operating Expenses

Insurance operating expenses increased 29% to $97.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2007 from $75.8
million for the year ended June 30, 2006. This increase was primarily due to the addition in fiscal 2006 of new retail
locations (including those acquired in Chicago) and expenses, such as advertising, employee-agent compensation,
rent and premium taxes that vary along with the increase in net premiums eamned.

The expense ratio decreased from 21.5% for the year ended June 30, 2006 to 19.8% for the year ended June
30, 2007. This decrease is primarily a result of the increase in premiums earned from new stores without a
corresponding increase in fixed operating costs (such as advertising, rent and base compensation of our employee-
agents).

Qverall, the combined ratio increased to 100.2% for the year ended June 30, 2007 from 89.0% for the year
ended June 30, 2006 as a result of the higher loss and loss adjustment expense ratio.

Real Estate and Corporate

Loss before income taxes from real estate and corporate for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $5.3 million
versus income before income taxes of $0.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2006. The year ended June 30, 2006
included gains on sales of foreclosed real estate held for sale of $3.6 million. There were no gains on sales of
foreclosed real estate held for sale during the year ended June 30, 2007. In addition, during the year ended June 30,
2007, we incurred $1.7 million of interest expense in connection with borrowings related to the Chicago acquisition
compared with $0.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2006,

Year Ended June 30, 2006 Compared with the Year Ended June 30, 2005
Consolidated Resulls

Net income for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $28.1 million, compared with $26.2 million for the year
ended June 30, 2005. Net income per share was $0.59 and $0.57 on a basic and diluted basis, respectively, for the
year ended June 30, 2006 and $0.56 and $0.53 on a basic and diluted basis, respectively, for the year ended June 30,
2005. Total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 increased 49% from $166.8 million to $249.0 million over
the same period last year.

The benefit fom income taxes for the years ended June-30, 2006 and 2003 included decreases in the
valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset of $10.5 million ($0.21 per share on a diluted basis) and $10.6 million
($0.22 per share on a diluted basis), respectively. Such decreases were the result of taxable income for these years
exceeding the estimates used by management in establishing the valuation allowances at June 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, in addition to revisions in management's estimates for our future taxable income based on the results
for the most recent fiscal years.

Net income per share for the year ended June 30, 2006 included gnins on sales of foreclosed real estate held
for sale of $3.6 million ($0.05 per share on a diluted basis) compared with gains of $0.8 million ($0.0] per share on
a diluted basis) for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Insurance Operations
Revenues from insurance operations were $244.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2006, compared with

$165.0 million for the year ended June 30, 2005, Income before income taxes from insurance operations was $26.5
million for the year ended June 30, 2006 compared with $25.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2005.
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Premiums Earned

Total gross premiums eamned, before the effects of reinsurance, increased by $58.7 million, or 39%, 1o
$208.9 miltion for the year ended June 30, 2006, from $150.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2005, This
increase was due to the development of new stores in existing states as well as our expansion into new states. Of
this increase, $38.8 million was attributable to the expansion of our business into Florida and Texas. Overall, the
number of insured policies in force at June 30, 2006 increased 68% over the same date in 2005 from 119,422 1o
200,401. At June 30, 2006, the number of operating retail locations (or *stores™) was 460 as compared with 248
stores at June 30, 2005.

Net premiums eamed increased 57% for the year ended June 30, 2006 over the same pericd in 2005. In
addition to the increase in total gross premiums earned, net premiums earned also increased as a result of two
changes involving reinsurance. Net premiums earned increased as a result of the change in the assumed reinsurance
percentage for our Alabama business (written through other insurance companies) from 50% to 100% effective
February 1, 2005. For the year ended June 30, 2005, $8.8 milkion in premiums earned in Alabama were not assumed
by us. We are now licensed in Alabama and, starting in May 2005, we began writing all new policics in Alabama on
a direct basis. As a result, in Alabama, we no longer incur the contractual costs associated with writing business
through another insurance company. Net premiums eamed for the year ended June 30, 2006 also increased as the
result of eliminating our 50% quota-share reinsurance effective September 1, 2004. This reinsurance was in effect
for two months of the year ended June 30, 2005 and resulted in an $8.6 million reduction in net premiums camed,
which we ceded to the reinsurer.

Commission and Fee Income

Commission and fee income declined as a percentage of net premiums earned during the year ended June
30, 2006 compared with the prior year as a result of not renewing the quota-share reinsurance and increasing the
assumed reinsurance percentage for our Alabama business. Ceding commissions from our reinsurer were eliminated
with the non-renewal of the quota-share reinsurance agreement.

Investment Income

Investment income increased primarily as a result of the increase in invested assets as a result of our growth
and to a lesser extent as we shifted the portfolio from tax-¢xempt to taxable investments. The weighted average
investment yield for our fixed maturities portfolio was 5.6% at June 30, 2006 with an effective duration of 3.83
years. The yield for the comparable Lehman Brothers indices at June 30, 2006 was 5.5%.

Other

Other revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 included a $4.2 million transaction service fee earned in
connection with the Chicago acquisition for servicing the run-off business previously written by the Chicago
agencies whose assets we acquired in January 2006,

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The loss and loss adjustment expense ratio increased to 67.5% for the year ended June 30, 2006 from
65.9% for the year ended June 30, 2005. For the year ended June 30, 2006, we experienced a positive development
for losses occurring in prior accident periods of $1.5 million, which we believe was attributable to the inherent
uncertainty in the estimation process and was not the result of any individual factor. The loss ratie for the year ended
June 30, 2006 increased primarily as a result of higher loss ratios in our expansion states and from an increase in
storm losses.

Operating Expenses

Insurance operating expenses increased 52% to $75.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2006 from $49.9
million for the year ended June 30, 2005. This increase was primarily due to the addition of new retail locations
(including those acquired in Chicago) and expenses, such as advertising, employee-agent compensation, rent and
premium taxes that vary along with the increase in net premiums eamed.
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The expense ratio increased from 17.9% for the year ended June 30, 2005 to 21.5% for the year ended June
30, 2006. The expense ratio for the year ended June 30, 2005 was positively impacted by an additional ceding
commission of $1.0 million, or 0.8%, which was recorded based upon the favorable loss experience during the last
year of the quota-share reinsurance which was non-renewed effective September 1, 2004. Operating expenses
incurred for new retail locations also contributed to the increase in the expense ratio for the year ended June 30,
2006. In addition, the expense ratio increased as a result of declining fee income from ancillary products (which
reduces expenses in calculating the expense ratio), and the fact that this fee income was spread over a larger base of
net premiums eamed as a result of not renewing the quota-share reinsurance.

Overall, the combined ratio increased to 89.0% for the year ended June 30, 2006 from 83.8% for the year
ended June 30, 2005,

Real Estate and Corporate

Income before income taxes from real estate and corporate for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $0.6
million versus a loss before income taxes of $1.6 miltion for the year ended June 30, 2005. The year ended June 30,
2006 included gains on the sales of foreclosed real estate held for sale of $3.6 million compared with $0.8 million
for the year ended June 30, 2005, Investment income declined from $1.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2005 to
$0.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2006 primarily due to a reduction in the amount of invested assets.

Other operating expenses primarily include other general corporate overhead expenses. During the year
ended June 30, 2006, we incurred severance costs of $0.4 million in connection with the resignation of a former
exccutive officer. In addition, for the year ended June 30, 2006, we incurred $0.9 million of interest expense in
connection with borrowings related to the Chicago acquisition.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are premiums, fee income and investment income. Our primary uses of funds
are the payment.of claims and operating expenses. Operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2007 provided
$36.7 million of cash, compared with $52.9 million provided in the same period in fiscal 2006. Net cash used by
investing activities for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $75.5 million, compared with $70.8 million in the same
period in fiscal 2006. Both periods reflect net additions to our investment portfolio as a result of the increase in net
premiums eamed. During the year ended June 30, 2007, we sold fixed maturity investments of $45.9 million that
" were subsequently reinvested. These sales and reinvestments were primarily related to weekly auction-rate
securities that were reinvested longer term and portfolio changes made in order to help obtain premium tax credits in
certain states. In December 2006, we borrowed $5.0 million from our revolving credit facility and used the proceeds
to increase the statutory capital and surplus of our insurance company subsidiaries. We repaid this amount in July
2007.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, we increased the statutory capital and surplus of the insurance
company subsidiaries by a total of $44.7 million to support additional premium writings. Of this ¢apital
contribution, $2.7 million came from funds our holding company received from our insurance company subsidiaries
through an intercompany tax allocation agreement under which the holding company was reimbursed for current tax
benefits utilized through the recognition of tax net operating loss carryforwards, The balance of the capital
contribution came from $7.0 million of unrestricted cash, $5.0 million from the borrowing under the revolving credit
facility and $30.0 million from the proceeds of trust preferred securities sold by one of our subsidiaries in June 2007.
At June 30, 2007, we had $10.4 million available in unrestricted cash and investments outside of the insurance
company subsidiaries. Of these funds, in July 2007, we used $5.0 million to pay down the revolving credit facility
and $2.2 million to pay scheduled quarterly payments of principal and interest on our debt. Future debt payments
will be serviced by the additional unrestricted cash from the sources described in the next paragraph.

We are part of an insurance holding company system with substantially all of our operations conducted by
our insurance company subsidiaries. Accordingly, the holding company will only receive cash from operating
activities as a result of investment income and the ultimate liquidation of our foreclosed real estate held for sale. it

~will alse receive dividends from non-insurance company subsidiaries that sell ancillary products 1o our insureds.
Cash could be made available through loans from financial institutions, the sale of securities, and dividends from our
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insurance company subsidiaries. In addition, as a result of our tax net operating loss carryforwards, taxable income
generated by the insurance company subsidiaries will provide cash to the holding company through an intercompany
tax allocation agreement through which the insurance company subsidiaries reimburse the holding company for
current tax benefits utilized through recognition of the net operating loss carryforwards.

State insurance laws limit the amount of dividends that may be paid from our insurance company
subsidiaries. These limitations relate to statutory capital and surplus and net income. In addition, the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners Model Act for risk-based capital (“RBC”) provides formulas to determine
the amount of statutory capital and surplus that an insurance company needs to ensure that it has an acceptable
expectation of not becoming financially impaired. A low RBC ratio would prevent an insurance company from
paying dividends. Statutory guidelines suggest that the insurance company subsidiaries should not exceed a ratio of
net premiums written to statutory capital and surplus of 3-to-1. We believe that our insurance company subsidiaries
have sufficient financial resources available to support their net premium writings in both the short-term and the
reasonably foreseeable future.

We believe that existing cash and investment balances, when combined with anticipated cash flows
generated from operations and dividends from our insuwrance company subsidiaries, will be adequate to meet our
expected liquidity nceds in both the short term and the reasonably foreseeable future. Our growth strategy inctudes
possible acquisitions. Any acquisitions or other growth opportunities may require external financing, and we may
from time to time seek to obtain external financing, We cannot assure you that additional sources of financing will
be available to us on favorable terms, or at all, or that any such financing would not negatively impact our results of

operations,
Chicago Acquisition

In order to gain a presence in the market, on January 12, 2006, we acquired certain assets (principally the
trade names, customer lists and relationships and the lease rights to 72 retail locations) of two non-standard
automobile insurance agencies under common control in Chicago, [llinois for $30.0 million in cash. In addition, in
accordance with the terms of the acquisition, $1.0 million of additional consideration was paid in March 2007 based
on attainment of cenain financial targets. No further amounts are due from the Company in connection with this
acquisition,

Credit Facility

In connection with the Chicago acquisition, we entered into, and borrowed under, a credit agreement with
two banks consisting of a $5.0 million revolving facility and a $25.0 million term loan facility, both maturing on
June 30, 2010. Through September 13, 2007, both facilities bore interest at LIBOR plus 175 basis points per
annum. We entered into an interest rate swap agreement on January 17, 2006 that fixed the interest rate on the term
loan facility at 6.63% through June 30, 2610. At June 30, 2007, the swap, which qualifies as a cash flow hedge, had
a fair value of $0.1 million and is included within other assets and accumulated other comprehensive loss,
Payments/receipts associated with the swap are reported in the statement of operations as a part of interest expense.
The term loan facility is due in equal quarterly instaliments through June 30, 2010, Both facilities are secured by the
common stock and certain assets of our non-regulated subsidiaries, For the year ended June 30, 2007, we incurred
$1.7 million of interest expense in connection with the noted credit agreement. At June 30, 2007, the unpaid balance
due under the facilitics was $23.1 million.

At June 30, 2007, we were not in compliance with financial covenants in the credit agreement regarding a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a maximum combined ratio. Our lenders waived this non-compliance as
of June 30, 2007 and we entered into an amendment to the credit agreement dated September 13, 2007. The
amended terms have less restrictive financial covenants, increased the interest rate we pay by 75 basis points and
require us to make a prepayment of at least $6.0 million in principal before December 31, 2007. In addition, the
availability under the revolving credit facility was permanently reduced from $5.0 million to $2.0 million.

Trust Preferred Securities

On June 13, 2007, First Acceptance Statutory Trust 1 (“FAST 1), our newly formed wholly-owned
unconselidated subsidiary trust entity, completed a private placement whereby FAST [ issued 40,000 shares of
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preferred securities at $1,000 per share to outside investors and 1,240 shares of common securities to us, also at
$1,000 per share. FAST I used the proceeds from the sale of the preferred securities to purchase $41.2 million of
junior subordinated debentures from us, The debentures will mature on July 30, 2037 and are redeemable by the
Company in whole or in part beginning on July 30, 2012, at which time the preferred securities are callable. The
debentures pay a fixed rate of 9.277% until July 30, 2012, after which the rate becomes variable (LIBOR plus 375
basis points). The obligations of the Company under the junior subordinated debentures represent full and
unconditional guarantees by the Company of FAST I's obligations for the preferred sceurities. Dividends on the
preferred securities are cumulative, payable quarterly in arrears and are deferrable at the Company’s option for up to
five years. The dividends on these securities are the same as the interest on the debentures. The Company cannot pay
dividends on its common stock during such deferments. FAST I does not meet the requirements for consolidation of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Intcrest
Entities - An Interpretation of ARB No. 51.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We use off-batance sheet arrangements (e.g., operating leases) where the economics and sound business
principles warrant their use. Refer to “Trust Preferred Securities” section above regarding a new off-balance sheet
arrangement.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes all of our contractual obligations by period as of June 30, 2007

Payments Due By Period
Less than 1-3 More than

Total 1 year Years 3-5 Years § vears
Loss and Joss adjustment expense reserves (1), § 91,446 $ 54,991 $ 33,265 $ 2,734 s 456
Notes payable (2) (6)...ovuveneianiiiinnninninnnnens 19,725 6,481 13,244 - -
Revolving credit agreement (3} (6).............. 5,000 - 5,000 - -
Debentures payable (4)........cccovvvriireeineinan 154,299 3,826 7,652 7,652 135,169
Capitalized lease obligations..........c.coveeneee 462 231 23} - -
Operating leases (S} .viiinernniinnieniniiinnnn 28,965 9,573 13,461 4,348 1,583
Employment Bgreements........c.coevvevemeenrenns 1,707 965 742 - -
Severance agreement obligation.................. 501 264 237 - -
Advisory services agreement..................eee 208 208 -- - -
Total contractual cash obligations................ $1302313 $ 76,539 $ 73,832 $ 14,734 $ 137,208

) | pss and loss adjustment expense reserves do not have contractual maturity dates; however, based on historical payment
patterns, the amount presented is our estimate of the expected timing of these payments. The timing of these payments is
subject to significant uncertainty, We maintain a portfolio of marketable invesiments with varying maturities and a
substantial amount of cash and cash equivalents intended to provide adequate cash flows for such payments. The noted
payments due by period of $91,446 include $309 related to reinsurance receivables,

@ Noted payments due by period assume a fixed interest rate on notes payable of 6.63% cansistent with interest rate swap
agreement effective through term loan facility maturity date of June 30, 2010.

@ Noted payments due on revolving credit agreement of $5,000 was rcpaid in July 2007.

®  Noted payments due by period assume a contractual fixed interest rate of 9.277% until July 30, 2012, after which the rate
becomes variable (LIBOR plus 375 basis points, or 9.11% as of June 30, 2007).

) Consists primarily of rental obligations under real cstate teases related to our retail locations and corporate offices.

® At June 30, 2007, we were not in compliance with financial covenants in the credit agreement regarding a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio and a maximum combined ratio. Our lenders waived this noncompliance as of June 30, 2007 and
we entered into an amendment to the credit agreement dated September 13, 2007. The amended terms have less
restrictive financial covenants, increased the interest rate we pay by 75 basis points and require us to make a prepayment
of at least $6.0 million in principal before December 31, 2007. In addition, the availability under the revolving credit
facility was permanently reduced from $5.0 million to $2.0 million.

36




Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. As more information becomes known, these estimates and assumptions could change, thus
having an impact on the amounts reported in the future. The following are considered to be our critical accounting
policies:

Losses and loss adjustment expense reserves. Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represent our best
estimate of our ultimate liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses relating to events that occurved prior to the
end of any given accounting period, but have not been paid. Months and sometimes years may elapse between the
occurrence of an automobile accident covered by one of our insurance policies, the reporting of the accident and the
payment of the claim. We record a liability for estimates of losses that will be paid for accidents that have been
reported, which is referred 1o as case reserves, In addition, since accidents are not always reported when they occur,
we estimate liabilities for accidents that have occurred but have not been reported, which are referred to herein as
incurred but not reported, or IBNR, reserves.

We are directly liable for loss and loss adjustment expenses under the terms of the insurance policies that
our insurance company subsidiaries underwrite. Each of the insurance company subsidiaries establishes a reserve for
all of its unpaid fosses and loss adjustment expenses, including case and IBNR reserves, and estimates for the cost to
settle the claims. We estimate our IBNR reserves by estimating our ultimate unpaid liability for loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves first, and then reducing that amount by the amount of cumulative paid claims and by
the amount of our case reserves. We-rely primarily on historical loss experience in determining reserve levels, on the
assumption that historical loss experience provides a good indication of future loss experience. We also consider
various other factors, such as inflation, claims settlement patterns, legislative activity and litigation trends. Our
internal actuarial staff continually monitors these estimates on a state and coverage level. We utilized our intemal
actuaria) staff to determine appropriate reserve levels. As experience develops or new information becomes known,
we increase or decrease the level of our reserves in the period in which changes to the estimates are determined.
Accordingly, the actual losses and loss adjustment expenses may differ maierially from the estimates we have
recorded. See “Business — Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves” for additional information.

Revenue Recognition. Insurance premiums ¢amed are recognized on a pro-rata basis over the respective
terms of the policies. Written premiums are recorded as of the effective date of the policies for the full policy
premium although most policyholders elect to pay on a monthly installment basis. Policy and renewal fees are
included in premiums eamned and are recognized on a pro-rata basis over the respective terms of the policies.
Premiums are generatly collected in advance of providing risk coverage, minimizing our exposure to credit risk.
Premiums receivable are recorded net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts.

Commission income and related policy fees, written for affiliated and unaffiliated insurance companies, are
recognized at the date the customer is initially billed or as of the effective date of the insurance policy, whichever is
later. Commissions on premium endorsements are recognized when premiums are processed. Motor club fees
writien by an affiliate are eamned on a pro-rata basis over the respective terms of the contracts and inciuded within
commission and fee income. Fees are paid monthly by motor club members and are generally collected in advance
of providing coverage, minimizing our exposure to credit risk.

Fee income includes agency and installment fees to compensate us for the costs of providing installment
payment plans, as well as late payment, policy cancellation, policy rewrite and reinstatement fees. We recognize
these fees on a collected basis. Instaliment billing fees paid by policyholders are recognized as revenue when each
installment is billed.

Valuation of deferred tax asset. Income taxes are maintained in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, whereby deferred income tax assets and
liabilities result from temporary differences. Temporary differences are differences between the tax basis of assets
and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and their reported amounts in the consolidated
financial statements that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in future years. Valuation of the deferred tax
asset is considered a critical accounting policy because the determination of our ability to utilize the asset involves a
number of management assumptions relating to future operations that could materially affect the determination of
the ultimate value and, therefore, the carrying amount of our deferred tax asset.
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Based on business activity prior to the USAuto acquisition, management believed it was more likely than
not that we would not realize the benefits of the foss carryforwards, Therefore, a full vatuation allowance had been
established. Based upon our estimates of our future taxable income after the USAuto acquisition, we reduced our
deferred tax valuation allowance by $41.3 million, Further, based upon our revised estimates afier considering the
actual results for the year ended June 30, 2007, the allowance was increased by $6.9 million, while the years ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005 included reductions in the allowance of $10.5 million and $10.6 million, respectively. In
addition, during the year ended June 30, 2007, the provision for income taxes included a $10.0 million charge
related to the expiration of certain net operating loss carryforwards due to taxable income for the current fiscal year
being less than management’s prior estimates. At June 30, 2007, our total gross deferred tax asset is $58.0 million,
and we had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately $133.0 million. On a
net basis, the deferred tax asset is $30.9 million after an allowance of $27.1 million. Realization of this deferred tax
asset is dependent upon our generation of sufficient taxable income in the future. If future taxable income is not
sufficient 10 recover the deferred tax asset, the maximum charge to the provision for income taxes will be
$30.9 million. If we generate sufficient future taxable income to fully utilize the deferred tax asset as of June 30,
2007, the maximum additional benefit for income taxes will be $27.1 million.

Goodwill and idemifiable intangible assets. Our acquisitions have resulted in goodwill of $138.1 million.
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired. The acquisitions
also resulted in other identiftable intangible assets with a current book value of $6.4 million. As required by SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we perform an annual impairment test of goodwill and identifiable
intangible assets. If impairment indicators exist between the annual testing periods, management will perform an
interim impairment test, Should either an annual or interim impairment test determine that the fair value is below the
carrying value, a write-down of these assets will be required. At June 30, 2007, impairment tests were pesformed
and in management’s opinion, no impairment exists.

Forward-Lookiog Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 2LE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements made in
the report, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. You can identify these
statements from our use of the words “may,” “should,” “could,” “potential,” “continue,” “plan,” “forecast,”
“estimate,” “project,” “believe,” “intent,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “target,” “is likely,” “will,” or the negative of these
terms, and similar expressions. These statements are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private
Sccurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-locking statements may include, among other things:

. statements and assumptions relating to future growth, income, income. per share and other
financial performance measures, as well as management’s short-term and long-term performance
goals;

. statements relating to the anticipated effects on results of operations or financial condition from

recent and expected developments or events;
. statements relating to our business and growth strategies; and
. any other statements or assumptions that are not historical facts.

We believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions. However, these forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that could cause our actual
results, performance or achievements, or indusiry results to differ materially from our expectations of future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. [n addition, our past
results of operations do not necessarily indicate our future results. We discuss these and other uncertainties in the
“Risk Factors” section, as well as other sections, of this report.

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. These statements speak only as of
the date of this report. Except as otherwise required by applicable laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statements or the risk factors described in this report, whether as a result of
new information, future events, changed circumstances or any other reason after the date of this report.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We have an exposure to interest rate risk relating to fixed maturity investments. Changes in market interest
rates directly impact the market value of the fixed maturity securities. Some fixed income securities have call or
prepayment options, This subjects us to reinvestment risk as issuers may call their securities, which could result in
us reinvesting the proceeds at lower interest rates. We manage exposure to interest rate risks by adhering to specific
guidelines in connection with our investment portfolio. We invest primarily in municipal and corporate bonds and
collateralized mortgage obligations that have been rated “A™ or better by Standard & Poors. At June 30, 2007,
£9.8% of our investment portfolio was invested in securities rated “AA™ or better by Standard & Poors and 97.9% in
securities rated “A" or better by Standard & Poors. At June 30, 2007, cur exposure with regards to sub-prime
mortgage securities was limited to $2.0 million in fixed maturities that were all rated “A” or better by Standard &
Poors. We have not recognized any other-than-temporary losses on our investment portfolio. We also utilize the
services of a professional fixed income investment manager.

As of June 30, 2007, the impact of an immediate 100 basis point increase in marke? interest rates on our
fixed maturities portfolio would have resulted in an estimated decrease in fair value of 4.5%, or approximately
$7.9 million. As of the same date, the impact of an immediate 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates on
our portfolio would have resulted in an estimated increase in fair value of 4.3%, or approximately $7.6 million.

In connection with the January 12, 2006 Chicago acquisition, we entered into a new $30.0 million credit
facility that includes a $25.0 million term loan facility and a $5.0 million revolving facility. We amended the credit
facility in September 2007 to, among other things, reduce the availability under the revolving facility to $2.0
million. Although we have fixed the interest rate of the term loan facility through an interest rate swap agreement,
we have interest rate risk with respect to any borrowings under the revolving facility, which bears interest at a
floating rate of LIBOR plus 250 basis points. At June 30, 2007, $5.0 miilion was borrowed under the revolving
facility. In July 2007, we repaid the $5.0 million outstanding under the revolving credit facility.

On June 15, 2007, we used the proceeds from the sale of preferred securities by our newly formed wholly-
owned unconsolidated trust enfity, FAST I, to purchase $41.2 million of junior subordinated debentures. The
debentures pay a fixed rate of 9.277% until July 30, 2012, after which the rate becomes variable (LIBOR plus 375
basis points). The dividends on these securities are the same as the interest on the debentures.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Acceptance Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended: Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in
the index at Item [5(a). These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and schedules
based on our audits, The consolidated financial'statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2005 were
audited by other auditors whose report dated September '9, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supperting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit'also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as ‘well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the 2007 and 2006 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of First Accéptance Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 2006 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ‘ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation o
the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects the mformanon set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the effectiveness of First Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries’ internal contral over financial reporting
as of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in /nfernal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzanons of the Treadway Commnsslon and our repon dated September 13, 2007
expressed an unquallﬁed opmlon thereon . y

ERNST-& YOUNG LLP .

Nashville, Tennessee
September 13, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Acceptance Corporation

We have audited First Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company") internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company's
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
risk exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's intenal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal controf over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Acceptance Corporation maintained, in all matenial respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consotidated balance sheets of the Company as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated

statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and our report dated
September 13, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
September 13, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public.Accouming Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
First Acceptance Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of
First Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company™) for the year ended June 30, 2005. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require.that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overail
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material rcspecis. the
results of operations and the cash flows of First Acceptance Corporation and subsidiaries for the year ended June 30,
2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP '

Dallas, Texas
September 9, 2005
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(in thousands, except per share data)

FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
ASSETS 2007 2006
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale at fair value (amortized cost $179,328
and $131,291, respectively) ..ovvvieinniisnirisis i s $ 176,555 $127,828
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENIS ... e e 34,161 31,534
Premiums and fees receivable, net of allowance of $606 and $668............. 1,771 65,095
ReinsSurance reCeivables. ... rinrermrnrensnriesescsrnssesrasssssss smssntvrssanessans 326 1,344
Receivable fOr SECUTIIES c.o.ovvvrveerrererresnistisssisrsreeisrecssionssraessresssassssmnmssass 19,973 999
DeferTed (X A558E voeveireieerrseieriiiesrrarrsserintresrststosasasiorenasssssanssssranssssrnnsersssns 30,936 48,068
T BSSEIS 1uvvrerenversnerseornsereesssissssisntsian srnins rasbabeesbistesonnesegssmmsntvaresssnonsis 11,396 7,883
Property and equipment, Net.........covciveveimasierssnsnsrs s s 4,116 3,376
Deferred acqUISIION COSIS ..ecuvvvvrertrrrcisticess s ssensnssstsnsas e srsssssas s reae s 5,166 5,310
GOOAWIll vvvrveeerreverrrercarerererereeircsrmsnnreiressssssnssssesnesnsssnsns 138,082 137,045
Identifiable intangible @ssets ........c..coociiiniisie o 6,410 6,825
TOTAL ASSETS ..o nrrresresssssssssisnnss e ssnssssssesesssssses $ 498,892 $ 435,327
LIABILITTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Loss and 10ss adjustment €XPEnse TESETVES ....vvuvivsrinsnsesssmsssmsssssinssssosassianss $ 91,446 $ 62,822
Uneamned premiums and fEeS .........ocuvimressmmrnirenisnrsrs et s 88,831 78,331
Notes payable and capitalized lease OBHZAUHONS.....coccnrivsniarercsensnsisiisianas 23,490 24,026
Debentures payable. ... .ot 41,240 -
Payable fOr SECUTIUES ......c.ccviiimiimirinc s s s 999 4,914
OLher JEaDIITIES ..o oo ceeeeieeiier e s reeer e eeessesssrnrere s brrrraanrtsesessasssmanstssassossrnnners 13,402 11,811
i TOMAL HHADIIHES. ... eeiee e er e e et e eene e esasesonessarsasmcacsbssanssssnsninns 259,408 181,904
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000 shares authorized........ rrerenseerenas - -
Common stock, $.01 par value, 75,000 shares authorized; 47,615 and
47,535 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.....ccveeininircrnncncens 476 475
Additional paid-in capital ..o 460,963 459,049
Accumulated other comprehensive 1085 ..o.viiernnnnnennmeeen (2,652) (3,463)
Accumulated defiCit....c..oceiirernricrnernerrmesririisniss s (219,308) (202,638)
Total stockholders’ equity .........cmiiim s 239,484 253,423
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY........... _$498,892 $ 435327

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Premiums earned ........oivvevimivsnrrmsrrmsronsecsesrisscenersase i

Commissions and fEe INCOME....eevrveveeervrverirenerrvarmnnneann: .

INVESIMENT INCOMIE, ..0icevviriieiisirriiresseriersrainsressenesirsrossssans
Other......covviveriens

Costs and expenses;
Losses and loss adjustment eXpenses........cocvvevverrvssisasnons
Insurance operating exXpPenses. ..o eeniriniiriescersenisesenserans
Other Operaling exXpenses ........ocunnininisnn
Stock-based cOmMPENSAHON ......coovmiinnerverssiresrsiissne,
Depreciation and amortization..........cc...cnvveiesieiccicnnn
INtErest EXPENSE ...cccmieireerieisinrrre s s ar s nanenens

Income before inCome taxes ........corveeieviionmrersssersssissesnines
Provision (benefit) for income taXes ..o ivererisrircraenn.
Net income (1055} ..civurvrerirereeserevarereenersesseessssessereessersnssenss

Net income (loss) per share:
BASIC vt rrerrsien s e e e st b e

Number of shares used to calculate net income (loss) per
share:

Reconciliation of net income (loss) to comprehensive
income (loss):
Net iNCOME (1055}, e.uriverererirnicrsisiessrarmnerererssersnssressansses
Net unrealized change on investments...............cccumicnionn
Unrealized gain on interes! rate swap agreement...............
Comprehensive income (l0S5) .....ccoocooiiirrininieerinisnsenninn

See notes to consolidated financial statements,
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Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2008
$ 300,661 $208,771 $132,677
37,324 26,757 26,821
8,863 5,762 3,353
789 7,712 3,944
347,637 249,602 166,795
241,908 140,845 87,493
97,629 75,773 49,921
2,623 2,494 2,775
1,063 500 332
1,624 1,463 1,920
1,874 898 351
346,721 221,973 142,792
916 27,029 24,003
17,586 (1,039) {2,153)
$(16,670) § 28,068 $ 26,156
$ (035 $ 059 $ 056
5 (0.39) $ 057 $ 053
47,584 47 487 47,055
47,584 49,576 48,989
$(16,670) $ 28,068 § 26,156
690 {4,118) 690

121 -- -
$(15,859) $ 23,950 $ 26,846




FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

{in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional other Total
Commoan Stock paid-io comprehensive Accumulated Tressury stockholders®
Shares Amounpt capital income (loss) deficit stoek equity
Balances ot fuly 1, 2004 ... 46,535 $ 465 $ 450,658 s (3% $ (256,362) $ - 3 194,226
b W5 T L — [T - - - - 26,156 - 26,156
Net unrealized change on
investments {net of tax of $373). - - - 690 - - 690
. Issuance of contingent shares :
related 0 ACQUISILIOD ocvnvnnvrvrrescee 750 8 6,712 - - - 6,720
Stock -based ccmpenlsution ............... 3 - in - - - 32
Issuance of sharey under
Employce Stock Purchase Plan... 11 | 103 - - - 104
Purchase of treasury stock, at cosl.., - - - - - (639 (639)
Retirement of treasury stock, at
COST 1eerrersssisrassismirssaserassmssornssnsas {90) 4 (638) - - 639 -
Exercise of stock options .. 146 2 738 - - - 740
Balances ot June 30, 2005 47,455 475 457,905 653 (230,706} - 228,329
Net inCOME. ...t vemecmsisssrisnrnserinns - - - - 28,068 - 28,068
Net unrealized change on
investments (net of tax of $353). - - - (4,118) - - {4,118)
Stock -based compensation.............. 3 - 500 - - - 500
Lssusmce of shares under
Employee Stock Purchase Plan... 22 - 223 - - - 223
Exercise of stock options ..c..ouwereerns 55 - 421 - - - 421
Balances at June 30, 2006 ......eoe.cn, 47,535 415 459,049 (3,463) (202,638) - 253,423
Net loss..... - - - ] - (16,670) - (16,670)
Net unrealized change on
investments (net of tax of §0)...... - - - 690 . - - 650
Change in unrealized gain on
interest rate swap agreement ....... - - - 121 - - 121
Sale of common 510¢k ...oereoiersreenneees 50 ] 590 - - - 591
Stock-based compensation....ueens 5 - 1,063 - - - 1,063
Issuance of shares under
Employee Stock Purchase Pla... 25 ~ 266 - - - 266
Batances at June 30, 2007 ... 47,6135 3 476 $ 460,968 s (2,652) $ {219,308} 3 — $ 239,484

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
Year Ended June 30,
. 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (1055) ......ccveornen - $(16,670) $28,068  $26,156
Adjustments to reconcnlc ncl income (loss) to cash prov1ded by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization... 1,624 1,463 1,920
Stock-based compensanon 1,063 500 332
Amortization of premium on ﬁxed mamrmes .............................. 217 460 357
Deferred iNCOME TAXES.. o irinreererircrosrassressnsssnsasessessonss erversnesees 17,132 (1,533) (2,986)
Gains on sales of foreclosed real estate...............cccveeerenncnennn. - (3,633) (755)
OHRET ..ot eeseeseeee e nes e esesesasansmereessenmeseserenmare 38 76 (214)
Change in;
Premiums and fees receivable.........oovecevcecinnrcvererecenecensiecns (6,676) (21,264) (10,972)
Reinsurance receivables .........ceceeierivemriererecrsnriesesievesnesessesseessans 1,018 3,146 7,807
Prepaid reinsurance premmitims. ... e e ceererneriesssinsesiesesrcssersarssenes - - 12,384
Deferred acquiSition COSES ......eveeereecrniniesamsssesrescrsecssmnsssrmnsssans 164 (2,059) 3,571)
Loss and loss adjustment eXpense IESEIVeS.........ceiivusiesirsmencrrnres 28,624 19,925 12,463
Uneaned premiums and fees......covocvincininniisensrscinnmasnans 10,500 28,307 14,001
Amounts due 10 FEINSUTETS.........ccorrrrerinrerrrrnsersceresenresreersensensess -- -- (11,899)
OMEL ..ottt srene e senesne e b st st b e e e 07 (582) 425
Net cash provided by operating activities........cveecvevervrnerieses 36,727 52,869 45,448
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed maturities, available-for-sale.... . - (101,295) (82,144) (48,493)
Maturities and paydowns of fixed maturities, avallablbfor-salc " 7,048 8,748 3,502
* Sales of fixed maturities, available-for-sale.........ocooenecnnrvrineninins 45,932 15,400 4,153
Sales (purchases) of investment in mutual fund..........ccoeiiiieenee. - 10,920 (10,920)
Net change in receivable/payable for securities...........coieevceennnn, (22,889) 3,915 -
Purchase of common Stock in trust.......c.vverecrcveenirssinesecenenne (1,240) ' -
Acquisitions of property and equipment..........ccooceveeccrnerinnreennis (1,769) (2,265) (1,053)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment..........cecerveeeneennee. - - 666
Improvements to foreclosed real estate .........oeevverrirncnccecrinrenines (254) - (300)
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real estate..........cccevrevcrerrnnnannen - 4,512 1,202
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired...........cccoeovvennne. {1,037) (29,853) (4,000)
Net cash used in investing activities .......cocececvverarineersenrencnarcann, (75,504) (70,76 7) (55,243)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from BOTTOWINES. ..o ereeenerinccec e cssre e seeveracneeenas 5,000 30,431 -
Payments on DOITOWINES ....vveeireccmrmmrninmosisiorssessmrsnsssssnsrsossserrees {5,693) {(6,405) (4,000)
Proceeds from issuance of debentures............c.cecvvvnvvevncinneincinens 41,240 - -
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock.......crvvvvecrrrvennnnns 857 223 104
Exercise of S10Ck OPHONS. ... .cc.ciireerirerarsessmesresicssnensresssnanees - 421 740
Purchase of treasury StoCK ......ivceerecivmnerierninssnessnimssenissinensans - - (639)
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities .................. 41,404 24,670 (3,795)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.......occvveeeene 2,627 6,772 (13,590}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year..........ocecerevicerrrenne 31,534 24,762 38,352
Cash and cash equivalents, end of Year ...........coccvnvtiisvernrmrensenennnne $ 34,161 $ 31,534 $ 24,762

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

1.  Summary of Siguificant Accounting Policies
General

First Acceptance Corporation (the “Company”) is a holding company based in Nashville, Tennessee with
operating subsidiaries whose primary operations include the selling, servicing and underwriting of non-standard
personal automobile insurance. The Company writes non-standard personal automobile insurance in 12 states and is
licensed as an insurer in 13 additional states. Business is written through three wholly-owned subsidiarics, First
Acceptance Insurance Company, Inc., First Acceptance Insurance Company of Georgia, Inc. and First Acceptance
Insurance Company of Tennessee, Inc. (the “Insurance Companies”). The Company has limited activities related to
its attempts to market and dispose of remaining foreclosed real estate held for sale.

Basis of Consolidation and Reporting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries which are all wholly owned. Thesc financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassificarions

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s consolidated financial statements to conform
with the current year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. It also requircs disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual
resulis could differ from those estimates.

Investments

Fixed maturities, available-for-salc, include bonds with fixed principal payment schedules and loan-backed
securities which are amortized using the retrospective method. These securities are carricd at market value with the
corresponding unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of deferred income taxes, reported in other comprehensive
income or loss. Market values are obtained from a recognized pricing service.

Investment securilies are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risk. Market
values of securities fluctuate based on the magnitude of changing market conditions; significant changes in market
conditions could materially affect portfolio value in the near term. Management reviews investments for impairment
on a quarterly basis. Any decline in the market value of any available-for-sale security below cost that is deemed to
be other-than-temporary would result in a reduction in the carrying amount of the security to market value. The
impairment would be charged to net income and a new cost basis for the security would be established.

Realized gains and tosses on sales of securities are computed based on specific identification and arc
included within othcr revenues.
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Cash and Cash Egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank demand deposits and highly-liquid investments. All investments
with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition

Insurance premiums earned are recognized on a pro-rata basis over the respective terms of the policies.
Written premiums are recorded as of the effective date of the policies for the full policy premium although most
policyholders elect to pay on a monthly installment basis. Policy and renewal fees are included in premiums earned
and are recognized on a pro-rata basis over the respective terms of the policics. Premiums are generally collected in
advance of providing risk coverage, minimizing the Company’s exposure to credit risk. Premiums recewable are
recorded net of an estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts.. .

Commission income and related policy fees, written for affiliated and unaffiliated insurance companies, are
recognized at the date the customer is initially billed or a5 of the effective date of the insurance policy, whichever is
later. Commissions on premium endorsements are recognized when premiums are processed. Motor club fees
written by an affiliate are eamed on a pro-rata basis over the respective terms of the contracts and included within
commission and fee income. Fees are paid monthly by motor club members and are generally collected in advance
of providing coverage, minimizing the Company's exposure to credit risk.

Fee income includes agency and installment fees to compensate the Company for the costs of providing
installment payment plans, as well as late payment, policy cancellation, policy rewrite and reinstatement fees. The
Company recognizes these fees on a collected basis, Installment billing fees paid by policyholders are recognized as
revenue when each installment is billed.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance premiums, losses and loss adjustment expenses are accounted for on bases consistent with
those used in accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Ceding
commission income with retrospective adjustment features is calculated based upon the related estimated incurred
losses and loss expenses including a provision for unreported losses. Ceding commission income, as included
within other revenues, for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was 30, $0 and $2,975, respectively.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
arnounts ofexistmg assets and liabilitics and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled, The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactrent date.

A valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset is established based upon management’s estimate of
whether it is more likely than not that the Company would not realize tax benefits in future periods to the full extent
available. Changes in the valuation allowance are recognized in income during the period in which the
circumstances that cause such a change in management’s estimate oceur.
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Advertising Costs

Adventising costs are expensed when incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 was $11,739, $9,384 and $6,692, respectively. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, prepaid advertising costs,
which are included in other assets within the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, were $2,959 and $2,808.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
assets (generally ranging from three to seven years) using the straight-line method. Leaschold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the lives of the respective leases or the service lives of the improvements. Repairs and
maintenance are charged-to expense as incurred. Equipment under capitalized lease obligations i5 stated at the
present value of the minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease term, s

Foreclosed Real Estate Held for Sale '

. Foreclosed real estate held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell.
The Company periodically reviews its portfolio of foreclosed real estate held for sale using curent information
including (i) independent appraisals, (ii) general economic factors affecting the area where the property is located,
(iiii) recent sales activity and asking prices for comparable properties and (iv) costs to sell and/or develop that would
serve to lower the expected proceeds from the disposal of the real estate. Gains (losses) realized on liquidation are
recorded directly to operations and included within other revenues. Foreclosed real estate held for sale assets at June
30, 2007 and 2006 of $341 and $87, respectively, are included within other assets.

Deferred Acquisition Costs / Deferred Ceding Commissions

Deferred acquisition costs include premium taxes and other variable underwriting and direct sales costs
incurred in connection with writing business. These costs are deferred and amortized, net of deferred ceding
comumission income from our reinsurer, over the policy period in which the related premiums are eamned, to the
extent that such costs are deemed recoverable from future uneamed premiums and anticipated investment income.
Amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $20,366, $15,226 and $3,967,

respectively.
Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets are attributable to our insurance operations. Goodwill and
indefinite-life intangible assets are not amortized for financial statement purposes, but are instead fested annually for
impairment. The Company uses June 30 of each year as its annual impairment testing date for goodwill and other .
intangible assets. As of June 30, 2007, the Company tested goodwilt and other identifiable intangible assets and as'a
result has recorded no impairment. Included in unamortized other identifiable intangible assets is an amount related
to the value of customer lists and relationships which is being amortized through June 2008 in proportionto  * - :
anticipated policy expirations. et

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are undiscounted and represent case-basis estimates of reported
losses and estimates based on certain actuarial assumptions regarding the past experience of reparted losses,
including an estimate of losses incurred but not reported (“IBNR”). Management believes that the losses and loss
adjustment reserves are adequate to cover the ultimate liability. However, such estimate may be more or less than
the amount ultimately paid when the claims are finally settled.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Effective July 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(Revised), Share Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123(R)”). SFAS No. 123(R) requires all sharc-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their
fair values, Prior to July 1, 2003, the Company followed the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB No. 25™), to account for its stock option activity in the
financial statements. Effective July 1, 2003, the Company adopted the prospective method provisions of SFAS No.
148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, and uses the fair value method for
expensing stock-based compensation on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Regarding the adoption of
SFAS No.-123(R), there was no effect on net income and net income per share for the years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005 since all stock options issued under APB No. 25 were fully vested prior to July 1, 2004. :

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertairty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"), was issued. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements with FASB
Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return, as well as providing guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim perieds, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December. 15, 2006.
The Company is currently cvajuatmg the unpact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on future consohdated
financial statements. .

In Scptembcr 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157"}, which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the
relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this statement does not require any new fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. Earlier application is encouraged, provided that the reperting entity has not
yet issued financial statements for the fiscal year, including financial statements for an interim period within that
fiscal year. The Company has not evaluated the requirements of SFAS 157 and has not yet detcnnmed 1f SFAS 157
will have a material impact on future consolidated financial statements. _

In February 2007, the FASB issued Stalcment No. 159, Establishing the Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Liabilities (“SFAS 159"), which includes an amendment to FASB No. 1185, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (“SFAS 115"). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by
providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets
and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This statement is expected
to expand the use of fair value measurement, which is consistent with the FASB’s long-term measurement
objectives for accounting for financial instruments. This statement applics to all entities and most of the provisions
of this statement apply only to entities that elect the fair value option. However, the amendment to SFAS 115 applies
to all entities with available-for-sale and trading securitics, SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November.15, 2007, with early adoption permitted for an entity that has also elected to apply the provisions of -
SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. An entity is prohibited from retrospectively applying SFAS 159, unless it
chooses-early adoption. SFAS 159 also applies to cligible items existing at November 15, 2007 (or carly adoption):
The Company has not evaluated the requirements of SFAS 159 and has not yet dctcrmmed if SFAS 159 will have a
material impact on future consolidated financial statements,
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Supplemental Cash Flow Information

During the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Company paid $807, $927 and $1,775,
respectively, in income taxes and $1,663, $586 and $233, respectively, in interest. '

Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income {loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares, while dituted net income (loss} per share is
computed by dividing net income (loss) avaitable 1o common shareholders by the weighted average number of such
common shares and dilutive share equivalents. Dilutive share equivalents result from the assumed conversion of
employee stock options and are calculated using the treasury stock method. '

2. Business Combinations

USAuto Holdings

On April 30, 2004, the Company consummated an agreement dated December 15, 2003 to acquire 100% of
the outstanding common stock of USAuto Holdings, Inc. (“USAuto”), a non-standard automobile insurance agency
based in Nashville, Tenncssee. The consideration consisted of $76,000 in cash, 13,250 shares of our common stock
issued at closing and 750 shares issued in 2005 upon the attainment of certain financial targets. The aggregate
purchase price of $166,800 was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
based upon their respective fair values as of the date of the acquisition. Total goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets recorded from the acquisition were $110,024, which was netof a $41,277 reduction in the deferred tax
allowance based upon projections of USAuto’s future taxable income. Acquired identifiable intangible assets
included $4,800 assigned 1o state insurance licenses and trademark and trade names, which are not subject to
amortization.

Texas Insurance Agency

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company acquired the assets (principally the book of business and 13 retail
locations) of a non-standard automobile insurance agency in Texas for $4,000 in cash. Goodwill and jdentifiable
intangible assets from this acquisition are deductible for tax purposes. As a result of this acquisition, the Company
is now writing business through company-operated retail locations in Texas. Of the total purchase price, $3,813 has.
been recorded as goodwill and $187 has been assigned to an identifiable intangible asset related to the value of
policy renewals, which was amortized over a 7-month period in proportion to anticipated policy expirations.

Pro forma financial information has not been presented for this acquisition since the nature of the revenue-
producing activity of this business has changed from a managing general agency to the underwriting results of an
insurance company. The results of operations of the business acquired are included in the Company’s statements of
operations beginning on January 1, 2005, the date of acquisition.

Chicago Insurance Agencies

Effective January 12, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets (principally the trade names, customer
lists and relationships and the lease rights to 72 retail locations) of two non-standard automobile insurance agencies
under common control in Chicago, Illinois for $30,000 in cash plus $183 in acquisition expenses. Goodwill and
identifiable intangible assets from this acquisition are deductible for tax purposes. The purchase price was financed
through a newly executed credit agreement (see Note 10). In accordance with the terms of the acquisition, $1,037 of
additional consideration was paid in March 2007 based on attainment of certain financial targets. Asa result of this
acquisition, the Company is now writing business from these locations. The Company also received a monthly fee
from the seller through December 31, 2006 totaling $5,000 as compensation for servicing the run-off of business
previously written by the agencies through other insurance companies. Fees of $850 and $4,150 were recognized
and included within other revenues during the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Net tangible assets........cocvriniveervrinirevnsessenrens . 8 330

Identifiable mtanglblc 1.1 O, 2,570

Goodwill........occcce i e, 28,320
Total assets acqUIred.........ocvvivrersrevresrovees $ 31,220

Of the $2,570 in acquired identifiable intangible assets, $1,560 was assigned to trademark and trade names,
which are not subject to amortization. The remaining $1,010 of acquired identifiable intangible assets relates to the
value of customer lists and relationships and is being amortized over a 30-month period in proportion to anticipated
policy expirations. The Company estimated the fair value of the customer lists and relationships acquired by
dlscoummg to present value the estimated future eamings available from future conversions a.nd renewals of

, insurance policies existing as of the closing date. C. .

Pro forma financial information has not been presented for this acquisition since the nature of the revenue-
producing activity of this business has changed from a retail insurance agency to the underwntmg results of an
insurance company. The results of the operations of the business acquired are included in the Company’s statements
of operations beginning on January 12, 2006, the date of acquisition.

For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, amortization rel'ated to all identifiable intangible-assets
was $415, $612 and $930, respectively, At June 30, 2007, the remaining identifiable intangible assets subject to
amortization were all related to the Chicago acquisition. Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2008
will be $50, which represents the remaining balance subject to amortization.

3. Iovestments

Restrictions

At June 30, 2007, fixed maturities and cash equivalents with a market value of $6,328 (amortized cost of
$6,425) were on deposit with various insurance departments as a rcquiremcnt of doing business in those states. In
addition, cash equivalents of 33,189 were on deposit with another insurance company as collateral for an assumed
reinsurance contract (see Note 4).

Investment Income and Net Realized Gains and Losses

The major categories of investment income follow:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale.......c.oisverecvrnnns S$1,770 $4.411 $2419
Investment in mutual fund........ccoo e - 674 920
Cash and cash equivalents.......ivvniieess i 1,525 983 198
[NVESIMENT EXPLNSES .ovverrissnrrersnsesrmrnssiennsensasssssenes (432) (306) (184)
$ 8,863 $5,762 $ 3,353

Net realized capital gains (losses) on investments, which are included in other revenues within the
consolidated statements of operations, from fixed maturities available-for-sale follow:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
CTAINS ..o vcrerecercreer v e rereresesn e srmnr s s s sssess s aessnsesseass s 9 § 88 §F 12
| L U (131) (164) (19)

$ (61) $ (76) $ §3
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Fixed Maturities, Available-for-sale

The composition of the portfolio foillows:

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
June 30, 2007 Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. GOVErMMENL ..ocorrreerreremsensesmmesrsenscsss $ 15014 s 13 $ (320) $ 14,707
SIBLE .oeericrniers e nra e resnasnes 7,445 46 (131) 7,360
Political subdivisions ...........cceeriniveniinene 4,389 7 (65) 4,33}
Revenue and assesSMEnt .......ouewrevinenen 26,876 57 (463) 26,470
Corporate BORdS......oveueiversvsmessrssssssssens: 32,696 17 (626) 32,087
Collateralized mongage .......eevurrereessenens 92,908 59 (1,367) 91,600

$ 179,328 5§ 199 $ (2,972) $ 176,555

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
June 30, 2006 Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. GOVEITIMENL ...c.covveveorerisessiessncssenonns $ 14,808 b 6 $ (466) $ 14,348
SLAIE 11 evveme s vereseeenesrese s sas snsnassssanasassanns 7,706 1 (196) 7,511
Political subdivisions ...........cevevvermeicennann, 6,630 - (140) 6,490
Revenue and assessment ........ovvvnrecnssnses 25,597 4 (634) 24,917
Corporate bonds.......c.ceeureveisersersernssssnenss 22,006 - (599) 21,407
Collateralized mortgage .........cevevvivivssnne 54,544 25 (1,414) 53,155

$131,291 $ 36 $ (3,499) $ 127,828

The composition of maturities of the portfolio at June 30, 2007 follows:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value
OnE year or Iess....ecvmnirsvimmscssiisinnenenns 3 4,780 $ 4,740
One to five Years.......comvuevvrrsmasarienns 33,664 33,248
FiVe 10 teN YIS .ceervvmeerrirrrinsnseneseessnsnsressnsss 37,510 36,902
Greater than ten Years ......co.oueimsrerssioreracs 10,466 10,065
No single maturity date..........coivveenieicacscnen 92,908 91,600
$179,328 $ 176,555
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The fair value and gross unrealized losses of fixed maturities, available-for-sale, by length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position follows:

Less than 12 months 12 montbs or longer

Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized

June 30, 2007 Value Losses Value Losses Losses
U.S. Government........coceeerinicinnneninns $ 6,155 $ (71) £ 7,546 S (249 $ (320)
S1BLC...reeir e s s renan e 2,469 (68) 1,833 (63) {131)
Political subdivisions........coceececernienine 912 )] 2,296 -+ (56) (65)
Revenue and assessment......cceeneveennen 13,400 (303) 6,655 (160) (463)
Corporate bonds .......ocveevervreeriaenirinee 17,761 (488) 9,215 (138) {626)
Collateralized mortgage......ovvsereernens 54,225 (834) 14,268 (533) (1,367)
394,922 $(1,773)  $41,813 $ (1,199 3 (2,972)

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer

Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Unrealized

June 30, 2006 Value Losses Value Losses Losses
U.S. GOVEMMERL. ...ocoiereeirnsrisasusssnsans $ 13,349 $  (466) s - L $ (466)
SRALE. .coueeereeereemrre e enersrsssir et vennes 6,372 {129) 1,138 (67 (196)
Political subdivisions..........c..ccoervrerene 5,289 (118) 1,027 (22) (140)
Revenue and asseSSMENL....c.cvererivinnenns 18,236 {472) 4,610 (212) (684)
Corporate bonds ........coevsssetisenianennns 15,492 (406) 5,915 (193) (599)
Collateralized mortgage..............ccoune 41,269 (934) 8,986 (480) (1,414)
$100,007 $ (2,525) $ 21,676 § (974) $ (3,499)

As of June 30, 2007, there were 68 securities with gross unrealized losses for more than 12 months and 142
securities with gross unrealized losses for less than 12 months. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company has
determined that all of the unrealized losses in the tables above were temporary and were the result of changes in
interest rates. There were no fundamental issues with any of these securities and the Company has the ability and
intent to hold the securities until there is a recovery in fair value. There were no securities with unrealized losses of

greater than 10% of book value.

4, Reinosurance

Prior to September |, 2004, the Company reinsured risks on a quota-share basis with another insurance
organization 10 provide it with additional underwriting capacity and minimize its risk. Such reinsurance was not
renewed as of that date on a cut-off basis whereby the reinsurer is not liable for any losses occwrring after such date.
Subsequent to this date through April 14, 2006, the Company utilized only excess-of-loss basis reinsurance for
catastrophic auto physical damage exposures. Effective April 14, 2006, the Company elected to not renew its
catastrophic reinsurance. Although the reinsurance agreements contractually obligate the reinsurers to reimburse the
Company for their share of losses, they do not discharge the primary liability of the Company, which remains
contingently liable in the event the reinsurers are unable to meet their contractual obligations.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Insurance Companies had unsecured aggregate reinsurance receivabies of
$326 and $1,344, respectively, from a single reinsurance entity. At June 30, 2007, such amount included $309
related to unpaid losses (including $(32) in IBNR), and $17 related to paid losses recoverable. At June 30, 2006,
such amount included $1,301 related to unpaid losses (including $769 in IBNR), and $43 related to paid losses
recoverable.
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Ceded premiums eamed and reinsurance recoveries on losses and loss adjustment expenses were as
follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Ceded premiums €amed..........coveriemieiniinnneie et 5 - $ 8l $8,732
Reinsurance recoveries on losses and loss adjustment expenses.... 437 188 5,867

The Company also has assumed private-passenger non-standard automobile insurance premiums from
other insurance companies produced by the managing general agency subsidiaries in Alabama and Texas,

Net premiums written and earmed are summarized as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
DHTECT vveveeeeceeeiaies $ 290,784 $ 280,946 $216,131 $ 186,833 $ 128,543 $117,706
Assumed........ccoeu.e 19,872 19,715 21,581 22,019 25,855 23,703
Ceded....covvvvreeerreen. - - (81) (81) 6,051 (8,732)
NEt coovrrierierirenireens. 3 310,656 $ 300,661 $ 237,631 $ 208,771 $ 160,449 $ 132,677

The percentages of premiums assumed 10 net premiums written for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were 6%, 9% and 16%, respectively.

5,  Stock-Based Compensation Plans
Employee Stock-Based Incentive Plan

The Company has issued stock options to employces under its 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).
At June 30, 2007, there were 3,337 shares remaining available for issuance under the Plan, Option awards are
generally granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company's stock at the date of grant. The
options expire over ten years and generally vest equally in annual installments over four or five years. Certain
option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is = change in control (as defined in the Plan).

Compensation expense related to stock options is calculated under the fair value method and is recorded on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Fair value of the options was estimated at the grant dates using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the following assumptions:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Expected Option 181N .. reeeccmsieniissnnins 10 years 10 years 10 years
Annualized volatility rate .....cocvcvniriieennnns 32t033% 32 1038% 3610 38%
Risk-free rate of return ..........oiveeninivesnnens 4,74104.77% 4.0210525% 411%
Dividend yield .....ccocevinmmiisnnnienne 0% 0% 0%
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A summary of the status of the Plan as of June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and changes during the years then
ended is presented below:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Exercise Exercise Intrinsic
Options Price Price Value

Options outstanding at July 1,2004 ................. 4,182 $3.00-56.64 $ 317
L8] 12111« O 200 $£8.13 $ 813
EXErcised....couveeriireeciinrccens s (246) £3.00 $ 3.00
Forfeited......coccoeivenreenn e vcer s eeeceer s - - S -
Options outstanding at June 30, 2005..........0.00. 4,136 $3.00-38.13 $ 3142
Granted.......eeeieeeeerirereereseeseersasossesternenssneressen - - s -
EXEICISEa e iurnrveimreierriseeresi s s seesmvmsassevnins (55) $3.00-88.13 § 7.66
Forfeited ..o rcee s emeserasns -- - s -
Options outstanding at June 30, 2006............... 4,081 $3.00-$8.13 $ 337
L7 5191 (-« KSR 635 $10.12-$11.81 $11.61
EXEICISEdorenierieccci e et ereanes - - 5 -
FOrfeited cvnrvriiriris et aerensarains - - ' -

Options outstanding at June 30, 2007............... 4,716 $3.00-$11.81 $ 44 $ 27,722

Options exercisable/vested at June 30, 2007..... 3,917 $£3.00-$8.13 $ 3.20 § 27279

The weighted average estimated fair value of stock options granted during the years ended June 30, 2007
and 2005 was $6.27 and $4.74, respectively. There were no options granted during the year ended June 30, 2006. As
of June 30, 2007, the weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding and exercisable/vested is
approximately 6.2 years and 5.7 years, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

- During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted the First Acceptance
Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP") whereby eligible employces may purchase shares of the
Company’'s common stock at a price equal 1o the lower of the closing market price on the first or last trading day of
a six-month period. ESPP participants can authorize payroll deductions, administered through an independent plan
custodian, of up to 15% of their salary to purchase semi-annually (June 30 and December 31) up to $25 of the
Company's common stock during each calendar year. The Company has reserved 100 shares of common stock for
_ issuance under the ESPP. Employees purchased 25, 22 and 11 shares during the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Compensation expense attributable 1o subscriptions to purchase shares under the ESPP was
$25, $22 and $11 for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005. At June 30, 2007, 41 shares remain available
for issuance under the ESPP,

6. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan (“401k Plan”) under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The 401k Plan covers substantially all employees who meet specified service requirements.
Under the 401k Plan, the Company may, at its discretion, match 100% of the first 3% of an employee's salary plus
50% of the next 2% up to the maximum allowed by the Intemal Revenue Code. The Company’s contributions to the
401k Plan for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $654, $396 and $282, respectively.
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7.  Property and Equipment

The components of property and equipment are as follows:

Juae 30,

2007 2006
Fumniture and equipment ........ocoemimininiesiisssiemsenas $ 6,456 $ 4,943
Leasehold improvements.........oeveverensesisnsiiessnns 1,999 1,740
Capitalized lease obligations........cccccvrerernnenrnnnnae _ 588 431

9,233 1,304
Less: accumulated depreciation..........ccccvvvrineen 5117 (3,928)
Total property and equipment, net..........cocvnvnirnens $ 4,116 $ 3,376

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was $1,209, $851, and $590 for
the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

8. Lease Commitments

The Company is committed under various lcase agreements for office space and equipment. Certain lease
agreements contain renewal options and rent escalation clauses. Rental expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$11,555, $8,077 and $3,196, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under these agrecments follow:

Year Ended June 30, Amount
2008...coiiivicnienne $6,573
2009...cciiiniia 7,530
2010 5,931
pA1 ) | PR 3,037
2012..... e 1,31t
Thereafter.........ccccovnev 1,583
Total .ooiirrinieneenee $ 28,965

Effective with the USAuto acquisition and in accordance with the terms of the severance agreement of the
Company’s former President and Chief Exccutive Officer and current director, the Company has assigned and
transferred to a new entity all of the Company’s rights, title and interest in its lease for office space in Chicago,
{ltinois. Such entity has assumed all obligations under the lease and such obligations will be reimbursed to the
entity by the Company during the term of the lease. The total future cost of this obligation was $1,086 and such
amount was accrued as of the acquisition date in the consolidated financial statements by the Company as part of the
severance cost. At June 30, 2007, $501 remained to be paid under this obligation through August 2009.
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9,  Losses aod Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred and Paid

Information regarding the reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE") is as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005

Liability for unpaid losses and LAE at beginning of year, gross......ccouvueae $ 62,822 $ 42,397 $ 30,434
Reinsurance balances receivable ... ..vcecieeieeerirvvrsersesnesnrarnrescrsrssarssisess (1,301) (3,608) {12,297)
Liability for unpaid losses and LAE at beginning of year, net...........coeeee 61,521 39,289 18,137
Add: Provision for losses and LAE: - )

CURTENL YEAT ....veiencevanisnne i iecrsesss s ss s stsssiestan s sesnsassinsonsacs s recrrsneseeans 238,043 142,436 88,068

PHOE YEAIS.........rvvrnrereeeriinitaeiar i essst et rae s e prns brassssese sabssasaas perans sensabtnsson 3,865 (1,548) {356)

Accretion of net risk margin/discounting as of the date of acquisition...... - (43) (219)
Net losses and LAE incuWmed. .......voiviminrnsiminiicrsnssssnssssssnsssssessanssiones 241,908 140,845 87,493
Less: Losses and LAE paid: ‘

CUUTENE YEAT ...1\1veeerieeerasecsnersasensanssesmesserssscnssenssssssesesasaesemsasssisssssssansssnans 160,872 90,589 53,238

PriOT YEAIS.....c0vieserntivsnasmnensinrassnssssestrenssiressernes sesabtsns anesenssasssnsnsinsanss 51,420 . 28,024 13,103
Net losses and LAE paid.....cecnniinns ot eabe e eieraara e eestsarenarnreaeranse i aREes 212,292 118,613 66,341
Liability for unpaid losses and LAE at end of year, nel........cocovnernnsvenren 91,137 61,521 39,289
Reinsurance balances FECEIVADIE .-......ccuiveveerireresereseseisesessmensrerssnssssressores 309 1,301 © 3,608
Liability for unpaid losses and LAE at end of year, gross..........coucesruvarns $ 91,446 $ 62,822 $ 42,897

The unfavorable change in the estimate of unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses of $3,865 for the year
ended June 30, 2007 was primarily a result of the fact that the Company had limited historical loss experience in our
new states for use in determining its loss reserve estimates. Such unfavorable change was primarily related to the
Bodily Injury and Personai Injury Protection coverages in Florida,

Management believes that the favorable changes in the estimates of unpaid loss and loss adjustment
expenses of $1,548 and $356 recognized for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were attributable
to the inherent uncertainty in the estimation process and were not the result of any individual factor.

10. Notes Payable and Capitalized Lease Obligations

In connection with the acquisition of the Chicago, Illinois non-standard automobile insurance agencies, on
January 12, 2006, the Company entered into, and borrowed under, a credit agreement with two banks consisting of a
$5,000 revolving facility and a $25,000 term loan facility, both maturing on June 30, 2010. Through September 13,
2007, outstanding borrowings under the term loan facility bore interest at LIBOR plus 175 basis points per annum
(7.11% at June 30, 2007). At June 30, 2007, the Company had $5,000 of outstanding borrowings under the
revolving facility, The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement on January 17, 2006 that fixed the
interest rate on the term loan facility at 6.63% through June 30, 2010. The term loan facility is due in equal
quarterly instaltments through June 30, 2010. Both facilitics are sccured by the common stock and certain assets of
selected subsidiaries. The credit agreement contains certain financial covenants regarding (1) a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio, (2) a minimum consolidated tangible net worth, (3) a maximum net premiums written to
surplus ratio, (4) a maximum combined ratio, (5} a minimum RBC and (6) a minimum net income requirement.

At June 30, 2007, we were oot in compliance with financial covenants in the credit agreement regarding a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio and a maximum combined ratio. Our lenders waived this non-compliance as
of June 30, 2007 and we entered into an amendment to the credit agreement dated September 13, 2007, The
amended terms have less restrictive financial covenants, increased the interest rate we pay by 75 basis points and
require us to make a prepayment of at least $6,000 in principal before December 31, 2007, In addition, the
availability under the revolving credit facility was permanently reduced from $5,000 to $2,060.
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The maturities of the notes payable and capitalized lease obligations secured by equipment as of June 30, .
2007 are as follows:

Capitaiiud

Lease Notes
Year Ended June 30, Obligations Paysble . Totsl

2008........coivrrrirmroreesnestsestsesssr st eta e nas 323 $ 5552 $ 5,783

2009........... eerern bR e e e s 230 5,552 _ 5,782

P13 L1 OO 1 11,956 11,957

C . $ 462 $ 23,060 323,522 .

- Less: Amount representing executory costs...... (30)

Net minimum lease payments.....vnersseesses . 432

_ Less: Amount representing interest.........coeerene (16)

Present value of net minimum lease payments.. $ 416
11. 'Debentures Payable

In June 2007, First Acceptance Statutory Trust I (“FAST 1"}, a wholly-owned unconsolidated subsidiary -
trust of the Company, issued 40 shares of preferred securities at $1,000 per share to outside investors and 1.24

_shares of common securities to the Company, also at $1,000 per share. The sole assets of FAST 1 are $41,240 of

junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company. The debentures will mature on July 30, 2037 and are

redeemable by the Company in whole or in part beginning on July 30, 2012, at which time the preferred securities

are ¢allable. The debentures pay a fixed rate of 9.277% until July 390, 2012, after which the rate becomes variable
(LIBOR p_lus 175 ];asis points). .

The obligations of the Company under the junior subordinated debentures represent full and uncenditional
guarantees by the Company of FAST I's obligations for the preferred securities, Dividends on the preferred
securities are cumulative, payable quarterly in arrears and are deferrable at the Company’s option for up to five
years. The dividends on these securities are the same as the interest on the debentures, The Company cannot pay
dividends on its common stock during such deferments. . .

The debentures are classified as debentures payable on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and the
interest paid on these debentures is classified as interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

12. Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following:

Year Ended June 30,

L 2007 2006 2008
. Federal: re o
CUITENL....cccrrre v pesssmnsnnssrsnsaes st Vaeeeseresssesesssensans $ 75 $ 1610 $ SIS
DeferTed........ivveerisiieicrecrmsisessrerssassisisssisassasssassusasans 17,132 (1,533) (2,986)
State INCOME LAXES ....ovevererrperesrersaemssmaemsssssnsessseesssons 349 . 133 318
. N $17,586 . .$ (1,039) $ (2,153)




The'federal provision (bcncﬁt) for income taxes differs from the amounts computcd by applying the U.S.
Federal corporate tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Pravision for income taxes at statutory rate................. 5 32 3. 9,460 $§ 8401
Tax effect of:
Tax-exempt investment INCOME .oovvvermvrsrrrsnrsrssnsssresin (78) - (221) (261)
Change in the beginning of the year balance of the
valuation allowance for deferred tax asset
allocated to INCOME LAXES.......ccevirecrerrrinrnnisireraerrnees 6,882 {10,540) {10,594)
Net operating loss carryforward expirations............... 9990 . 302 -
OHRET .o e e e e s ere e e seates 92 {373) an
$ 17,207 $ (1,372 3 (247D

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the net deferred tax asset at June 30, 2007 and
2006 are presented below:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards ... .........occvincnnennmissinssinins $ 46,549 $ 57847
Stock Option COMPENSALON. v 3,063 2,718
Unearned premiums and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves... 8,254 6,812
Net unrealized change on EIVESTMENES ovoveeiicristessnnissenssssrassnsnsnsns 929 1,212
Alternative minimum tax (“AMT") credlt canyforwards 1,232 1,154
Other ... 1,070 846
: 61,097 70,589
Deferred tax liabilities: -
Deferred acquiSition COSIS .....ccoviivimrmsriisnisesmssnissmismsssssesiantesassess (1,808) (1,865)
GOOAWIlL...ccoeeeeice et (1,320) (222)
: . (3,128) (2,087)
Total net deferred tax BSSELS . ... .orerermsermmmrererserarrenses ceeersenesrnatsss s 57969 68,502
Less: Valuation allowance..........ccoceeieecvenceiirnccnaenressseesnissssssssnr o - (27,033) (20,434)
NEt dEfETTEd LAX ASSEIS ..o.vevvivesrisrsiresreessrissirsissssssensessessonnes rasnessnsesssases $ 30,93 $ 48068

The net change in the valuation allowance for the year ended June 30, 2007 was an increase of $6,599
while the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2003 included decreases of $9,328 and $10,594, respectively. In addition,
during the year ended June 30, 2007, the provision for income taxes included a $9,990 charge related to the
expiration of certain net operating loss (*NOL") carryforwards due to taxable income for the current fiscal year
being less than management’s most recent estimates of current fiscal year taxable income. Prior to the acquisition of
USAuto, a full vatuation allowance had been established, as management believed that it was more likely than not
that the Company would not realize the benefits of the loss carryforwards. However, as result of the acquisition,
management reduced the valuation allowance based upon internally-prepared projected operating results.
Subsequently, such projections were revised afier considering the actual results for the years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005, and the allowance was further revised.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, $929 and $1,212, respectively, of the valuation allowance was related to the
net unrealized change on investments as management believes that it is more likely than not that this tax benefit will
not be realized. For the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the change in the valuation allowance of $283 and
$1,212, respectively, is included as part of other comprehensive loss.
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At June 30, 2007, the Company had NOL carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of $132,998,
which are available to offset future federal taxable income. In addition, at June 30, 2007, the Company had AMT
credit carryforwards of $1,232 that have no expiration date. The NOL camryforwards will expire in 2008 through
2023, as shown in the following table:

Expiration Year Ended June 30, Amount
2008 ...ueireerirenrerrer e et sssss e stsase e $ 36,188
2009 oottt se s e srasane 84,791
2000 ovvirirrisrrerire e rsnesrerseseirnass s sngastes 7,095
.1 ] 1 OO 2,099
THereafler....ccuvvureevreniereeererreessieranerenessas 2,825
Total NOL carryforwards............ccconeins $ 132,998

13. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share, specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements
for earnings per share (“EPS”). Basic EPS are computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding.
Diluted EPS are computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for the incremental
shares attributed to outstanding securities with a right to purchase or converl into common stock.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net income (1088} .....ccoieniiicrircnmicenesienns $ (16,670) $ 28,068 $ 26,156
Weighted average common basic shares ...... 47,584 47,487 47,055
Effect of dilutive securities — options .......... = 2,089 1,934
Weighted average common dilutive shares... 47,584 49,576 48,989
" Basic net income (loss) per share.................. $ (035 $ 059 $ 056
Diluted net income (loss) per share............... 5 (035 g 0.57 $ 053

Options to purchase 2,083 shares of common stock for the year ended June 30, 2007 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

14, Coopcentrations of Credit Risk

At June 30, 2007, the Company had certain concentrations of credit risk with several financial institutions
in the form of cash and cash equivalents, which amounted to $34,161. For purposes of evaluating credit risk, the
stability of financial institutions conducting business with the Company is periodically reviewed. If the financial
institutions failed to completely perform under the terms of the financial instruments, the exposure for credit loss
would be the amount of the financial instruments less amounts covered by regulatory insurance.

The Company primarily transacts business either directly with its pollcyholdem or through four
independently-owned insurance agencies in Tennessee who exclusively write insurance policies on behalf of the
Company. Direct policyholders make paymems directly to the Company Balances due from policyholders are
generally secured by the related uneamed premium. The Company requires a down payment at the time the policy
is originated and subsequent scheduled payments are monitored in order to prevent the Company from providing
coverage beyond the date for which payment has béen received. If subsequent payments are not made timely, the
policy is generally cancelled at no loss to the Company. Policyholders whose premiums are written through the
independent agencies make their payments to these agencies who in turn remit these payments to the Company.
Balances due to the Company resulting from premium payments made to these agencies are unsecured.




15. Related Party Tr.ansactions

Certain of the Company’s executives are covered by employment agreements covering, among other
things, base compensation, incentive-bonus determinations and payments in the event of termination, or a change in
control of the Company.

Effective May 1, 2004, the Company entered into an advisory services agreement with an entity controlled
by a current director of the Company to render advisory services in connection with financings, mergers and
acquisitions and other related matters involving the Company. In consideration for the advisory services to be
provided, the Company will pay to the advisor a quarterly fee of $62.5 for a four-year period. The advisory
agreement may be terminated by the Company if the advisor fails or refuses to perform its services pursuant to the
agreement, does any act, or fails to do any act, which results in an indictment for or conviction of a felony or other
similarly serious offense or upon the written agreement of the advisor, The advisor may terminate the agreement
upon written consent of the Company or if the Company is in material breach of its obligations thereunder. See
Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements regarding the terms of a related severance agreement and future
obligations. '

On September 13, 2006, the Company sold 50 shares of common stock to an executive officer for an
aggregate purchase price of $591, or $11.81 per share, which was the closing price of the common stock on New
York Stock Exchange on the date of sale.

16. Litigation

The Company is named as a defendant in various lawsuits, arising in the ordinary course of business,
genenally relating to its insurance operations. All legal actions relating to claims made under insurance policies are
considered by the Company in establishing its loss and loss adjustment expense reserves. Management believes that
the ultimate resolution of these matters will not materially affect the consolidated financial statements.

17.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments has been estimated by the Company using availabie market
information as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate to the circumnstances:

Investments in fixed maturities are carried at market values which are obtained from a recognized pricing
service.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, premiums and fees reccivable and reinsurance reccivables
approximate their carrying amounts based upon their short maturities.

The fair value of the notes payable approximates their carrying amount based upon their variable interest
rates and comparability to rates currently being offered for similar notes.

The fair value of the debentures payable issued on June 15, 2007 was estimated using projected cash flows,

discounted at rates currently being offered for similar financial instruments and approximates their carrying
vatue.
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18. Segment Information

The Company operates in two business segments with its primary focus being the selling, servicing and
underwriting of non-standard personal automobile insurance. The real estate and corporate segment consists of the
activities related to the disposition of foreclosed real estate held for sale, interest expense associated with all debi
and other general corporate overhead expenses.

The following table presenis selected financial data by business segment:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Revenues: . : :
INSUMANCE......c.ccoeceeeeeciveseeneensaererans 3 347,431 $ 244,557 % 164,974
Real estate and corporate ................. 206 . 4,445 1,821
Consolidated total...........cccccvenee. $ 347,637 $ 249,002 $ 166,795
Income (loss) before income taxes:
INSUTANCE.....coevevermnecsmacsensnansareanes $ 6,252 $ 26476 $ 25640
- Real estate and corporate ...........o.vce. (5,336) 553 (1,637)
Consolidated total.......ocoecervrerene 5 916 $ 27,029 $ 24,003
June 30,
2007 2006
Total assets:
Insurance... vrerennane 8 460,356 $ 384,358
Real estate and corporaxe ................. 38,536 50,969
Consolidated 1otal... verrenerne 5 498,892 $ 435,327

19.  Statutory Financial Information and Accounting Policles

The statutory-basis financial statements of the Insurance Companies arc prepared in accordance with
accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Departinent of Insurance in ¢ach respective state of domicile,
Each state of domicile requires that insurance companies domiciled in those states prepare their statutory-basis
financial statements in accordance with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) Accounting
Practices and Procedures Manual subject to any deviations prescribed or permitted by the insurance commissioner
in each state of domicile. In addition, the Insurance Companies are required to report their risk-based capital
(“RBC") each December 31. Failure to maintain an adequate RBC could subject the Insurance Companies to
regulatory ‘action and maintaining an adequate RBC could restrict the payment of dividends. As of December 31,
2006, the RBC levels of the Insurance Companies did not subject them to any regulatory action.

Al June 30, 2007 and 2006, on an unaudited consolidated statutory basis, capital and surplus as calculated
was $120,201 and $74,586, respectively. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, unaudited
consolidated statutory net income (loss) as filed was $(1,891), $10,616 and $7,328, respectively. The only material
accounting method prescribed or permitted by stale insurance departments for the Insurance Companies that differs
from NAIC statutory accounting practices relates to a reduction in the statutory capital and surplus of FAIC at June
30, 2006 of $1,237 for investments on deposit with various insurance departments, in states where the company is
licensed, but is not yet transacting business.

The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by FAIC to the Company, without the prior
approval of the Texas insurance commissioner, is limited 10 the greater of 10% of statutory capital and surplus as of
December 31 of the next preceding year or net income for the year. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2006, the
maximum amount of dividends available to be paid to the Company from FAIC without prior approval within any
preceding twelve-month period is $15,395. The amount of the dividend is further limited by the amount of FAIC's
“earned surplus” which at June 30, 2007 was $15,110.
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FAIC-GA and FAIC-TN are wholly-owned subsidiaries of FAIC and the maximum amount of dividends
which they can pay to FAIC, without the prior approval of the respective insurance commissioner, is limited to the
greater of 10% of their statutory capital and surplus as of December 31 of the next preceding year or net income (not
including realized capital gains) for the year.

20.  Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)
Interim results are not necessarily indicative of fiscal year performance because of the impact of scasonal

and short-term variations, Selected quarterly financial data for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is
summarized as follows:

Quarters Ended
September 30, December 31, March 31, June 10,

Year Ended June 30, 2007:

Total TEVENUES ....cvcveer e cenereenieresesens $ 79,102 $ 84321 $ 91,983 $ 92,231
Net income (loss) before income taxes ... $ 2,336 $ 4241 $ 438313 $ (10,494)
Net income (10S8)....ccocvreerrrirreereererenaranes $ 1,493 $ 2,701 $ 3,066 $(23,930)
Basic net income (loss) per share............ $ 003 $ 006 § 006 $ (0.50)
Diluted net income {loss) per share ........ $ 003 $ 005 $ 006 § (0.50)
Year Ended June 30, 2006:

TOtal FEVENMUBS ..eovvivvireceeririrecarvesrnissenns $ 50,258 $ 53,481 $ 70,068 $ 75,195
Net income before income taxes ............ 3 5,633 $ 5448 $ 9,031 $ 6917
NELINCOME carveeerrrirereresireesenrssrssaressessns $ 3,713 $ 3,800 $ 5864 $ 14,691
Basic net income per sharg.......cceeeveenne. $. 008 $ 008 $ 012 $ 031
Diluted net income per share.....ineveeee $ 008 $ 008 $ 012 $§ 030

Net income (loss) for the fourth quarters of the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 reflect the impact of
changes in the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and the valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset
including the effect of the expiration of certain net operating loss carryforwards.

The year ended June 30, 2007 includes an increase in the valuation allowance of $6,882 resulting from
revisions in management's estimates for the Company’s future taxable income based on the results for the then most
recent fiscal year and an increase in the provision for income taxes of $9,990 due to the expiration of certain net
operating loss carryforwards due 1o taxable income for the curtent fiscal year being less than management’s most
recent estimates of current fiscal year taxable income. In addition, during the fourth quarter of the year ended June
30, 2007, an unfavorable change in the estimate of unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses resulted in a current
period charge of $15,589. Of this amount, $12,589 related to prior accident quarters and $3,000 related to an
unanticipated increase in the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio for the current quarter.

The year ended June 30, 2006 includes a decrease in the valuation allowance of $10,540 resulting from
1axable income for the 2006 fiscal year exceeding the estimates used by management in establishing the valuation
allowances at June 30, 2005, in addition to revisions in management's estimates for the Company’s future taxable
income based on the results for the then most recent fiscal years.

Net loss per share recognized during the quarter ended June 30, 2007 was decreased by $0.35 on a basic
and diluted basis as a result of the combined change in the valuation allowance and net operating loss carryforwards.
Net income per share recognized during the quarter ended June 30, 2006 was increased by $0.22 and $0.21 on s
basic and diluted basis, respectively, as a result of the change in valuation allowance,
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Item 9, Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management team, including our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act) as of
June 30, 2007. Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer (principal exccutive officer) and chief financial
officer (principal financial officer) concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
June 30, 2007 to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms.

Managemeni's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Qur internal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide rcasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial repornting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrec of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer, we conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Intenal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Based on our assessment under the
framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2007.

Our independent registered public accountinig firm, Ermnst & Young, LLP has issued an attestation report on
our internal control over financial reporting, which report appears on page 42 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fourth fiscal quarter of the period covered by this report, there has been no change in our
intemnal contro! over financial reporting that has materiaily affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our
internal control over financial reporting.

ltem 9B. Other Information

None.




PART 1
Item 10. Directors, Execative Officers and Corporate Governance

Information with respect to our directors, set forth in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under the caption “Election of Directors,” is incorporated
" herein by reference. Pursuant to General Instruction G{3), information concerning our executive officers is included
in Part 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Information with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, set
forth in owr Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under
the caption “Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” is incorporated herein by reference.

Information with respect to our code of business conduct and ethics, set forth in our Definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under the caption “Code of .
Business Conduct and Ethics,” is incorporated herein by reference.

Information with respect to our corporate governance disclosures, set forth in our Definitive Proxy
Statemnent for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders 10 be held November 7, 2007, under the caption *“What
Committees Has the Board Established?” is incorporated herein by reference.

On December 11, 2006, the Company filed with the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE") the Armual
CEO Certification regarding the Company's compliance with the NYSE’s Corporate Governance listing standards
as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE Listed Company Manual. The Company has filed as exhibits to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2006, the
applicable certifications of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 regarding the quality of the Company’s public disclosures.

Item i1. Executive Compensation

Information with respect to our executive officers, set forth {in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under the caption “Executive Compensation,” is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related
stockholder matters, set forth in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held
November 7, 2007, under the captions “Stock Ownership” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information,” is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions, and director independence, set
forth in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under
the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence,” is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information with respect to the fees paid to and services provided by our principal accountants, set forth

in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual‘Meeting of Stockholders to be held November 7, 2007, under the
caption “Fees Billed to Us by Emst & Young LLP During 2007 and 2006,” is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules .
(a) Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements: See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on Page 40.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule I - Financial Information of Registrant (Parent Company)

(3) Exhibits: See the exhibit listing set forth below.

2.1 Plan of Reorganization, dated as of April 1, 1996, between the Trust and the Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Registration Statement No. 333-07439 on Form $-4, filed July 2, 1996 (the
“Registration Statement™)).

2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 16, 1996, between Liberté Investors Trust and Hunter’s
Glen/Ford, Ltd. (the “Purchaser”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Liberté investors Trust's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 24, 1996), as amended by the
Amendment to the Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 27, 1996, and the Second
Amendment to the Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 28, 1996 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of Liberté Investors Trust's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
1996}

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, USAH Merger Sub, Inc., USAuto Holdings,
Inc. and the Stockholders of USAuto Holdings, Inc., dated as of December 15, 2003 (incorporated by
reference 10 Exhibit 2.1 of Registration Statement No. 333-111161 on Form S-1, filed December 15,
2003).

kR Restated Certificate of Incorporation of First Acceptance Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Acceptance Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2
of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated September 28, 2004).

4.1 Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 16, 1996, between the Company and the Purchaser
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registration Statcment).

42 Form of Agreement Clarifying Registration Rights, dated August 16, 1996, between the Company, the
Purchaser, the Enloe Descendants® Trust, and Robert Ted Enloe, 11 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 of the Registration Statement).

43 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2002, by and between the Company and Donald J.
Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
July 11, 2002).

4.4 Form of certificate representing shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed December 26, 2002).
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Form of Indemnification Agreement for the Company's directors and officers and schedule of
substantially identical documents (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registration
Statement). .

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2002, by and between the Company and Donald J. Edwards
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11,
2002).*

First Acceptance Corporation 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated-by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-8 filed May 18, 2004).*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2002, by and between the Company and
Donald ). Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exh:bn 10.3 of the Company'’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated July 11, 2002).*

Indemnification Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2002, by and between the Company and Donald J.
Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
July 11, 2002).

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2002, by and between the Company and Donald J.
Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-
8 dated December 26, 2002).*

- -Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2003, by and between the Company and Donald ).

Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated September 26, 2003).*

Advisory Services Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance Corporation
and Edwards Capital LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).*

-Separation Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance Corporation and

Donald J. Edwards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K dated May 3, 2004).*

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance Corporation and
Stephen ). Harrison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated May 3, 2004).* .

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance Corporation and
Thomas M. Harrison, Jr, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).*

. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of A;:;ri-l 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance

Corporation and Stephen J. Harrison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and between First Acceptance
Corporation and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's
Curren1 Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).*

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004, by and among First Acceptance Corporation,
Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Ir. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 2004).
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.2]

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Severance Compensation Agreement, dated as of August 24, 2004, by and between First Acceptance
Corporation and Charles David Hamilton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated September 28, 2004).*

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Company’s 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 3, 2004).*

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Company's 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Cumrent Report on Form 8-K dated
November 3, 2004).* .

First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Registration Statement No. 333-121551 on Form $-8, filed December 22, 2004).

Summary of Compensation for Non-Employee Directors and Named Executive Officers

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2006, by and among First Acceptance Corporation,
Acceptance Insurance Agency of Illinois, Inc., Insurance Plus Agency II, Inc., Yale International
Insurance Agency, Inc. and Constantine Danos (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 18, 2006).

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2006, by and among First Acceptance Corporation, SunTrust
Bank, in its capacity as a lender and as administrative agent for the lenders, and First Bank (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report n Form 8-K dated January 18, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated as of Scptember 13, 2006, by and between First Acceptance Corporation
and Edward Pierce (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated September 19, 2006).*

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2006, by and between First Acceptance
Corporation and Edward Pierce (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2006).*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2006, by and between Furst Acceptance
Corporation and Edward Pierce (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2006).*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of Scptember 13, 2006, by and between First
Acceptance Corporation and Stephen J. Harrison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2006).*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2006, by and between First
Acceptance Corporation and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 of the -
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2006).*

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 9, 2006, by and between First Acceptance Corporation and
Kevin P. Cohn (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K

-dated October 12, 2006).*

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of October 9, 2006, by and between First Acceptance
Corporation and Kevin P. Cohn (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2006).* '

Second Amendment to the First Acceptance Corporation 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 10-Q dated May 10, 2007).*
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10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

14

21

23.1
23.2
31t

312 .

32.1

322

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement of Outside Directors under the Company’s 2002 Long Term
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Current Report on Form 10-Q
dated May 10, 2007).*

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Campany and each of the Company's directors and '
executive officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form
10-Q dated May 10, 2007).*

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated June 15, 2007, between First Acceptance Corporation and
Wilmington Trust Company {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated June 18, 2007),

Guarantee Agreement, dated June 15, 2007, between First Acceptance Corporation and Wilmington Trust
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 18, 2007). .
Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, dated June 15, 2007, among First Acceptance Corporation,
Wilmington Trust Company and the Administrative Trustees Named Therein (incorporated by reference
1o Exhibit 99.4 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 18, 2007).

First Acceptance Corporation Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
14 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated September 28, 2004).

Subsidiaries of First Acceptance Corporalion.

Consent of Emst & Young, LLP,

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Chief Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Chief Financial Officer's Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tb, Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: September 13, 2007

FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION

By /s/ Stephen J. Harrison

Stephen J. Harrison

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuirities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ Stephen J. Harrison

Stephen J. Harrison

/s/ Edward L. Pierce

Edward L. Pierce

/s/ Kevin P. Cohn

Kevin P. Cohn

/s/ Gerald J. Ford

Gerald ). Ford

/s! Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.

Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.

/s/ Rhodes R. Bobbit

Rhodes R. Bobbitt

/s/ Harvey B. Cash

Harvey B. Cash

/s/ Donald J. Edwards

Donald J. Edwards

/s/ Tom C. Nichols

Tom C. Nichols

fs/ Lyndon L. Olson

Lyndon L. Olson

s/ William A. Shipp, Jr.

William A. Shipp, Jr.

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President and Chicf Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Qfficer)

Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting
Officer)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Executive Vice President, Secretary and

_Directon:

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

September 13, 2007
September 13, 2007

September 13, 2007

September 13, 2007

September 13, 2007

September 13, 2007
September 13, 2007
September 13, 2007
September 13, 2007
September 13, 2007

September 13, 2007




FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (PARENT COMPANY)

(in thousands)

Juae 30,
Balance Sheets 2007 1006
Asscls:
Investment in subsidiaries, a1 equity i NELBSFEIS ... mems e s easrse s snises $ 155,010 $ 111,246
Cash and cash equivalents...... 10,350 1,554
Deferred tax asselo.ier e 24,674 42,1
OB BESELS ...y ecreesisecermesr s seesessae s bsbecasrrarmessbems s eRE AR TR AL TN Ebbabe s b EROEF ReARE PR TS AP A RYS v e R TR RS SRR TR TA RO 3,195 790
Foreclosed real estate Held FOr SLe ..o v st s ssarssessasisssasmsios 34! 87
Goodwill and identifinble intangible asscts 114,562 114,562
Amounts due (10) from subsSidiaries ...t (3,136) _1,54
5 305,196 $ 278,494
Liabilities:
Notes payable et 48R B AR 3EdSESARtRE RRSERE $ 23060 $ 15N
Debentures payable............ 41240 -
Other liabilitics et bt ere s eesopR AR e e b nn 1,412 1,459
SLOCKROIETS" BQUILY wouivinsitrresimisriassaser st rass st ssass s asrs srarsssmasessssssrssans seassssassanaes sssses 239,484 253,423
$ 305,196 § 278494
Year Ended Jane 30,
2007 1006 20058
Statementy of Operations
Gains on sales of foreclosed real estate...... s - $ 3638 $ 755
INVESINENT INMCOIMIC ..o eeeere vt sorecesserrsrsssms smmsesessasrsrsssassissssssns s sinsrarses senssrsssns serasrs 206 807 1,066
Equity in income of subsidiaries, net of tax 3,743 1,377 12,197
EXPEISES corvreveresessssossnsosssssessseons sosesest sssss st ssemsssesnssosnbisssesbocssessres (5,608) (3.98T) {4,036)
Income (1038) before INCOME LAXES .....cvismeermiammsssisssmies s sssssrsssasssssstsssasens (1,659) 17,835 14,982
Provision {benefir) for income taxes 15,011 {10,233) (11,i74)
NEL INCOME {JOS3) rrveversereininsorerrerrrsmsassmrenses st tonsmssss s sssas assnatsissas sevassoassss $ (16,670} $ 28,068 $ 26,156
Year Ended June 30,
Statements of Cash Flows 2007 1006 2008
Cash flows from operating activitics:
Net income (loss) ... - $ (16670) $ 28,068 $ 26,156
Equity in income of subsidiaries, Ret of 18X, irvems s snsssssessosisssssssstvenssas (3,743) {(17,377) (17,197)
Depreciation and amortization .......cesserriimsressasessssssssssrass serrerens 66 97 928
Stock-based compensation 1,063 500 KX Y]
Deferred income taxes.. 18,037 514 (1,589)
Gains on sales of foreclosed real estate, - (3,638) (755)
Change in assets and liabilities 3,322 3,725 {3,389)
Net cash provided by operating activities ........ 2,075 13,889 4 486
Cash Nlows from investing activities:
Sales {purchases) of invesiment in mutual fund - 10,920 (10,920}
[nvestment in subsidiary...... (45,765) (47,026) {10,950}
Dividend from subsidiary 6,435 750 | -
Improvements to foreclosed real e3IAIC .cviisrmiimiinins beas e e (254) - (300)
Purchase of common S1ock i tUSL.......coertsmevissssmunmssessisrass s senns (1,240) - -
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed real estate - 4,512 1,202
Cash paid for acquisitions, nct of cash BEQUIREd......o o cccvnniststsrsssisisran - - {4,000)
Net cash used in investing activities........ (40,824) (30,844) (24,968)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings ......... 5,000 30,000 -
Payments on borrowings (5,552) (6,388) -
Proceeds from issuance of debentures 41,240 - -
Net proceeds from issuance of commOn SLOCK wuvunr e st tisnstaes s 857 223 104
Exercise of stock options. - - 421 740
Purchase of treasury stock - - (639)
Net cash provided by financing BCIVIUES v e reccessisinias 41,545 24,256 205
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equIVAIEATS..........cevurensorsssssnsinsie 2,796 1,301 (20,277)
Casb and cash equivalents, begimning of year .. 7,554 253 20,530
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .. $ 10,350 § 7,554 § 25
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SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Stephen J. Harrison, President and Chicf Executive Officer of First Acceptance Corporation, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of First Acceptance Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
. state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)} for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(®) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matcrially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s intemnal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 13, 2007

/s/ Stephen J. Harrison
Stephen J. Harrison
President and Chief Executive Officer
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SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Edward L. Pierce, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of First Acceptance Corporation, certify

that;
1.

2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of First Acceptance Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and [5d-15(¢)) and internal contrel
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely 1o adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 13, 2007

s/ Edward L. Pierce
Edward L. Pierce
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Acceptance Corporation (the “Company”} on Form 10-K for the
period ended June 30, 2007, as filed with the Securitics and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Repont™), I, Stephen J. Harrison, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company at the dates and for the periods indicated.

{s/ Stephen J. Harrison
Stephen J. Hammison

President and Chief Executive Officer

September 13, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to First Acceptance
Corporation, and will be retained by First Acceptance Corporation and fumnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
I8 U.8.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of First Acceptance Corporation (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the
period ended June 30, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Repont™), I, Edward L. Pierce, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to
my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company at the dates and for the periods indicated.

Js/ Edward L. Pierce
Edward L. Pierce
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

September 13, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to First Acceptance
Corporation, and will be retained by First Acceptance Corporation and fumished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD NOVEMBER 7, 2007

To our Stockholders:

The 2007 annual meeting of stockholders of First Acceptance Corporation will be held Wednesday,
November 7, 2007, at 9:30 a.m., central time, at our corporate headquarters, which are located at 3322 West End
Ave., Suite 1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203. At the meeting, stockholders will vote on the following matters:

1. Election of nine directors to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their
respective successors are duly elected and qualified;

2. Approval of an increase in the number of shares authorized for issuance pursuant to the First
Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan;

3. Ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2008; and

4, Any other matters that may properly come before the meeting.

Stackholders of fecord at the close of business on October 1, 2007 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the
meeting.

Your vote is important. Pleasc COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY
CARD in the enclosed stamped envelope in order that as many shares as possible will be represented.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Thomas M. Harmison, Jr.

Secretary

Nashville, Tennessee
October 5, 2007
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FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION
3322 WEST END AVE,, SUITE 1000
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37203

PROXY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of First Acceptance Corporation is soliciting proxies to be used at the 2007 annual
meeting of stockholders. This proxy statement and the enclosed proxy will be first mailed to stockholders on or about
October 5, 2007.

ABOUT THE MEETING
What Is the Purpose of the Annual Meeting?

At our annual meeting, stockholders will vote on the matters outlined in the accompanying notice of
meeting. In addition, our management will report on our performance during fiscal 2007 and respond 10 questions
from stockholders.

Who Is Entitled to Vote?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on the record date, October 1, 2007, are entitled to
receive notice of the annual meeting and volte the shares of common stock that they held on that date at the meeting,
or any postponement or adjournment of the meeting. Each outstanding share of our common stock entitles its holder
to cast one vote on each matter to be voted upon.

What Constitutes a Quorum?

For purposes of voting on all matters, the presence at the meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a
majority of the shares of common stock outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum. As of the record
date, 47,615,289 shares of our common stock were outstanding. Proxies received but marked as abstentions will be
included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the meeting. Broker nonvotes also will
be included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the meeting.

How Do 1 Vote?

If you complete and properly sign the accompanying proxy card and return the card to us, the card will be
voted as you direct. If you are a registered stockholder and attend the meeting, you may deliver your completed proxy
card in-person. "Street name” stockholders who wish to vote at the meeting will need to obtain a proxy form from the
institution that holds their shares.

Can 1 Change My Vote After I Return My Proxy Card?

Yes. You can revoke your proxy-at any time before it is exercised in any of three ways:
* by submitting written notice of revocation to the Secretary;

s by submitting ancther proxy that is later dated and properly signed; or

* by voting in person at the meeting.




What Are the Board's Recommendations?

Unless you give other instructions on your proxy card, the persons named as proxy holders on the proxy card
wiil vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors. The Board's recommendations are set
forth below, and a description of each item is included in this proxy statement. In summary, the Board recommends a
vole:

for election of each of the nominated directors (see page 4);

+ for approval of the amendment 1o the First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see
page 26); and

+  for ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2008 (see page 29).

With respect to any other matter that properly comes before the meeting, the proxy holders will vote as
recommended by the Board of Directors or, if no recommendation is given, in their own discretion,

What Vote Is Required to Approve Each Proposal?

Each of the director nominces must receive affirmative votes from a plurality of the votes cast to be elected.
This means that the nine nominees receiving the preatest number of votes will be elected as directors. The approval
of the amendment 1o the First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan and ratification of the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditors, as well as any other matter that properly comes
before the meeting, in order to be approved, must receive affirmative votes from a majority of the shares represented
in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter. If you abstain from voting on the election of directors, your
abstention will have no effect on the outcome, provided thal a quorum has been established. If you abstain from
voting on the améndment to the First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan and ratification of the
appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent auditors, your abstention will have the same effect as a vote
against the proposal.

Will My Shares Be Voted if 1 Do Not Sign and Return My Proxy Card?

If you are a registered stockholder and do not sign and retumn your proxy card, your shares will not be voted
at the annual meeting. 1f your shares are held in "street name" and you do not issue instructions to your broker, your
broker may vote your shares at its discretion on routine matters, but may nol vote your shares on nonroutine matters,
Under current New York Stock Exchange rules, the proposals relating 1o the election of directors and the ratification
of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent auditors are deemed to be routine matters with respect
to which brokers and nominees may exercise their voting discretion without receiving instructions from the beneficial
owner of the shares. The proposal relating to the amendment 1o the First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock
Purchase Plan is deemed a nonroutine matter, and brokers and nominees may not exercise their discretion to vote on
that proposal without receiving instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares.

What [s a "Broker Noovote?"

Under current New York Stock Exchange rules, brokers and nominees may exercise their voting discretion
without receiving instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares on proposals that are deemed to be routine
matters. 1fa proposal is not a routine matter, the broker or nominee may not vote the shares with respect to the
proposal without receiving instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares. If a broker tums in a proxy card
expressly stating that the broker is not voting on a nonroutine matter, such action is referred to as a "broker nonvote."

What Is the Effect of a Broker Nonvote?
Broker nonvotes will be counted for the purpose of determining the presence or absence of a quorum, but

will not be counted for determining the number of votes cast. A broker nonvote will not affect the outcome of any
proposal in the proxy statement, provided that a quorum has been established.




STOCK OWNERSHIP

The following table shows the amount of our common stock beneficially owned (unless otherwise indicated)

by our current directors, our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table in this proxy statement
and our current directors and executive officers as a group. Except as indicated in the table, none of our stockhelders
beneficially owns more than 5% of our common stock. Except as otherwise indicated, all information is as of
October 1, 2007.

Acquirsble
Qutstandiog Within 60 Percent of
Name Shares (1) Days (2) Class (3)
Stephen J. Harmison. ..., 6,999,999 () 71,677 14.8%
Edward L. Pierce .voveevereciecriieniereiiee s saeasasssanens 50,000 62,500 *
Thomas M. Harrison, JE. ...cournnrrseesiereeen: 6,999,999 (5 71,677 14.8%
Kevin P. COMN v nresveesbnerenirsesneseenes - 25,000 *
William R. PENECOSt ..ocvvvvvverermrernnnireirenecrnermnnann, 4,972 40,000 *
Rhodes R, Bobbitt ..o, 169,661 - *
Harvey B. Cash ..o, 2,000 -- .
Donald J. Edwards............ccoconiriiiinererccinrnnnes 536,666 (6) 3,725,678 8.3%
Gerald J. Ford.....o i cccrcnrremsisnsiieiions 15,673,219 - 32.9%
Tom C. NIChOIS ccovviereirirrcrirec e e essenes 22,500 -- *
Lyndon L. Olson, Jr. . 23,000 - *
William A, Shipp, I e 17,000 - .
All directors and executive officers
as 2 group (14 persons).......c.ovesessnsseceseneenn: 30,501,959 4,046,532 66.9%

n
@
)

(%)

&)

®
M

Represents less than 1% of our cutstanding common stock.

The number of shares shown includes shares that are individually or jointly owned, as well as shares over which the
individual has either sole or shared investment or voting authority.

Reflects the number of shares that could be purchased by exercise of options exercisable on October 1, 2007 or within
60 days thereafier under our stock option plan.

Pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, shares of common stock that an individual
owner has a right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to the exercise of stock aptions are deemed to be outstanding for
the purpase of computing the ownership of that owner, but are not deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the
ownership of any other individual owner. Likewise, the shares subject to options held by our directors and executive
officers that are exercisable within 60 days are a!l deemed outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of all executive officers and directors as a group.

Reflects 2,825,506 shares held by the Stephen J. Harrison 2006 Grantor Retained Annuity Trust and 4,174,493 shares
held by the Stephen J. Harrison 2067 Grantor Retained Annuity Trust. Address: 3322 West End Ave., Suite 1600,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203.

Reflects 2,825,506 shares held by the Thomas M. Harrison, Jr, 2006 Grantor Retained Annuity Trust and 4,174,493
shares held by the Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. 2007 Grantor Retained Annuity Trust. Address: 3322 West End Ave,, Suite
1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203.

Address: Flexpoint Partners, LLC, 676 N. Michigan Avenue, Suite 3300, Chicago, Hlinois 60611.

Includes 11,919,408 shares owned through Hunter's Glen/Ford Ltd. ("Hunter’s Glen"); 1,793,446 shares owned through
Turtle Creek Revocable Trust ("Turtle Creek Trust™); and 1,960,365 shares owned by Jeremy B. Ford, Mr. Ford's son.
Because Mr. Ford is one of two general partners of Hunter’s Glen and the sole stockholder of Ford Diamond Corporation,
o Texas corporation and the other general partner of Hunter's Glen, Mr. Ford is considered the beneficial owner of the
shares that Hunter's Glen owns. Since Mr. Ford is trustee of Turtle Creek Trust, Mr. Ford is considered the beneficial
owner of the shares that Turtle Creck Trust owns. Address: 200 Crescent Court, Suite 1365, Dallas, Texas 75201.




Section 16(a) Beneftcial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The federal securities laws require our directors and officers and persons who own more than 106% of our
common stock to timely file with us and the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership.
Based solely upon a review of filings with the SEC and written representations that no other reporis were required,
we believe that all of our directors and officers complied during fiscal 2007 with their reporting requirements,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that outline the composition, operations and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors. The Guidelines require that at least a majority of the members of the Board
must be independent, as defined by applicable law and the standards of The New York Stock Exchange. The Board
has determined that each of Messrs. Bobbitt, Cash, Nichols, Olson and Shipp are “independent™ within the meaning
of the rules of The New York Stock Exchange as currently in effect. The Guidelines also require that all of the
members of the committees of the Board must be independent. A copy of our Corporate Governance Guidelines may
be found on the corporate governance page of our website at www.firstacceptancecorp.com, and we will send a
written copy of our Corporate Governance Guidelines to any stockholder who requests a copy by delivering written
notice to Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., Secretary, First Acceptance Corporation, 3322 West End Ave., Suite 1000,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203,

The non-management members of the Board of Directors meet regularly in executive sessions. The
Chairman of the Board of Directors presides over executive sessions of the non-management directors. Stockholders
and all other interested parties may send communications to the Chairman of the Board of Directors or to any of the
non-management directors at 3322 West End Ave., Suite 1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203,

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which outlines the principles, policies and
laws that govemn our activities and establishes guidelines for professional conduct in the workplace. The Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics includes provisions relating to ethical conduct, conflicts of interest, compliance with
law and internal reporting of violations of the code. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applies to directors as
well as executive officers and other employees. Every employee is required to read and certify annualty that he or she
has read and understands, and will comply with, the code. A copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics may
be found on the corporate governance page of our website at www.firstacceptancecorp.com, and we will send a
written copy of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to any stockholder who requests a copy by delivering
written notice to Thomas M, Harrison, Jr., Secretary, First Acceptance Corporation, 3322 West End Ave., Suite 1000,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203. We intend to disclose amendments to or waivers from the Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics for the benefit of our executive officers or directors, if any, on our web site at
www.firstacceptancecorp.com,




PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS ‘

The Board of Dlrectors is comprised of nine members. The Board of Directors has nominated and
recommends to the stockholders Rhodes R. Bobbitt, Harvey B. Cash, Donald J. Edwards, Gerald J. Ford, Stephen J.
Harrison, Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., Tom C. Nichols, Lyndon L. Olson, Jr. and William A. Shipp, Jr. for election to
serve as directors until our next annual meeting of stockholders and until such time as their respective successors are
duly elected and qualified.” Each of the director nominees is currently a director and was ¢lected by the stockholders
at our 2006 annual meeting of stockholders. ‘

If any of the nominees should become unable to accept election, the persons named in the proxy may vote
for such other person or persons as may be designated by the Board of Directors. Management has no reasonto
believe that any of the nominees named above will be unable to serve.

Centain information with respect to the nominees for ¢lection as directors is set forth below.

Rhodes R Bobbint, 62, has served as a director of the Company since August 2004, From February 1987
until his retirement in June 2004, Mr. Bobbitt served as managing director and Dallas regional office manager of the
Private Client Service Group — Credit Suisse First Boston and its predecessor, Donaldson, Lufkm & Jenrette. Prior
to joining Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette, Mr. Bobbitt was vice president of security sales in  the Dallas office of
Goldman Sachs & Co. Mr. Bobbitt is a director of Hilltop Holdings, Inc. (formerly Affordable Residential
Communities Inc.).

Harvey B. Cash, 68, has served as a director of the Company since November 1996. Mr. Cash has been a
general partner of InterWest Partners, a venture capital fund, since 1986, Mr. Cash is a director of Silicon
Laboratories, i2 Technologics, Inc., Ciena Corporation, Staktek Holdings, Inc. and Argonaut Group, Ine.

Donald J. Edwards, 41, has served as a director of the Company since July 2002, Mr. Edwards currently is
the managiny principal for Flexpoint Partners, LLC, a Chicago-based private equity firm, and served as our
President and Chief Executive Officer from July 2002 through April 2004, Prior to July 2002, Mr. Edwards served
as a Principal in GTCR Golder Rauner, a Chicago-based private equity firm, for over five years.

Gerald J. Ford, 63, has been Chairman of the Board of Directors and a director of the Company since its
formation in August 1996, Mr. Ford served as our Chief Executive Officer from our formation until July 2002. He
currently is a private investor, and serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Southern Methodist University
and as a trustee of Southwestern Medical Foundation. Mr. Ford was the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and a director of Golden State Bancorp Inc., a holding company whose primary asset was its indirect
ownership of California Federal Bank, from September 1998 through November 2002. Mr. Ford is a director of
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold, McMoRan Exploration Co., Scientific Games Corporation and Hilltop
Holdings, [nc. (formerly Affordable Residential Communities Inc.).

Stephen J. Harrison, 55, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer and a director of the
Company since April 2004. In 1995, Mr. Harrison co-founded USAuto Insurance Company, Inc., predecessor of
USAuto Holdings, Inc. (“USAuto Holdings™), which we acquired in April 2004, and served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of USAuto Holdings since its inception. Mr. Harrison has over 30 years experience in insurance
and related industries, including automobile insurance and insurance agency operations. From 1974 to 1991, he
served in various capacities with the Harrison Insurance Agency, a family-owned multi-line insurance agency. From
1991 to 1993, Mr. Harrison served as President of Direct [nsurance Company, a non-standard automobile insurance
company. Mr. Harrison is the brother of Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., who is Executive Vice President, Secretary and a
director of the Company.
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Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., 57, has served as Executive Vice President, Secretary and a director of the
Company since April 2004. In 1995, Mr. Harrison co-founded USAuto Insurance Company, Inc., predecessor to
USAuto Holdings, which we acquired in April 2004, and has served as Vice President and Secretary of USAuto
Holdings since its inception. He has over 30 years experience in insurance and related industries, including
automobile insurance and insurance agency operations. From 1976 to 1995, Mr. Harrison served in various
capacities with the Harrison Insurance Agency, a family-owned multi-line insurance agency. Mr. Harrison is the
brother of Stephen J. Harrison, who is President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company.

Tom C. Nichols, 60, has served as a director of the Company since November 2005. Mr. Nichols has been
President and a director of First United Bancorp and Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of State
National Bancshares, Fort Worth since October 1996. Mr. Nichols previously served as President of Ford Bank
Group and First United Bancshares, a multibank holding company. Mr. Nichols is a director of United New Mexico
Financial. ’

Lyndon L. Olson, Jr., 60, has served as a director of the Company since August 2004, Mr. Olson has
served as a senior advisor to Citigroup, Inc., serving as a consultant to senior management, since 2001. Mr. Olson
served as United States Ambassador to Sweden from 1998 until 2001. From 1990 (o 1998, Mr. Olson served with
Citigroup as President and Chief Executive Officer of Travelers Insurance Holdings and the Associated Madison
Companies. Prior to joining Citigroup, Mr. Olson served as President of the National Group Corporation and Chief
Executive Officer of its National Group Insurance Company.

William A Shipp, Jr., 55, has served as a director of the Company since August 2004. Mr. Shipp has been
principal of W.A. Shipp, Ir. & Co., a financial advisory firm, since July 1995 and has served as Treasurer/Secretary
of the Jack C. Massey Foundation since July 1999. From December 1983 to June 1995, Mr. Shipp served as Vice
President of Massey Investment Company. Prior 10 joining Massey Investment Company, Mr. Shipp worked for
more than eight years in various audit and tax capacities for Emst & Young. Mr. Shipp is a certified public
accountant.

Required Vote; Recommendation of the Board

The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting is
required for the election of directors. Absientions and broker nonvotes will be counted in determining whether there
is a quorum, but will not be voted with respect to the proposal. Therefore, so long as a quorum has been established,
abstentions and broker nonvotes will have no effect on whether this propoesal is approved.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the nominees.




How Are Our Directors Compensated?

Each non-employee director receives an annual retainer of $20,000, payable in equal, guarterly installments
in arrears. The Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors receives an additional annual retainer of
$5,000, payable in equal, quarterly installments in arrears. Non-cmployee directors also receive a fee of $2,000 for
each Board of Directors meeting attended and $1,000 for each board committee meeting attended. In addition, non-
employee directors other than Messrs. Ford and Edwards receive an award pursuant to our 2002 Long Term Incentive
Plan of 1,000 shares of restricted stock on the dite of each annual meeting of our stockholders. The restricted stock
is subject to forfeiture if the director ceases to serve as a director of the Company during the period of six months
following the date of the-award, subjeci to certain exceptions.

The following table summarizes information with respect to the compensation paid to the members of our
board in fiscal 2007,

Fees
Earned or Stock
. Paid in Awards
Name Cash ($) {$) (1) Total (5}
Rhodes R, Bobbin 40,000 10,660 50,660
Harvey B. Cash 31,000 10,660 41,660
Donald J. Edwards 31,000 - 31,000
. Gerald ). Ford 28,000 -- 28,000
Thomas C. Nichols 36,000 10,660 46,660
Lyndon L. Olson, Jr. 29,000 10,660 39,660

William A. Shipp, Jr. 45,000 10,660 55,660

(1) Represents the proportionate amount of the total value of stock awards to directors recognized as an expense during fiscal 2007 for
financizl accounting purposes under Statement of Financia! Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised), Sharc Based Payment (“FAS
123R"} in fiscal 2007, disrcgarding far this purpose estimated farfeitures relating to service-based vesting canditions. Compensation
expenst is equal to the grant date fair value of the stock awards using the actual closing price for the Company's Common Stock on
the NYSE (New York Stock Exchange) as of the date of grant. The non-employee discotors {excluding Mr. Edwards and Mr. Ford)
were granted 1,000 shares of restricted stock on November 9, 2006 pursuant to our 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan. As of June 30,
2007, non-employee directors held outstanding stock awards for the following number of shares of our common stock: Mr. Bobbit,
2,000; Mr. Cash, 2,000; Mr. Nichols, 2,000; Mr, Otson, 2,000; and Mr. Shipp, 2,000.

What Committees Has the Board Established?

The Board of Directors has sianding Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committees. A copy of the charter for each committee may be found on the corporate govemance page of our
website at www.firstacceptancecorp.com and is available to any stockholder who requests a copy by delivering
written notice to Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., Secretary, First Acceptance Corporation, 3322 West End Ave,, Suite 1000,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203,

Audit Committee. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are (i) to oversee our accounting and
financial reporting processes and audits of our financial statements; (ii) to engage or discharge our independent
auditors; (iii) to review the nature and scope of the audit, including, but not limited to, a determination of the
effectiveness of the audit effort through meetings held at least annually with independent auditors, and a
determination through discussion with the auditors that no unreasonable restrictions were placed on the scope or
implementation of their examinations; (iv) to oversee and review the independence, qualifications and performance
of the auditors; (v) to pre-approve all auditing and non-auditing services to be provided by our independent auditors;
(vi) to review our financial statements and disclosures in our periodic reports with management and our independent
auditors; (vii) to review our policies with respect to risk assessment, risk management and the quality and adequacy
of our internal controls and processes through discussions with and reports from our independent auditors and
management; (viii} to establish procedures for handling any complaints relating to accounting, internal controls or
auditing matters and to ensure that such complaints are treated confidentially and anonymously; (ix) to review
material changes in accounting and reporting principles and practices and discuss with management and outside
auditors the selection, application and disclosure of critical accounting policies and practices used in our financial
statemnents; (X) to retain, at our expensc, outside counsel, auditors or other experts, consultants or advisors as it deems
necessary or appropriate in the performance of its duties; and (xi) to report to the full Board of Directors on the
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results of its reviews. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the full Board of Directors.
Members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Bobbitt, Nichols and Shipp, all of whom are independent directors,
Mr. Shipp is an audit committee financial expert, as defined in Item 407(d)5)(ii) of Regulation S-K. During fiscal
2007, the Audit Commiltee met seven times,

‘Compensation Committee. The functions of the Compensation Committee include reviewing and approving
the Company’s compensation policies, the compensation arrangements for senior management and directors, the
compensation and benefit plans in which officers and dircctors are eligible to participate, and awards under (and
otherwise administering) such plans. The Compensation Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the
full Board of Directors. Members of the Compensation Committee are Messrs. Cash, Nichols and Olson, all of
whom are independent directors. During fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee met one time.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee, The Nominating and Corporate Govemnance
Committee is responsible for identifying qualified individuals to serve as directors; reviewing the qualifications of
incumbent directors and those candidates proposed by a director, executive officer or stockholder; making
recommendations to the full Board of Directors regarding such candidates; recommending the candidates that will
serve on the various committees of the Board; reviewing Board composition; and reviewing the management
succession plan of the Company.

When determining whether to nominate a current director to be reelected as a director, the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee must review the performance of the director during the prior year using
performance criteria established by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee which, at a minirmum,
shall include:

. attendance at Board and Committee meetings;

o preparedness for Board and Committee meetings;

. quality of objectivity in exercising business judgment;

. participation at Board and Committee meetings; and

. candor toward other directors, management and professionals retained by the Company.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committec has no specifically defined process for identifying
and evaluating nominees, but it seeks to identify potential candidates for membership on the Board through
canversations with members of the Board, senior managernent and other constituencies. The Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee may from time to time engage a third party to identify or evaluate or assist in
identifying or cvalualmg potential nominees. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is also
responsible for reviewing the qualifications and performance of incumbent directors to determine whether to
recommend them 10 the Board of Directors as nominees for re-election.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also considers nominees proposed by our
stockholders in accordance with the provisions contained in our bylaws and certificale of incorporation. Nominations
made by stockholders must be made by written notice setting forth the information required by our bylaws and
certificate of incorporation received by the secretary of the Company at least 60 days in advance of the annual
meeting of stockholders, or (if later) within ten days after the first public notice of that meeting is sent to
stockholders. Stockholders may propose nominees for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee by submitting the names and supporting information to: Secrelary, First Acceptance Corporation, 3322
West End Ave., Suite 1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203,

In addition, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee is responsible for reviewing and
recommending corporate governance policies for the Company; reviewing potential director conflicts of interest;
evaluating Board performance, including the effectiveness of current Board policies and practices; and réviewing any
regulatory requirements relating to the continuing education of directors. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the full Board of Directors. Members of the Nominating and
Corporate Govemnance Committee are Messrs. Bobbitt, Cash and Shipp, all of whom are independent directors.
During fiscal 2007, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met two times.
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How Often Did tbe Board Meet During Fiscal 2007?

The Board of Directors met four times during fiscal 2007. Each of the directors attended at least 75% of the
aggregate of all meetings of the Board of Directors and all meetings of the committees on which the dircctor served.
All of the directors attended our 2006 annual meeting of stockholders.

How Do [ Communicate with the Board?

Stockholders and all other interested partics can send communications to the Board of Directors and, if
applicable, to specified individual directors /o First Acceptance Corporation, 3322 West End Ave,, Suite 1000,
Nashville, Tennessee 37203. All stockholder communications will be forwarded directly to the Board of Directors or,
if applicable, to specified individual directors.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

In accordance with our Related Party Transaction Policy, our Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing
and approving the terms and conditions of all transactions involving the Company and our executive officers,
directors and beneficial owners of 5% or more of our common stock and their affiliates. The Audit Committee
considers all relevant information and facts available to the Audit Committec regarding a related party transaction,
and takes into account factors that it deems to be appropriate, including, without limitation, whether the transaction is
on terms no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained from unaffiliated third parties and whether the
transaction is reasonably expected to benefit the Company. Approval of the Audit Committee is not required for-
compensation paid to any director of the Company for services rendered to the Company in his or her capacity as a
director if the compensation is required to be disclosed in the Company’s proxy statement pursuant to applicable SEC
rules. The Audit Committee is also not required to approve any compensation paid to an executive officer of the
Company if the compensation is required to be reported in the Company’s proxy statement pursuant to applicable
SEC rules or if the executive officer is not an immediate family member of another executive officer or director of
the Company, the compensation would be required to be-included in the Company’s proxy statement if the executive
officer was a named executive officer and the Company’s Compensation Committee approved such compensation.

Donald J, Edwards, our former President and Chief Executive Officer and a current director, was terminated
as our President and Chief Executive Officer on April 30, 2004, In connection with Mr. Edwards® separation from
the Company, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Mr. Edwards. Pursuant to the terms of the Separation
Agreement, we agreed to provide Mr. Edwards and his family with medical and dental insurance coverage through
July 1, 2007 on terms consistent with the insurance provided to our other scnior executives. We also agreed to
reimburse Flexpoint Partners, LLC, an entity controlled by Mr. Edwards, for all expenses incurred by Flexpoint
Partners pursuant to the lease for its office space located in Chicago, [llinois. The lease expires on August 31,:2009.
During the 2007 fiscal year, we paid Mr. Edwards and Flexpoint Partners an aggregate of $225,034 pursuant to the
Separation Agreement.

Effective May 1, 2004, we entered into an Advisory Services Agreement with Flexpoint Partners pursuant to
which Flexpoint Partners renders advisory services 10 us in connection with financings, mergers and acquisitions and
other related matters. Pursuant to the Advisory Services Agreement, we pay Flexpoint Partners a quarterly fee of
$62,500 and reimburse it for its reasonable expenses incurred in connection with providing those advisory services.,
The Advisory Services Agreement expires on April 30, 2008. The Advisory Services Agreement may be terminated
by us if Flexpoint Partners fails or refuses to perform its services pursuant to the agreement, does any act, or fails to
do any act, which results in an indictment for or conviction of a felony or other similarly serious offense or upon the
writien agreement of Flexpoint Partners. Flexpoint Partners may terminate the agreement upon our written consent
or if we are in material breach of our obligations thereunder. During the 2007 fiscal year, we paid Flexpoint Parmers
advisory services fees of $250,000 and reimbursed it for $32,134 of expenses pursuant to the Advisory Services
Agreement,




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of three directors who are independent
directors as defined under the applicable rules of The New York Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee operates
under a written charter adopted by the full Board of Directors. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include
oversight of our independent auditors and internal audit function, as well as oversight of our financial reporting
process on behalf of the full Board of Directors. Management has the primary responsibility for the financial
statements and the reporting process. Our independent auditors are responsible for expressing an opinion on the
conformity of our audited financial statements to generally accepted accounting principles.

In this context, for fiscal 2007, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed with management and the
independent auditors the audited financial statements. Management represented to the Audit Committee that our
consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in the
United States. The Audit Committee reviewed a report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting and “Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” and Emst and Young’s
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” which are included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the vear ended June 30, 2007,

The Audit Committee discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by
Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (Communication with Audit Committees) (AICPA,
Professional Standards, Vol. 1, AU Section 380). In addition, the Audit Commitice received from the independent
auditors the written disclosures and the letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1
(Independence Discussions with Audit Committees) and has discussed with them their independence from the
Company and its management. The Audit Committee has considered whether the independent auditors' provision of
non-audit services to the Company is compatible with maintaining the auditors’ independence.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Cémmittee recommended to the fuli
Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10K for the year
ended June 30, 2007, which was filed with the SEC.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Rhodes R. Bobbitt

Tom C. Nichols

William A Shipp, Jr.

The foregoing report of the Audit Committee shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general
statement incorporating by reference the proxy statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by
reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such acts.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Commitiee of the Company has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based upon such review and
discussions, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement. ) .

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Harvey B. Cash

Tom C. Nichois .
Lyndon L. Olson

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Overview of Compensation Process. The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors is
responsible for estabtishing the compensation arrangements for our employees, including our executive officers, and
reviewing and making recommendations to the full Board of Directors regarding non-employee director
compensation. The Compensation Committee is also responsible for the administration of our stock incentive plans
and other compensation plans in which our employees participate. It is the responsibility of the Compensation
Committee to determine whether, in its judgment, our executive compensation policies are reasonable and
appropriate, meet the stated objectives of those policies and-effectively serve our best interests and the best interests
of our stockholders. Each member of the Compensation Committee is an “independent director” as defined under the
applicable rules of The New York Stock Exchange and our Corporate Governance Guidelines, a “non-employee
director” as defined in Rule 16b-3 of the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and an
“outside director” for the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, in each case as determined by our Board of
Directors.

The Compensation Committee reviews our compensation policies on an annual basis and the compensation
of individual executives is reviewed annually in light of the compensation policies for that year. In setting and
reviewing executive compensation, in addition to corporate performance, the Compensation Committee believes it is
appropriate to consider the level of experience and responsibilities of each executive, as well as the personal
contributions a particular individual may make to the success of the corporate enterprise. No relative weight is
assigned to quantitative or qualitative factors considered by the Compensation Committee in reaching its decisions.
The Company did not engage a compensation consultant, or engage in benchmarking of component companies, in
determining the compensation of its executive officers during fiscal 2007.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions. The Compensation Committee makes all decisions
regarding the compensation of our executive officers. The Compensation Committee annually evaluates the
performance of our executive officers, and our chief executive officer provides the Compensation Committee with his
assessment of the performance of our executive officers other than himself. Decisions regarding the compensation of
employees other than our executive officers are made by our chief executive officer in consultation with other
members of management. .

What Is Our Philosophy of Executive Officer Compensation?

The Compensation Committee believes that the primary objectives of our executive compensation policies
should be: . .

e To attract and retain talented executives by providing compensation that is, overall, competitive
‘with the compensation provided to executives at companies of comparable position in our industry,
while maintaining compensation within levels that are consistent with our annual budget, financial
objectives and operating performance;
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» To provide appropriate incentives for executives to work toward the achievement of cur annual
financial performance and business goals based on our annual budget; and

¢  To more closely align the interests of executives with those of stockholders and the long-term
interests of the company by praviding long-term incentive compensation in the form of stock
options or other equity-based long-term incentive compensation.

The Compensation Committee is committed te a strong link between our financial and strategic objectives and our
compensatien and benefit practices. 1 is the Committee's objective to have a substantial portion of each cxecutive
officer’s compensation contingent upon our performance, as well as upon his or her individual performance.
Accordingly, the Compensation Committee’s compensation philosophy for an executive officer emphasizes an
overall analysis of the executive's performance for the prior year, his or her projected role and responsibilities,
required impact on execution of our strategy, total cash and equity compensation intemally, and other factors the
Compensation Committee deems appropriate.

Elements of 2007 Executive Compensation. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the principal
components of compensation for our executive officers were:

Base Salary. We provide executive officers with base salaries to compensate thern for services provided
during the year. The base salaries of Stephen J. Harrison, Edward L. Pierce, Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., and Kevin P,
Cohn are established by the terms of employment agreements between the Company and those executives. These
employment agreements provide for 2 minimum base salary, adjusted for such increases as the Compensation
Committee shall determine to be appropriate. The base salaries of our other executive officers are determined by the
Compensation Committee in its discretion. The Compensation Committee generally reviews the base salaries of our
executive officers on an annual basis. In determining whether an increase in base compensation for the executive
officers is appropriate, the Compensation Committee considers the performance of the Company and the executive
officer during the prior year, the executive officers’ level of base salary relative to other executive officers of the
Company, and the recommendations of the chief executive officer. Based upon these factors, the Compensation
Committee approved base salaries for our executive officers for fiscal 2007 and 2006 as follows:

2007 Base Salary 2006 Base Salary
Name (5) 8
Stephen ). Harrison 500,000 500,000
Edward L. Pierce 300,000 N/A
Thomas M. Hammison, Jr. 300,000 300,000
Kevin P. Cohn 200,000 N/A
William R. Pentecost 200,000 191,650
Randy L. Reed 205,000 175,000
Michaet J. Bodayle 175,000 164,300

The Compensation Committee has not approved any increases in base salaries for fiscal 2008.

Cash Bonus. The Compensation Committee considers that compensation should be linked primarily to
operating performance. To achieve this link with regard to short-term performance, the Compensation Committee
relies on cash bonuses awarded to executive officers. Pursuant to the terms of their employment agreements, Stephen
J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. are entitled to annual bonuses equal to up to 100% and 50%, respectively, of
their annual salary. Pursuant to the terms of their employment agreements, Edward L. Pierce and Kevin P. Cohn are
entitled 10 receive an annual bonus of up to $200,000 and $100,000, respectively, provided that the annual bonus will
be no less than $100,000 and $50,000, respectively, for fiscal 2007 and $50,000 and $25,000, respectively, for fiscal
2008. They may receive an additional bonus at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. Bonuses for other
executive officers are determined by the Compensation Committee in its discretion. Actual bonuses paid for fiscal
2007 are reflected in the Summary Compensation Table.

Stock Options. Stock options are the principal vehicle for payment of long-term compensaticn for our
executive officers. The Compensation Commitice believes long-term stock-based incentive compensation should be
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structured so as to closely align the interests of the executive officers with the interests of our stockholders and, in
particular, to provide limited or na value to the executive officers in the event that our stock price fails to increase
over time. All stock options are granted pursuant to incentive plans approved by our stockholders. The
Compensation Committee determines the award of stock option grants to the executive officers and takes into
account the recommendations of the chief executive officer prior to approving annual awards of long-term stock-
based incentive compensation. These stock options are granted in part to reward the senior executives for their long-
term strategic management of the Company, and to motivate the executives to improve stockholder value. During
fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee awarded options 1o purchase an aggregate of 635,000 shares of common
stock to executive officers and certain key employees.

401(k) Plan. The Company maintains a 401(k) plan that provides for a matching contribution by the
Company of 100% of the participant’s voluntary salary contributions of the first 3% of the.participant's salary
contributed by the participant, plus 50% of the next 2% of salary, up to the maximum voluntary salary contribution
established by the U.S. Department of Labor.

Perquisites and Other Benefits. The Company docs not gencrally provide materia! perquisites that are not,
in the Compensation Committee’s view, integrally and directly related to the executive officers’ duties. Our
executive officers also participate in other broad-based bencfit programs that are generally available to our salaried
employees, including health, dental and life insurance programs.

Benefits Upon Termination of Employment. We have employment agreements with certain of our
executive officers. These agreements generally provide that if the executive is terminated without cause or resigns
for good reason (as defined in the employment agreements), the executive will receive certain severance payments
and benefits. The Compensation Committee believes that the severance provisions contained in the employment
agreements arc an important element in attracting and retaining executive officers. See “Potential Payments Upon
Termination or Change in Control” for information with respect to potential payments and benefits under these
employment agreements and our other compensation arrangements upon the termination of our exccutive officers.

Tax and Accounting Matters. Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, enacted as part of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993, generaily disallows a tax deduction to public companies for
compensation over $1,000,000 paid to the chief executive officer and the four other most highly compensated
executive officers. Under Intema) Revenue Service regulations, qualifying performance-based compensation will not
be subject to the dediiction limit if certain requirements are met. The Compensation Committee does not believe that
any of the executive compensation arrangements for fiscal 2007 will result in the loss of a tax deduction pursuant to
Section 162(m). The Compensation Committee expects 10 continue to monitor the application of Section 162(m) 1o
executive compensation and will take appropriate action if it is warranted in the future. We operate our
compensation programs with the intention of complying with Section 409A of the Code.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During fiscal 2007, the Compensation Commiittee of the Board of Directors was composed of Harvey B.

Cash, Tom C. Nichots and Lyndon L. Olson, Jr. None of these persons has at any time been an officer or employee
of the Company or any of its subsidianies. In addition, there are no relationships among our'executive officers,
members of the Compensation Comimittee or entities whose exccutives serve on the Board of Directors or the
Compensation Committee that require disclosure under applicable SEC regulations.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth compensation for fiscal 2007 earned by our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief

Financial Officer and our three other most highly paid executive officers who were serving as executive officers on
June 30, 2007.

Option All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Compensation

_Mne a;ad Principal Position " Year . ($) (S)_ . ($) (5) ($) Total ($)

Stephen ), Harrison 2007 500,000 - 73,806 9,146  (6) 582,952

President and Chief’
Executive Officer

Edward L. Pierce 2007 269,423 (1) 285838 (3) 317,544 62007 (7)) 934812

Exccutive Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer

Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. 2007 300,000 - 73,806 7438  {6) 381,244

Executive Vice
President and Secretary

Kevin P. Cohn 2007 145,513 (2) 125,000 (4) 108,648 117,876  (8) 497,037

Vice President, Chief
Accounting OfTicer and
Corporate Controlter

William R, Pentecost 2007 197,912 . - 98,225 8,783 (6) 304,920

Chief lInformation
Officer

)
2
&)
)
5

(6

(7
8

Represents the prorated portion of Mr. Pierce's annual base salary of $300,000 as provided in his September 2006 employment agreement.
Mr. Pierce's employment with the Company commenced on September 13, 2006.

Represents the prorated portion of Mr. Cohn's ennual base salary of $200,000 as provided in his October 2006 employment agreement.
Mr. Cohn’s employment with the Company commenced on October 9, 2006,

Represents a bontus eamed during fiscal 2007 and a special onc-time, non-recurring signing bonus of $185,838 paid in connection with
Mr, Pierce’s September 2006 employment agreement. :

Represents a bonus eamed during fiscal 2007 and a special onc-time, non-recurring signing bonus of $75,000 received in connection
with Mr. Cohn’s October 2005 employment agreement.

Represents the proportionate emount of the total value of option awards to named exccutive officers recognized as an expense during
fiscal 2007 for financial accounting purposcs under FAS 123R, disregarding for this purpose estimated forfeitures relating to service-
bascd vesting conditions. See Note § to our consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 2007 for the assumptions made in determining FAS 123R valucs. Compensation expense is equal to the grani date fair value
of the options estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as amertized over the service period. See Note § to our
consolidated financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007 for the assumptions made in
determining option values.

Represents the matching amounts paid under our 401(k) Pian to Mr. Stephen J. Harrison of $9,146, Mr. Thomas M. Hamrison, Jr. of
37,438, and Mr. Pentecost of $8,783.

Reflects relocation expenses of $62,007.

Reflcets expenses of $117,876, which includes $50,266 arributable to the loss incurred by the Company from the purchase and sale of
Mr. Cohn’s home in Houston, Texas, $44,734 rciated to other normal and customary ctosing costs and $22,876 of relocation expenses.




Grants of Plan-Based Awards

*

The following tablc sets forth information concemning each grant of an equity or non-equity award made to a
named executive officer in fiscal 2007, . :

Estimated Futnre Payouts Uader Noo-
Equity Incentive Plan Awsrds {1}

ANl Otber
Optlon Grot
Awards: Excrcise Dute
Number of or Base Falr
Shares Prite of Value of
Undertying Opticn Option
Grant Threskold Target Manimem Opticns (§) Awards Awards
Name Date {$) (5) (L)) @ _S)ysh (%) (S)(4)
Stephen . - - - 500,000 - - -
Harmisen
Edward L. - - - 200,000 - - -
Pierce 9/13/06 - 250,000 11.81 1,596,300
Thomas M. - - - 150,000 - - -
Harrisom, Ir, .
Kevin P, - - 100,000 - - -
Cohn 10/9/06 - 100,000 1.3 598,770
Wiltiam R. 913106 - - - 50,000 11.81 319,260
Pentecos

(1)  Represents the maximum limit of payout awerds for fiscal 2007 for cach of these executive officers pursuant (o the terms of the
respective executive officer cmployment agreement. Actual award payouts camed in fiscal 2007 and paid in fiscal 2008 are shown
within the “Bonus” column in the Summary Compensation Table,

(2) Al amounts reported in this column represeni options granted during fiscal 2007 under our 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan. Options
generally vest in equal installments over & four or five year periad on each anniversary of the grant date. Options will become fully
exercisable in certain circumstances, including any termination of employment for Mr. Picree, as described within the “Potentiz)
Payments Upen Termination or Change in Control™ scction. Each option has & maximum term of 10 years, subject to carlier termination
in the cvenl of the optionee’s termination of employment.

{3) Inaccondance with the terms of our 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan, the exercise price of stock options we grant has consistently beeo
set 0t 100 percent of the closing market price of our Common Stock on the date of grant,

(4)  Represents the grant date fair value of options granted using the Bluck-Scholes option pricing modsh consistent with these valnes used
under FAS 123R. The essumptions made in determining option values arc disclosed in Note 5 to our consolidated financial statcments
in our Annual Repont on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with cach of Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison, Pierce, Thomas M. Harrison,
Ir., and Cohn. The employment agreemcnts provide for a minimum base salary, adjusted for such increases as the
Compensation Committee determines to be appropriate. The employment agreements provide that the Company will
employ the executive until the executive's termination of employment with the Company. In the event the
executive’s employment with the Company is terminated for any reason, including termination by the Company for
or without cause, resignation by the execution for or without good reason, or the executive's death or disability, he
will be entitled to receive his accrued but unpaid base salary, bonus and vacation pay through the effective date of
termination, and unreimbursed employment-related expenses. In the event the exccutive’s employment with the
Company is terminated by the Company for “cause” (as defined under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or
Change-in-Control™), the Company shall have no further obligations under the employment agreement. In the event
the executive's employment with the Company is terminated by the executive without “good reason” (as defined
under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control”), the Company shall have no further obligations
under the employment agreement. In the event the executive’s employment with the Company is terminated by the
Company without cause, by the executive for good reason, or as the result of death or disability or in connection with
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a change-in-control, the employment agreement provides that the executive will be entitled to severance payments
and benefits as described below under “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control.” Payment of the
severance payments and benefits generally is conditioned upon the executive’s compliance with other provisions of
his employment agreement, which include limitations upon his usc and disclosure of confidential information,
solicitation of employees, interference with the Company's business opportunities and an obligation not to compete
with the business of the Company for a specified period following termination of employment,

16




Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information conceming outstanding stock options held by named executive

officers at June 30, 2007.
Stock Optiony ’
Number of Number of
Securities Securities

Underlying Underlying

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option

Options (¥) Options (#) Excreise Expirstion
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Date
Stephen ), Harrison 63,342 36,658 (1) 6.64 4/30/14
Edward L. Pierce - 250,000 (2) 11.81 913116
Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. 63,342 36,658 (1) 6.64 430/14
Kevin P. Cohn - 100,000 () 11,13 10/9/16
William R. Pentecost ' 20,000 30,000 (3) 8.13 10/27/14

- 50,000 (3) 11.81 9/13/16

(1) Mr. Stephen J. Harrison and Mr. Thomas M, Harrison, Jr. were cach granied 100,000 stock options on April 30, 2004. These stock
options provide for a 20% vest on the first anniversory date of the grant with the balance of stock options vesting in cqual 1.667%
monthly installments over a four-year period.

(2) Mr. Pierce was granted 250,000 stock options on September 13, 2006 and Mr. Cohn was granted 100,000 stock options on October 9,
2006. The stock options of Mr. Pierce and Mr. Cohn vest in equal 25% installments over a four-year period on the first, second, third

and fourth anniversaries of the grani date.

(3) Mr. Pentecost was granted 50,000 stock options on both October 27, 2004 and September 13, 2006, The stock options of Mr. Pentecost
vest in cqual 20% installments over a five-year period on the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant date.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

During fiscal 2007, none of our named executive officers exercised any stock options.

Equity Compensation Plan lnformation

The following table summarizes information with respect to our equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2007.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available For
Number of Securities To Weighted Average Future Issnance Under
Be Issued Upoo Exercise Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
of Qutstanding Options, QOutstanding Options, (excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in column (s))
(a) (b) (c}
Equity compensation plans approved
by sccurity holders 4,715,678 (1) $4.48 3378470(2)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders - - -
Total 4,715,678 $4.48 3,378,470

{13 Includes 4,715,678 options outstanding under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan.

@ !ncludcs 3,337,322 shares available for future issuance under the 2002 Long Term Incentive Plan and 41,148 shares available for future
issuance under the First Acceptance Corporation Employce Stock Purchase Plan.
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Pension Benefits

The Company does not have any pension benefit plan that provides for payments or mhcr benefits following
or in connection with the retirement of a named executive officer.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control

Certain of the Company’s named executive officers (Stephen J. Harrison, Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., Edward
L. Pierce and Kevin P. Cohn)} are subject to written employment agreements that set forth the consideration payable
to such named executive officers in connection with the termination of their employment. Payments of these
amounts generally are conditioned upon the named executive officer’s compliance with the other provisions of his
employment agreement, which include limitations upon his use and disclosure of confidential information,
solicitation of employees, interference with the Company’s business opportunities and an obligation not to compete
with the business of the Company for a specified period following termination of employment. In addition, the
nonqualified stock option agreements to which each of the named executive officers are a party include certain
provisions that address the rights of the named executive officers upon termination.

Description of Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control. The discussion below outlines
the amount of compensation payable to each of the named exscutive officers of the Company listed above in the
event of a termination of employment or following a change of control. Except as otherwise noted, the discussion
below applies to each of the named executive officers.

Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment. Regardless of the manner in which a named
executive officer’s employment with the Company is terminated, he will be entitled to receive the following amounts:

accrued but unpaid base salary through the effective date of termination;
accrued but unpaid bonus owed to the executive as of the date of termination;
accrued but unpaid vacation pay; and

unreimbursed employment-related expenses.

Payments Made Upon Termination of 8 Named Executive Officer for Cause. The Company may terminate
each named executive officer for “cause,” which is defined as:

his conviction of a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;

his act of dishonesty or fraud that has caused material harm to the Company;

his willful and continued failure to substantially perform duties and obligations under his employment

agreement (other than any such failure resuiting from incapacity due to physical or mental illness); or
o  his uncured gross negligence or willful misconduct.

If a named executive officer were terminated for cause, he would not be entitled to receive any amounts
other than as listed under “Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment™ above.

Payments Made Upon Resignation of a Named Executive Officer without Good Reason. Each named
executive officer may resign at any time, If his resignation were not for “good reason” (as defined below), he would.

not be entitled to receive any amounts other than as listed under “Payments Made Upon Any Termination of
Employment” above.

The term “good reason” is defined under cach named executive officer’s employment agreement as:

«  areduction in the amount of the executive's compensation in a manner that constitutes a breach of his
employment agreement;
a material uncured breach of the Company’s obligations under the employment agreement; or
an assignment of duties inconsistent with his position, duties, responsibilities and status with the
Company, a reduction of his authority, a change in his reporting responsibilities, titles or officers, or
removal of him from any such positions (except in connection with the termination of his employment
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for cause, resignation of his employment other than for good reason or as a result of his death or
disability).

The following also constitutes “good reason” under Messrs. Cohn’s and Pierce’s employment agreements:

» arequirement that he relocate his place of work to a location more than 50 miles from the Company’s
current corporate headquarters.

The following also constitute “good reason” under Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison's and Thomas M. Harrison,
Jr.’s employment agreements: '

¢ arequirement that he relocate his place of work 1o a location more than 25 miles from his present place
of work; )

» a“change of control” (as defined below) of the Company (other than one that he approved or voted in
favor of in his capacity as a director and/or stockholder of the Companyy); or

¢ removal from the Board other than for cause or is not reelected to the Board at the end of his term of
service thereon.

The following also constitutes “good reason” under Mr. Stephen J. Hamison’s employment agreement:

e termination of the employment of Mr. Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. without cause or resignation of Mr.
Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. for good reason (other than in the case where he approved or voted in favor of
the termination of Mr. Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. or the events that constituted good reason in his
capacity as a director and/or stockholder of the Company).

The following also constitutes “good reason” under Mr. Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.’s employment agreement:

e termination of the employment of Mr. Stephen J. Harrison without cause or resignation of Mr. Stephen
1. Harrison for good reason {other than in the case where he approved or voted in favor of the
termination of Mr. Stephen J. Harrison or the events that constituted good reason in his capacity as a
director and/or stockholder of the Company).

The term “change of control” is defined under Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison’s and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.’s
employment agreements as:

» any sale, transfer or issuance or series of sales, transfers and/or issuances of capital stock of the
Company by the Company or any holders thereof (including without limitation, any merger,
consolidation or other transaction or series of related transactions having the same effect) which results
in any person, entity or group (as such term is used in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), other than
those who hold more than 10% of the Company’s common stock as of immediately giving effect to the
transactions oceurring concurrent with the exccution of the employment agreement, owning capital
stock of the Company possessing the voting power (under ordinary circumstances) to elect a majority of
the Board; or

» any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries in any
transaction or series of transactions (other than sales in the ordinary course of business) to any person,
entity or group, other than those who hold more than 10% of the Company’s common stock as of
immediatcly giving effect 1o the transactions occurring concurrent with the execution of the
employment agreement,

Payments Made Upon Disability of a Named Executive Officer. In the event of a named executive officer’s
“disability” (defined as executive's incapacitation or other absence from his full-time duties for six consecutive
months or for a1 lcast 180 days during any 12-month period, in ¢ither case as a result of a mental or physical illness or
injury), he would be entitled to:

¢ all amounts under *Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment” above.

19




In the event of Messrs, Stephen J. Harrison's or Thomas M. Harrison, Ir.’s disability, he would also be
entitled to:

e payments during the severance period (as defined below) in an amount equal to 60% of his initial base
salary, payable in regular installments, net of any benefits he receives from disability insurance;

e participate during the severance period in all employee benefit programs made generally available to the
Company's senior management (other than bonus and incentive compensation plans); and

* the immediate vesting of all options granted pursuant to his nonqualified stock option agreement.

The term “severance period” is defined under Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison’s and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.'s
employment agreements as the later to occur of the second anniversary of the termination of employment and April
30, 2009, -

Payments Made Upon Death of a Named Executive Officer, In the event of a named executive officer’s
death, his estate would be entitled to:

* all amounts under “Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment” above,

In the event of Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison’s or Thomas M, Harrison, Jr.’s death, his estate would also be
entitled to:

» abonus in the amount equal to the annual bonus he would have been entitled to had he remained an
employee for the entire year, multiplied by the number of days in such year prior to the date of death,
divided by 365; and

» the immediate vesting of all options granted pursuant to his nonqualified stock option agreement.

Payments Made Upon Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason of Messrs, Pietce or
Cohn. In the event of the tcrmination without cause or resignation for good reason of Messrs. Pierce or Cohn, he

would be entitled to:

¢ all amounts under “*Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment” above;

¢  a payment ¢qual {0 the product of his then current base salary, times two, payable in regular installments
through the first anniversary of termination or resignation (if the termination or resignation is in
connection with a “change of control” (as defined below) of the Company, then the payment is payable
in one lump sum as of the effective date of the change of control);

+  participate through the first anniversary of termination or resignation in ail employee benefit programs
made generally available to the Company’s senior management (other than bonus and incentive
compensation plans);

» an additional payment for any excise laxes resulling from the foregoing payments if the foregoing
payments are made in connection with a change of control of the Company;

* the immediate vesting of 50% of his unvested options granted pursuant to his nonqualified stock option
agreement if he is terminated without cause during his first year of employment with the Company; and

¢ the immediate vesting of 25% of his unvesied options granted pursuant to his nonqualified stock option
apreement if he is terminated without cause following his first anniversary of employment with the
Company.

The term “change of control” is defined under Messrs. Pierce’s and Coha’s employment agreements as:

* any consolidation, merger or share exchange of the Company in which the holders of a majority of the
Company’s outstanding voting power prior to such transaction do not own at least a majority of the
outstanding voting power of the Company or any successor thereto following such transaction;

¢ any sale, lease, exchange or other transfer (excluding transfer by way of pledge or hypothecation) in one
transaction or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company;

e the approval by the stockholders of the Company of any plan or proposal for the liquidation or
dissolution of the Company;
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» the cessation of control (by virtue of their not constituting a majority of directors) of the Board by the
individuals who (a) at July 1, 2002 were directors or (b) become directors after July 1, 2002 and whose
¢lection or nomination for election by the Company's stockholders was approved by a vote of at least
two-thirds of the directors then in office who were directors on July 1, 2002 or whose election or
nomination for election was previously so approved; or

» the acquisition of beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) of an aggregate of 50% or more of the voting power of the Company’s
outstanding voting securities by any person or group (as such term is used in the Sccurities Exchange
Act of 1934) who beneficially owned less than 50% of the voting power of the Company’s outstanding
voting securities on July 1, 2002;

Provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, an acquisition shall not constitute a change of
control if the acquiror is (a) a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of the
Company and acting in such capacity; (b} a subsidiary of the Company or a corporation owned, directly or indirectly,
by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of voting securities of
the Company; or (c) in a Title 11 bankruptcy proceeding, the appointment of a trustee or the conversion of a case
invelving the Company to a case under Chapter 7.

Pursuant 10 the terms of Messrs. Pierce’s and Cohn’s nonqualified stock option agreements, upon the
effective date of a change of control, all unvested options granted to him will immediately become fully vested and
exercisable provided that he is employed by (or, if he is a consultant or an outside director, is providing services 10)
the Company or a subsidiary from the grant date to the effective date of the change of control.

Payments Made Upon Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason of Messrs. Stephen J.

Harrison or Thomas M_Harrison, Jr. In the event of the termination without cause or resignation for good reason of -

Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison or Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., he would be entitled to:

¢ all amounts under “Payments Made Upon Any Termination of Employment” above;,

o his base salary, payable in regular installments, for the severance period;

» alump sum payment for cach 12-month period that falls within the severance period, equal to the
annual bonus paid to him for the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year in which the
termination or resignation occuts; :

e participate during the severance period in all employee benefit programs made generally available to the

. Company’s senior management (other than bonus and incentive compensation plans); and
¢ the immediate vesting of all options granted pursuant to his nonqualified stock option agreement.

Wilfiam Pentecost Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement. Pursuant to Mr. Pentecost’s nonqualified stock
option agreement, all unvested options granted to him will immediately become fully vested and exercisable upon the
effective date of a change of control.

21




Summary of Potential Payments on Termination or Change of Control. The tables below estimate the

potential payments upon termination or resngnat:on of a named exccutive officer or.upon a change of control of the
Company for each named executive officer, assuming that the triggering event took place on and as of June 30, 2007,

The following 1able sets forth the benefits to which each named executive officer is entitled in the event that

the Company terminates the named executive officer for cause or the named executive officer resigns without good

reason:

. Continued

Additional Benefit

Severance Plan Stock Option

Bonus Paymeant Coverage Acceteration
Name N () [43] 3) -_Total($)
Stephen ). Harrison .- - - - - ‘. -,
Edward L. Picrce 150,000 - - - v 150,000
Thomas $. Harrison, Jr. T - - ’ - - -
Kevin P. Cohn 75.000 - .- - 75,000
(1) In the case of Messrs. Pierce and Cohn, includes the receipt of the accrued and unpaid bonuses and future minimum bonus payments as

stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

The following table sets forth the benefits to which each named executive officer is entitled in the event that

the Company terminates the named executive officer without cause or the named executwe officer resigns for good

rca.son |

Continued
Additionsl Benefit
Severance . Plan Stock Option
Bonus Payment Coverage Acceleration

Name ® (16 I 0 {3} (4) To! (5)

. [
Stephen J. Harrison 450,000 1,000,000 13,770 135,268 | 1,599,038
Edward L. Pierce 159,000 600,000 © 9835 - 759,835,
Thomas 5. Harrison, Jr. 200,000 600,000 13,770 135,268 949,038
Kevin P. Cohn 75,000 400,000 9,835 - 484,835 -

8]

@

« (3)

O]

In the case of Messrs. Stephen J. Herrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., includes a lump sum payment for each 12-month period that
falls within the severance period equal to the bonus paid to the executive for the fiscal year immediately preceding the year in which the
termination of employment occurs, In the case of Mcssrs. Picrce and Cohn, includes the reccipt of the accrucd and unpaid bonuses and
future minimum bonus payments as stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

In the case of Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., includes the receipt of the then current base salary until the
later of April 36, 2009 and the second anniversary of the date of termination of employment. In the case of Mcssrs, Pierce and Cohn,
includes the receipt of the then current base salary times two (2).

Represents the estimated maximum aggregate amount of the named cxccmwc officer’s payable share of all medical, dental, health and
disability insurance payables by the Company for the benefit of the named executive officer and members of his immediate family until
the later of April 30, 2009 and the second unniversary of the date of termination of employment in the case of Messrs. Stephea J.
Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., and for the period of twelve (12) months after the termination date in the case of Messrs, Picrce
and Cohn; also includes the continvation of all employee benefit programs generally available to the Company’s senior management
during the defined post-termination period.

Information regarding outstanding unexercisable options held by each named executive officer is set forth in the OQuistanding Equity
Awards at Fiscal Year-End 1able above. Stock options that have vested on an accelerated basis for each named executive officer are
exercisable within twenty-four (24} months {ollowing the date of the termination of service (which for purposes of this table is Junc 30,

2007, Conscqucmly the amounts represented in this column for Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. represent
the maximum profit the named executive officer would have received had he (i) exercised any of these options that were in-thc-meney
and (ii) sold the underlying stock at $10.33 per share on July 12, 2007, the date of the highest recorded actual sale price for the
Company’s Common Stock on the NYSE (New York Stock Exchange) through the latest available date during the twenty-four (24)
month period. All stock options held by Messrs. Pierce and Cohn that vested were out-of-the-moncey at all times during the eppropriate
exercise period and are assumed to have expired unexercised for purposes of the this table.
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The following table sets forth the benefits to which each named executive officer is entitled in the event that

the Company terminates the named executive officer without cause or the named executive officer resigns for good
reason in connection with a change of control of the Company, or in the case of Mr. Pentecost, upon the effective
date of a change of control of the Company:

Continoed
Additional Benefit
Severance . Plon Stock Option
Bonus Payment Coverage Acceleration ,

Name S . {32 $3) ($) (4} Total (5)
Stephen J. Harrison 450,000 1,000,000 13,770 135,268 1,599,038
Edward L. Pierce 150,000 600,000 9,835 - 759,835
Thomas S, Harmisen, Jr. 200,000 600,000 13,770 135,268 945,038
Kevin P, Cohn 75,000 400,000 9,835 - 484 838
William R. Pentecost = - - 66,000 66,000

D)

(2

3

@

In the case of Messs, Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M, Harrison, Ir., includes 2 bonus payment a lump sum payment for cach 12-
month period that falls within the severance period equal to the bonuy puid to the executive for the fiscal year immediately preceding
the year in which the termination of employment oceurs. In the case of Mcssrs, Pierce and Cohn, includes the receipt of the sccrucd
and unpaid bonuses and fiture minimum bonus payments as stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

In the case of Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., includes the receipt of the then current base salary until the
later of April 30, 2009 and the second anniversary of the daic of termination of employment. In the case of Messrs. Picree and Cohn,
includes the receipt of the then current base salary times two (2).

Repriesents the estimated maximum aggregate amount of the named executive officer’s payable share of ail medical, denta, health and
disability insurante payables by the Company for the benefit of the named exccutive officer and members of his immediaie family until
the later of April 30, 2009 and the second anniversary of the date of termination of employment in the casc of Mcssrs. Stephen J.
Humison end Thomas M. Harison, Jr., and for the period of twelve {12) months after the iermination datc in the case of Messrs, Pierce
and Cohn; also includes the continuation of all employee benefit programs generally available to the Company's senior management

- during the defined post-termination period.

Information regarding outstanding unexercisable aptions held by each named executive officer is set forth in the Outstanding Equity
Awards at Fiscal Year-End toble above. Stock options that have vested on an accelerated basis for each named executive officer are
exercisable within twenty-four (24) months following, the date of the termination of service (which for purposes of this table is June 30,
2007). Conscquently, the amounts represented in this column for Messrs, Stephen J. Harrison, Thomas M. Herison, Ir. and Pentecost
represent the maximum profit the named executive officer would have received had he (i) exercised any of these options that were in-
the-money and (i) sold the underlying stock at §10.33 per share on July 12, 2007, the date of the highest recorded actuad sale price for
the Company’s Commen Stock on the NYSE (New York Stock Exchange) through the latest available date during the twenty-four (24)
month period immediately following the date of the termination event. All stock options held by Messrs. Pierce and Cohn and those
stock options granted in September 2006 that vested were out-ofthe-money at all limes during the appropriate exercise period and are
assumed to have expired unexercised for purposes of the this table.
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The following table sets forth the benefits to which each named cxocutwe officer is entitled in the évent of a

named executive officer’s disability:

Continued
Additionsl Benefit
Severance Plan Stock Optinn
Bonus Payment Coversge Acccleration
Name 51 M2 (L)L) (5} (4) Total (5}
Stephen ). Harrison - 300,000 13,770 135,268 449,038
Edward L. Pierce 150,000 - . - 150,000
Thomas S. Harrison, Jr. - 180,000 13,770 135,268 320,038
Kevin P. Cohn 75,000 - - - 75,000

£}

2)

(&)

@

In the case of Messrs. Picree and Cohin, includes the receipt of the accrued and unpaid bonuses and future minimum bonus payments as
stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

In the case of Messts. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrisan, Jr., includes the receipt of 60% of their respective initial base
salaries, net of any benefits received from disability insurance, as stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

In the case of Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., represents the estimated maximum aggregate amount of the
naraed executive officer’s payable share of all medical, dental, health and disability insurance payables by the Company for the benefit
of the named executive officer and members of his immediate family until the later of April 30, 2009 and the second anniversary of the
date of termination of employment; also includes the continuation of all cmployee benefit programs generally available to the
Company's senior management during the defined post-termination period.

Information regarding outstanding unexercisable options held by each named exccutive officer is set forth in the Outstanding Equity
Awards a1 Fiscal Year-End table above, Stock options that have vested on an accelerated basis for each named executive ofTicer are
exercisable within twenty-four (24) months following the date of the termination of service (which for purposes of this table is June 30,
2007). Consequently, the amounts represented in this column for Messrs, Stephen J. Hamrison and Thomas M. Harison, Jr. represent
the maximum profit the named executive officer would have received had he (i) exercised any of these options that were in-the-money
and (ii) sold the underlying stock at $10.33 per share on July 12, 2007, the date of the highest recorded actual sale price for the
Company's Common Stock on the NYSE (New York Stock Exchange) through the latest available date during the twenty-four (24)
month period. All stock options held by Messss. Picrce and Cohn that vested were out-of-the-moncey at all times during the appropriate
exercise period and are assumed to have expired unexcrcised for purposes of the this table,

The following table sets forth the benefits 1o which each named executive officer’s estate is entitled in the

event of a named executive officer’s death:

Continued
Additional Benefit
Severance Phan Stock Option
Boans Payment Coverage Acceleration
Name (5)(1) ($) {$) {$) ) Total (5)
Stephen J. Harrison - - - 135,268 135,268
Edward L. Pierce 150,000 - - - 150,000
Thomas S. Harrison, Jr. - - - 125,268 135,268
Kevin P. Cohn 75.000 - - - 75,000

m

2

In the case of Messrs. Picrce and Cohn, includes the receipt of the accrued and unpaid bonuses and future minimum bonus payments as
stipulated in their respective employment agreements,

Information regarding outstanding unexercisable opuons held by each named executive ofTicer is sct forth in the Cutstanding Equity
Awards ot Fiscal Year-End table 2bove. Stock options that have vested on an accelerated basis for cach named executive officer are
exercisable within twenty-four (24) months following the date of the termination of service {which for purposes of this table is June 30,
2007), Consequently, the amounts represented in this column for Messrs. Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. represent
the maximum profit the named executive officer would have received had he (i) excrcised any of these options that were in-the-money
and (ii) sold the underlying stock at $10.33 per share on July 12, 2007, the date of the highest recorded actual sale price for the
Company’s Common Stock on the NYSE (New York Stock Exchange) through the Iatest available date during the twenty-four (24)
month period, All stock options held by Messrs. Pierce and Cohn that vested were out-of-the-money at all times during the sppropriate
exercise period and are assumed to have expired uncxercised for purposes of the this table,
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The following table sets forth the benefits to which each named executive officer’s estate is entitled in the
event of a named executive officer’s retirement:

Continued
Additiona)} Benefit
Severance Plan Stock Opticn
Bonus Psyment Coverage Acceleration
Nome ($) (1) ($} ($) {$) Total ($)
Stephen J. Harrison - - - - -
Edward L. Pierce 150,000 - - - 150,000
Thomas S. Harrison, Jr. - - - -~ -
Kevin P. Cohn 75,000 - - - 75,000

{1} Inthe case of Messrs. Pierce and Cohn, includes the receipt of the accrued and unpaid bonuses and future minimum bonus paymenis as
stipulated in their respective employment agreements.
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PROPOSAL 2 - APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORORATION
EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

‘The Company believes that broad-based ownership of equity interests in the Company by its employces
provides a substantial motivation for superior performance by more closely aligning the economic interests of those
employees with the overall performance of the Company and the interests of the stockholders of the Company. In
order to encourage ownership of the Company's common stock by its employees, the Board of Directors and
stockholders of the Company previously approved the First Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
which we will refer to as the "plan.” As of October 1, 2007, 100,000 shares of common stock were authorized for
issuance under the plan and a total of 58,852 shares of common stock had been issued pursuant to the plan, resulting
in 41,148 shares of common stock remaining available for issuance under the plan. The Board of Directors has
reviewed the plan and determined that, in order to encourage continued participation in the plan by the Company’s
employees, the Company should amend the plan to increase the number of shares authorized for issuance under the
plan fram 100,000 shares 1o 200,000 shares. If approved by the stockholders, the amendment will become effective
November 7, 2007. ) :

Summary of the Material Provisions of the Plan, as Amended

R The following summary of the material provisions of the plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
text of the plan, which is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix A.

Participation; Awards under the Plan. Pursuant to the plan, each employee of the Company or a subsidiary
of the Company (including executive officers of the Company) having at least six (6) months of continuous service -
prior to January 1 or July 1 of each year (each a "Commencement Date™), except for employees whose customary
employment is 20 hours per week or less or whose customary employment is not for more than five months in any
calendar year, is eligible to participate in the plan. Holders of 5% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock
are not eligible to participate in the plan. The Company and its subsidiarics currently have approximately 1,030
employees who are cligible to participate in the plan.

Eligible employees may elect to deduct from their compensation an after-tax amount of not less than $25.00
per bi-weekly payroll period (or $25.00 per semi-monthly payroll period) and not more than 15% of their base pay on
the Commencement Date for each six-month option period starting on each such Commencement Date (each such
six-month period is referred to in the plan as an "Option Period"). The dollar amount deducted is credited to the
participant’s Contribution Account (as defined in the plan). In addition, a participant who has neither discontinued
nor withdrawn his or her contributions during each Option Period is permitted to make one lump sum contribution
during each Option Period (except during the last 30 days of the Option Period), as long as the aggregate amount of
contributions does not exceed 15% of the participant's base pay on the Commencement Date (expressed as base pay
for the applicable payroll period) multiplied by the number of payroll periods during that Option Period.

On the Grant Date (the first trading date of each Option Period), each participant in the plan shall be deemed
to receive an option to purchase shares of common stock in accordance with the terms of the plan. On the Exercise
Date (the last trading day of each Option Period), the amount deducted from cach participant's salary and any
additional amounts contributed on a lump-sum basis over the course of the period will be used to purchase shares of
common stock at a purchase price (the "Exercise Price”) equal to the lesser of (a) 100% of the Closing Market Price
of the shares of common stock on the Exercise Date and (b) 100% of the Closing Market Price of the shares of
common stock on the Grant Date. On an Exercise Date, all options shall be automatically exercised, except for
options which are cancelled when a participant withdraws the balance of his or her Contribution Amount or which are
otherwise terminated under the provisions of the plan (such as upon the termination of a participant's employment for
any reason except death, disability, or retirement at or afier age 63).

Participants' rights under the plan are subject to the following limitations: (i) subject to certain adjustments,
the maximum number of shares of common stock which may be purchased by a participant on an Exercise Date is
3,000 shares; (ii) no participant is allowed to purchase, during a calendar year, stock under the plan having a market
value in excess of $25,000, as determined on the Grant Date; (iii) no option may be granted to a participant who
would own 5% or more of the common stock of the Company immediately after the option is granted and (iv) no
participant may assign, transfer or otherwise alienate any rights under the plan or any options granted to him or her
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thereunder, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and such options must be exercised during the
participant’s lifetime only by him or her.

Upon termination of a participant's employment, the employee shall cease being a participant under the plan,
and the balance of the employee’s Contribution Account shall be paid to the participant as soon as practical afier
termination. An option granted to such a participant shall be null and void from the date of termination. Upon the
death, retirement or disability of & participant, the participant or his or her legal representative may withdraw the
balance in his or her Contribution Account or may use the accumulated balance to purchase stock under the plan.
Any remaining money that is insufficient to purchase a whote share is returned to such participant or his or her legal
representative. Nothing in the plan is 1o be construed so as to give an employee the right to be retained in the service
of the Company.

Administration. The plan is administered by a Plan Administrator, which Plan Administrator is currently the
Compensation Commitiee of the Board of Directors. The Plan Administrator does not, however, have the discretion
to deny the right to participate in the plan to any employee who meets the eligibility criteria.

Adjustments. In the case of a stock split, stock dividend, reclassification, recapitalization, merger,
reorganization or other change in the Company's structure affecting the common stock, appropriate adjustments will
be made by the Plan Administrator in the number of shares reserved for issuance undcr the plan and calculation of the
Exercise Price.

Amendment. The Board of Directors of the Company has the right to amend or terminate the plan at any
time, but cannot make an amendment 10 increase the number of shares reserved under the plan (except pursuant to
certain changes in the capital structure of the Company) without the approval of the Company’s stockholders. If the
plan is terminated, all options ouistanding a1 the time of termination shall become null and void, and the balance in
each participant's Contribution Account shall be paid to that participant.

Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a brief summary of the Federal income tax aspects of awards made under the plan based
upon the Federal income tax laws in effect on the date hercof This summary is not intended to be exhaustive and
does not describe state or local 1ax consequences.

A holder will not recognize income for Federal tax purposes when shares are purchased. Income may be
recognized when a holder disposes of his or her stock. [f shares of stock are disposed of before a starutory holding
period is met, ordinary income is recognized in an amount equal to the difference between the price paid for the
shares and the market value of the shares of the date such shares were purchased. If shares are disposed of after
meeting the holding period requirement, the holder receives ordinary taxable income in the calendar year of
disposition equal Lo the excess of the fair market value of such shares of common stock on the day of disposition over
the price paid for such shares. In cither case, (i) if a holder's disposition is by gift, such holder will have no further
income tax consequences and (ii) in the case of a sale of such shares, the difference between the net proceeds on the
date of the disposition and the holder’s tax basis in such shares (including ordinary income recognized in the
disposition) will be taxable as capital gain or loss.

If an employee Icaves contributions in the plan to purchase common stock after he or she retires, the tax
consequences depend on whether the termination date is within three months of the Exercise Date. If the termination
is not more than three months prior to the Exercise Date, the tax consequences are described above. However, if the
termination date is more than three months prior to the Exercisc Date, the holder is treated as exercising a non-
qualified option and is taxed on the Exercise Date on the excess of market value of the stock on that date over the
price paid.
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Required Vote; Recommendation of the Board

Approval of this proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares represented in person or
by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter. A properly executed proxy marked "ABSTAIN" with respect to this
proposal will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal. Broker nonvotes will not affect this proposal.
However, as discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement, both abstentions and broker nonvotes will factor into the
determination of the existence of a quorum.

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR approval of the amendment to the First
Acceptance Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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PROPOSAL 3 - RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has selected Ernst & Young LLP to serve as our independent auditors for the current
fiscal year, and the stockholders are requested to ratify this appointment. Emst & Young has served as our
independent registered public accounting firm since September 2006. A representative of Emst & Young is expected
to be present at the annual meeting, will have an opportunity to make a statement if he or she so desires and is
expected to be available 10 respond to appropriate questions. Stockholders should recognize that the ratification of
the appointment of Emst & Young does not preclude the Audit Commitiee from subsequently determining to change
independent auditors if the Audit Commitiee determines such action to be in the best interests of the Company and its
stockholders.

KPMG LLP (“KPMG") was previously the principal accountant for the Company. On September 27, 2005,
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company terminated KPMG’s appointment as our independent
registered public accounting firm.

In connection with the audit of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, and during the subsequent interim period
through September 27, 2005, there were no “rept_)nablc events” as defined in Item 304(a)1Xv) of Regulation S-K.

Fees Billed to Us by Ernst & Young LLP During Fiscal 2007 and 2006

Audit Fees. The aggregate audit fees billed by Emst & Young for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, and
2006 were $769,000 and $739,750, respectively. The fees include professional services and expenses for annual
audits and quarterly reviews of our financial statements.

Audit-Related Fees. Audit-related fees billed by Emst & Young for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007
and 2006 were $20,000 and $0, respectively. These fees related to the audit of the Company’s 401(k} plan.

Tax Fees. The aggregate tax fees billed by Emst & Young for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 were
$50,000. There were no tax fees billed by Emst & Young for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The fiscal 2007
fees related to the preparation of fiscat 2006 federal and state income tax returns for the Company.

All Other Fees, No amounts were billed by Emst & Young during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and
2006 that would be categorized as “All Other Fees.”

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures.

Our Audit Committee has adopted a policy, contained in its Restated Charter, which provides that our Audit
Committee must pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided to the Company by our independent auditors.
This policy is administered by our senior management, which reports throughout the year to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee pre-approved all audit and non-audit services provided by Emst & Young during fiscal 2007
and 2006, .

Auditor Rotation Policies

Emst & Young maintains partner rotation policies in accordance with the rules promulgated by the SEC.
Such rules have required rotation of the lezd audit partner afler five years of assignment to the engagement.

Required Vote; Recommendation of the Board
Approval of this proposal requires the affirmative vole of a majority of the shares represented in person or
by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter. A properly executed proxy marked "ABSTAIN" with respect to this

proposal will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal. However, as discussed elsewhere in this proxy
statement, both abstentions and broker nonvotes will factor into the determination of the existence of a quorum,

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP as First Acceptance Corporation’s independent auditors,
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OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this proxy statement, we know of no business that will be presented for consideration at the
annual meeting other than the items referved to above. 1f any other matter is properly brought before the meeting for
action by stockholders, proxies in the enclosed form returned to us will be voted in accordance with the
recommendation of the Board of Directors or, in the absence of such a recommendation, in accordance with the
judgment of the proxy holder.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Stockholder Proposals for the 2008 Annual Meeting. Pursuant to Rule 14a-8(e) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, stockholder proposals submitted in accordance with applicable rules and regulations for presentation at
our next annual meeting and received at our executive offices no later than June 13, 2008 will be considered for
inclusion in our proxy statement and form of proxy relating to the 2008 annual meeting.

For other stockholder proposals to be timely (but not considered for inclusion in our proxy statement), a
stockholder's notice must be received at our executive offices no later than 60 days before our annual meeting or (if
later) ten days afier the public notice of that meeting is sent to the stockholders of the Company, and should
otherwise comply with the advance notice provisions of our centificate of incorporation. For proposals that are not
timely filed, we retain discretion 10 vote the proxies that we receive. For proposals that are timely filed, we retain
discretion to vote the proxies that we receive, provided (1) we include in our proxy statement advice on the nature of
the proposal and how we intend to exercise our votingdiscretion and (2) the proponent does not issue a proxy
statement.

Proxy Solicitation Costs. The proxies being solicited hereby are being solicited by us. We will bear the cost
of soliciting proxics in the enclosed form. Our officers and regular employees may, but without compensation other
than their regular compensation, solicit proxies by mail, personal conversations, telephone, telex, facsimile or
electronic means. Upon request, we will reimburse brokerage firms and others for their reasonable expenses in
forwarding solicitation material to the beneficial owners of our common stock.

Financial Statements Available. A copy of our 2007 Annual Report to Stockholders containing our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007 and other information accompanies this proxy statement.

Householding Information. As permitied by the SEC's proxy statement rules, we will deliver only one copy
of our 2007 Annuzl Report to Stockholders or this proxy statement to two or more stockholders who share an
address, unless we have received contrary instructions from one or more of the stockholders. We will deliver
promptly, upon written or oral request, a separate copy of the annual report or proxy statement to a stockholder at a
shared address to which a single copy of the documents was delivered. Conversely, stockholders sharing an address
who are receiving mukiple copies of our annual reports or proxy statements may request delivery of a single copy.

Requests in this regard should be addressed to:

Thomas M. Harrison, Jr.
Secretary

First Acceptance Corporation
3322 West End Ave., Suite 1000
Nashville, TN 37203

(615) 844-2811
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APPENDIX A

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Section 6.1 of the Plan is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

6.1 RESERVED SHARES OF STOCK. The Company shall reserve two hundred thousand
(200,000) shares of Stock for issuance upon exercise of the options granted under this Plan.




FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION

Proxy Solicited on Behalf of the Board of Directors of !
the Company for the Annual Meeting, November 7, 2007

You are encouraged to specify your vole by marking the appropriate box ON
THE REVERSE SIDE but you need not mark any box if you wish to vote in
accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations which are FOR the
election of the named nominees as directors and FOR Proposals 2 and 3. The Proxies
cannot vote your shares unless you sign and return this card. This Proxy may
be revoked in writing at anytime prior to the voting thereot.

D w DETACH PROXY CARD HERE v
Mark, §ign, Cale and Ret
tha I’nmn v E
Using the Enclosad Eavelops. Vaolss must be indicated
(%) In Black or Bluo Ink.
1. Election of Directors (Proposal No. 1) FOR  ACAINST ABSTAIN
FOR 21 nominoes WITHHOLD AUTKORITY 1o vote *EXCEPTIONS 2. To approve an increase In the number ¢f shares
sted belcrw D on 2l nominess Ksted beiow D D authorized for issuange pursuant to the First D D D
Acceptance Corporation Employaa Stock Purchase Fian,
Nominess: Rhodes R. Bobbitt, Harvey B. Cash, Donald J. Edwards,
Geralg.J. Ford, Stephen J. Harrision, Thomas M, Karrison, Ji. 3. To salty the election of Emst & Young LLP as 0 0 O

independent auditoers for the Company for the

Tom C. Nichols, Lyndon L. Oison, Jr. and William A. Shipp, Jr. fiscal year ending June 30, 2008,

(INSTRUCTIONS; To withheld sutharity to vele for any individual nominee, mark the

“Exceptions” box and write that nominee’s name in the space provided below). This Proxy. when propery executed, wiil be voled in the manner directed hereln and wil
authorlza the Proxdes 1o take action in their distretion upon other matiers that may property come

*Exceptions betore the meeting. [{ no direction is made, the Proxy will be voted in accordance with the
. recommendations of the Beard of Directors. Proxies are authosized 10 vole upon matters

To change your address. please mark this box, I:] incident to the conducl of the mesting, such as appraval of one or more adjournments of the

meeting for the purposes of obtalning additional stockholder votes.

To include any comments, please mark this box. D

-

\ Oate Shere Owner wign hore Co-Owner sign hers

Jont pwners musl each sign, ﬂuummlws)mvummmtslmnmmwu When
signing &3 attomay, rusies, execulor, DoAY OTHCES PRI vk your FULL L.
(PLEASE SIGN, DATE. AND MAIL TODAY.)




FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION
THIS IS YOUR PROXY
Dear Stockholder:

Your Proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directors of First Acceptance
Corporation for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on November
7, 2007, at 9:30 a.m. local time, at our corporate headquariers which are
located at 3322 West End Avenue, Suite 1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203.

Enclosed with this Proxy is a Proxy Statement containing important information
about the matters that you are being asked to approve.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting,
you can be sure your shares are represented at the meeting by promptly
returning your completed Proxy card prior to the Annual Meeting.

Please mark the boxes on the Proxy card below to indicate how your shares
are to be voted, then sign the card, detach it and return your Proxy card in
the enclosed envelope.

Thank you in advance for your prompt consideration of these matters.

CONTINUED AND TO BE SIGNED ON REVERSE SIDE

FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION

PROXY \

BOARD OF DIRECTORS PROXY FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
AT 9:30 AM, WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2007

FIRST ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION, 3322 WEST END AVENUE, SUITE 1000, NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37203

The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints each of Stephen J. Harrison and Thomas M. Harrison, Jr. his or her true
and lawfu! agents and proxies with full power of substitution in each to represent the undersigned, with all the powers which the
undersigned would pessass il personally present, and to vole the Commen Stock of First Acceptance Corporalion held of record
by the undersigned on the record date, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of First Acceptance Corporation, to be held at
First Acceptance Corporation, 3322 West End Avenus, Suite 1000, Nashville, Tennessee 37203, on November 7, 2007, at 9:30
a.m. locai time, and at any adjournment or postponement thereol, on afl matters coming before said meeting.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS: To elect each of Rhodes R. Bobbilt, Harvey B. Cash, Donald J. Edwards, Gerald J. Ford,
Stephen J. Harrision, Thomas M. Harrison, Jr., Tom C. Nichols, Lyndon L. Olson, Jr. and William A. Shipp, Jr. to serve until the
next Annual Mgeting of Stockholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified or their earlier death, resignation
or removal from office. ‘

The Board of Directors recommends a
vote FOR the election of atl nominees for
director and FOR Proposals 2 and 3. Egsgéfffmgmf CORPORATION

{SEE REVERSE SIDE) NEW YORK, N.Y. 10203-0018
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